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Corporate Profile

China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is a
fast growing business conglomerate which has integrated
project investment, construction engineering, operation
management, technology development and equipment
manufacturing focusing on environmental protection and
alternative energy businesses. The business of the Group
is classified into environmental energy, environmental water
and alternative energy. Its projects mainly include waste-
to-energy, methane-to-energy, biomass power generation,
solar photovoltaic energy, industrial solid waste and
hazardous waste treatment, waste water treatment and
reusable water etc. These businesses are spreading in
Jiangsu, Shandong, Guangdong, Anhui, Zhejiang, Hainan,
Hunan Provinces in the PRC and Germany.

With its highly trained and dedicated management team
as well as strong parental support from China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited, the Group is fully prepared to
further explore and develop the environmental protection
market and strives to obtain new environmental protection
projects, with the aim to become a leading player in the
environmental protection industry in the PRC.

DESIGN CONCEPT

Trees, providing natural protection and habitat for
organism, are a vital part of our ecosystem. Trees give
the impression of reliability and strength. The growing
fresh leaves on the cover symbolizes the Company
is experiencing dynamic growth with tremendous
market opportunities. Leveraging on its sound
business foundation and solid experience, China
Everbright International Limited has been pursuing a
greener future for humanity while helping to create a
sustainable earth.

Highlighting the spirit of Dynamic Growth and Excellence,
the lively and energetic photos in this report show the
determination of the Company to create a cozy living
environment for the harmonious coexistence of human and
nature while developing its business in a sustainable manner.
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Financial Highlights
S 5 BE DL

2013 2012 Percentage
e T fF Change
HK$’000 HK$’000 Aokt
BT T BT BEp
RESULTS ES
Turnover from continuing HEEEEG X
operations 5,319,866 3,409,938 56%
EBITDA on recurring basis** BRAE - BB ER
5 AT B e 2,217,929 1,564,705 42%
Profit attributable to equity IRR FE(R & I
shareholders 1,324,667 1,123,269 18%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) REZE£EHR(%) 12.20 15.45 -3.25%
Basic earnings per share EREAREA
(HK cents) (L) 32.60 29.65 10%
FINANCIAL POSITION AR
Total assets BEEEE 23,471,047 16,583,114 42%
Total liabilities &g 9,691,926 7,912,705 22%
Shareholders’ equity AR R M 13,374,264 8,349,759 60%
Net asset value per share RERELETR
attributable to equity BEFEGEET)
shareholders (HK$) 2.983 2.068 44%
Gearing ratio (%) BEAGBLER(%) 41 48 -7%
Current ratio (%) MENEL R (%) 231 164 67%

P IRAE - BIE - WERBHEMNRAAMBAL - BE -

# EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation. MERBERN 2 AFERT -

fPFEZEETTEERIEEEEBORAEL - BIE -
78 [ 5 AT 22 7S #5 301,885,000 7T & 5 5 7 H MR 18
75 #9,994,0007T °

* The amount for last year is stated excluding the EBITDA from
discontinued operation of HK$301,885,000 and impairment loss on
available-for-sale securities of HK$9,994,000.
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Corporate Milestones

e PN 3T

01/ 2013

LT

03/ 2013

Hanshan Biomass Power Generation Project re-launched
after receiving the approval from the National Energy
Administration Bureau

Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase Il commenced
commercial operation, introducing a new era of Complete
Incineration and No Landfills of household waste in Suzhou
Jinan Waste-to-energy Project was awarded the nation’s
highest honour for National High Quality Project — Luban Prize

Signed a licensing agreement with MARTIN GmbH on
utilizing the grate furnace technology

SWAEYEREEHABBRAFKERBILERETRD
BMERBBRE —HRABEES - RBSHMN T AEEEIR
[ 2% - THEIB KA

RN R RERRRETEERTIERENRSR-[BIE]
HIEES T ARRBNRIEEBRMN S| £

Entered into an investment agreement in respect of the
Ninghai Waste-to-energy Project

Announced 2012 annual results, profit attributable to
equity shareholders exceeding HK$1 billion

REEBNNBERARE WS
T ——F2FRE  BREGAENRFEEE10ET AR

)

)

Celebrated the 20th anniversary of the Company and the
10th anniversary in the environmental protection business
Signed a co-operation framework agreement with the
world’s famous environmental protection enterprise —
Suez Environnement Group to enhance the technical and
management level of environmental protection projects

ARRBZTBFBERARRFTRFER
HrAZZRFEEHFLIRRBITSFERGZ R
RIA B B0 BB K
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Convened 2013 annual general meeting of the Company

BIRRRIZZE—=FRRBFRY

05/ 2013

Selected as a constituent stock of MSCI China Index
Entered into a strategic co-operation agreement with China
Development Bank to support the development of the
environmental protection business

Secured Zhanggiu Waste Water Treatment Project
Secured Rizhao Waste-to-energy Project

Secured Zibo Integrated Hazardous Solid Waste
Treatment Project

Secured Binhai Hazardous Solid Waste Landfill Project
Received Outstanding Brand Awards 2013 by Economic
Digest

A AMSCIRA R R B 45 2K 17D AR
HERFABRITEZURSIERS - IFHRREBERE
BEELSKEEEER

RS HRBRNIRESIER

RS SBEERARIEEE

NS B SEEEEEE

EECE—B)EE [ BB AR2013 15k

Obtained a loan facility from the International Finance
Corporation to support the development of environmental
water business

ESERSBARNRKEFIFRERBGEERR
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07/ 2013

E rxam i,
»

E-—C-FETHERBIE -
2013 Interim Resulls Apnouncamenias
-

WA L4 AT DB

09/ 2013

M

China Fyerbright International Lud,

s s
e Sy PSR

Teeerades M1 1

Secured Heze Waste-to-energy Project

o HUSSENINEETIAA

Announced 2013 interim results, with profit attributable to
equity shareholders amounting to HK$650,204,000
Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase Ill obtained a
subsidy of RMB30 million from the National Development
and Reform Commission

A _FE-ZFHRHERE O BSEERREGEAN
75 #650,204,0007T
BN EEEE —HEBENEZESHBARKES,00087T

Selected as a constituent member of the Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index for the 3rd
consecutive year

BEF-FARELURERROEZEERBNOM
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Secured Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project Phase I
Decided to invest in constructing Changzhou Equipment
Manufacturing Project Phase I

Established a joint venture company with the Nanjing
Jiangning Government to further advance the development
of the Nanjing Jiangnan Veinous Industrial Park

Entered into an investment agreement in respect of the
Shouguang Integrated Hazardous Solid Waste Treatment Project

BSHTHNREERE —H
HFEREEREMNREBEERE M
HEFUTBERRK A ERR - A FHEE R =TI RE
XEFBTIE

RESNEEEARERAIRE WS

11/ 2013

Entered into an agreement to acquire Lianyungang
Suzukigumi Waste Treatment Co., Ltd., entering the
medical waste treatment sector

Jinan Licheng Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il
commenced commercial operation, waste water
treatment fee increased by 32%

Awarded Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise by Economic
Digest magazine for the 7th consecutive year

REHBWBEESERANEERYEBIEAR AR - EXEF
B RIE X

B RERS/KEIZIE B — MEAURE - BEITKEREE E#H32%
BEFLFR(EEB)ER EBRLEE]

Selected as a constituent stock of the Hang Seng China-
Affiliated Corporations Index

Received Gold Award at The Asset’s Excellence in
Management and Corporate Governance Awards 2013

EMAELERBTELRERAN K
B(HE ) MmRE [REQRAER2013 |88

9
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Chairman’s Statement
B X4

Carry forward the Sp_
China Everbrlght'

Fnvironmental

_Protection brand

Tang S‘%langmng, Chalrman
L Sy ., '

L]
ik

In 2013, the global economy started to show signs of recovery,
while China’s economy maintained steady growth. The
environmental protection industry in China continued to benefit
from favourable national policies, as the market continued
to develop with strong momentum. Last year marked the
20th anniversary of the Group and its 10th anniversary in the
environmental protection business. Over the past decade, the
Group has developed into a comprehensive, innovative, and
one-stop environmental protection service enterprise with a
relatively large market influence in China, and become the
largest investor and operator of waste-to-energy projects in
China and Asia. Over the past decade, the Group has made
considerable achievements both in corporate efficiency and
contribution to society and has been recognized as China’s
leading enterprise in the environmental protection industry.

—E-ZF 2REEVRERTR - MPEL
BRAFREER  BARRITEEBEIENMNE
EROXF  MBEREERY - —_T—=FF
AEERL - +BEFERRRAREGTBEF - +
R AREEBRRUATEEAERATSZE
heviEalt - AR - —uARRRBER - =
PEGESMNEANLFHEETEARE LEE
o +ER ARERCERE SR EUED
ERBRRABER  KELS [TERREXEED
e
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During the year under review, owing to remarkable business
performance, good corporate governance, and a strong
sense of social responsibility, the Group was selected as
a constituent stock of the MSCI China Index and the Hang
Seng China-Affiliated Corporations Index and continued to be
included as a constituent member of the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Benchmark Index for the third consecutive year.
It also received the Gold Award at The Asset’s Excellence
in Management and Corporate Governance Awards 2013,
and ranked first among the 2013 Top Ten Influential Solid
Waste Treatment Enterprises in China. All these reflect that
the Group’s brand influence and market position have been
raised to new heights. In addition, the Group established the
Everbright International Environmental Protection Charitable
Foundation during the year under review, dedicating itself to
the environmental protection of Hong Kong, China and global
environmental protection issues.

CEFERN ASREREEHUNXERER R
HMEXREARSENHEEMER  KRAEZ
[MSCIRRFEIE# |  [EEBBTELEREH
iR - WEBEBE=FAE [BEAFEERD
EXEBEHNM] - B0 RIRECH B )M &
ERARDAIE 2013 |2 BN 2013F E  H B BETT
ETARENEE  mEPENRTSHALRET
EFHEE - AR - AREREEFEARLT
ARBERERRLARES  BORERE - REUE
EERHRIZRAE ©
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During the year under review, the Group secured 12 new
projects, activated the construction of Changzhou Equipment
Manufacturing Project Phase Il and expanded into new
business areas including hazardous solid waste incineration
and medical waste treatment. The Group received long term
loan facilities from China Development Bank and International
Finance Corporation, and successfully placed 430 million
shares to raise fund of HK$3.617 billion which provided
sufficient funding to support the sustainable development of
the Group’s environmental protection business.

During the year under review, the Company further improved
its internal management, reduced operating costs and
increased operating profit. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$1,324,667,000,
approximately 18% higher than that of last year (2012:
HK$1,123,269,000).

Given the satisfactory results and healthy financial position
of the Group, and taking into account the Group’s long
term sustainable development, the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) has proposed to pay equity
shareholders of the Company a final dividend of HK5.0 cents
per share. Together with the 2013 interim dividend of HK3.5 cents
per share, the total dividends for the year amounted to
HK8.5 cents per share (2012: HKB.0 cents per share).

BIEFERN ANEBIEESHEE12(E - REE
MNBE—BREE  BREEERE  BEEMEE
EHEE  BERARRTEEBESBARRERT
REBMBREE  NIWRE43ERBHEELEK
36ATIET  RASERMAMESIEERRE
BIFEEE o

EEFER  ARARAIEEE—SEBLL &4
A ERAR - (& E WS TEIRTT - AAFER
% 58 g {5 B R 78 5 1,324,667,000 7T @ 8 E G
E4918%(=_ZF——4F : /5¥1,123,269,0007T) °

ERAEERINKEEEBERVBHRR - TEE
NASENRPUTHELERE  AAREFFHM
ERIRZERBAREFRS.08 - EFR=2Z—=
FHEREFRI LB - 2FREAETAS.SHE
W(ZZE—=%F : BR6.08(L) -
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After a decade of dedication and progress, the Group has
reaped remarkable achievements in the environmental
protection industry. At present, the Group’s business and
projects have extended to all the major cities and towns
in Eastern, Central, and Southern China, covering 80
environmental protection and alternative energy projects for
waste-to-energy, hazardous waste treatment, waste water
treatment, methane-to-energy, photovoltaic energy and
biomass power generation, involving a total investment of
approximately RMB19 billion. The Group’s leading industry
position has been further consolidated. The new vision of a
Beautiful China being put forward by the government and the
importance it attaches to the environmental protection industry
have brought unprecedented development opportunities
for the Group. We are confident of our future development.
The Group will continue to improve its core environmental
protection business and step up its efforts in R&D and
innovation, consolidating its existing market position while
exploring new business lines and segments and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance, so as to further
improve its operating efficiency.

| would like to express my sincere thanks to the management
and the staff of the Group, as well as extend my heartfelt
gratitude for the consistent support of all shareholders, fellow
Board members, Mainland and Hong Kong citizens, and our
staff from various departments. We will continue to uphold
progressive management principles, so as to grasp market
opportunities to generate greater value for our shareholders
and also contribute further to the community and the
protection of the environment.

TANG SHUANGNING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2014
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Operating Results

In 2013, Europe and the U.S. experienced moderate economic
recovery while emerging economies faced a slowdown
in economic growth. As an important part of the global
economy, China actively transformed its economic structures
while continuing to maintain stable economic growth, and
the development of the green economy and environmental
protection industry have become core priorities for China’s
future economic reforms and long-term development.

Following the State’s 12th Five-Year Plan which ranked energy
conservation and environmental protection first among the
seven Strategic Emerging Industries in 2013, relevant state
departments have issued a series of guidelines and policies
on environmental restoration, including Air Pollution Control
Action Program 2013-2017 and Ten Measures to Prevent
and Control Atmospheric Pollution. In particular, the 18th
National Congress of the Chinese Communist Party laid out
a development blueprint for the Construction of a Beautiful
China, which enhanced the environmental protection industry
to an unprecedented height. We believe that the State will
further step up its policy support and capital investments in
environmental restoration, and the demand for environmental
protection and alternative energy across the country will
continue to grow, providing the Group with enormous market
and development opportunities.

2013 is the 20th anniversary of the Group and the 10th
anniversary of its move to the environmental protection
business. It is also a crucial year for the Group to build on past
experience and herald a new round of developments. During
the year under review, the Group adhered to the business
philosophy of Development, Openness and Creativity, and
continued to advance the steady development of each

F (Ereator of Wealth but also
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business segment. Benefiting from favourable national
policies and growing demand in the market, the Group has
made remarkable achievements and delivered outstanding
performance in operating results, market expansion, internal
management, technology research and development,
equipment manufacturing, fund raising and financing, and
the extension of its business chain. Leveraging its leading
technology in environmental protection and alternative energy
as well as its highly effective management team, the Group
stands out amongst its competitors and continues to explore
new business areas in order to maintain and consolidate its
leading position in the industry.

During the year under review, the Group formed a new market
expansion strategy and established a market development
model comprising four representative offices in Shenzhen,
Beijing, Nanjing and Jinan, which work closely with the
Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong. In particular, Jiangsu
and Shandong provinces and their surrounding markets have
been linked to one another through the establishment of two
representative offices in Nanjing and Jinan, further expanding
the business scope and geographic reach of the Group’s
business. The Group attached great importance to reforms to
drive its long-term development whilst expanding the scale of
its operations. After establishing the mainland management
centre in Shenzhen, the Group moved from Consolidation
to Integration with a well-defined management mechanism,
enabling the Group to expand its business, be innovative and
continue a strong growth momentum.

In 2013, the Group successfully secured 12 environmental
protection projects with a total investment of approximately
RMB2.48 billion, further consolidating the Group’s leading
position in the industry. At the same time, the Group reinforced
its cooperation with governments at all levels and signed
strategic cooperation agreements with many municipal and
provincial governments including Beijing, Nanjing, Shenzhen,
Shandong, Jiangxi, Sichuan, Jiangsu and Zhuhai, facilitating
the formation of a number of investments in new projects and
new districts.

In addition, the Group continued its reforms and innovation of
project construction and production processes, endeavoured
to improve its overall effectiveness and reached a record high
in its annual operating profit. Leveraging its rich experience,
the Group will fully prepare for all projects currently in

REFRMEZTE TERREE  BSEREN
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FERRAMIBE - AEBEEXRGRERKRAF
B TMERANREAFRELERERR - AKX
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EEERR  BRIBEARY -
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preparatory stage and proceed with the commencement
of construction of all new projects, in order to fuel earnings
growth. The gradual completion and commencement of
operation of projects that the Group secured over the past
few years, as well as the current projects under construction
which are being carried out on schedule, will provide new profit
drivers for the Group.

To ensure its sustainable development, the Group proactively
expands its financing channels to strengthen its capital
structure. In May 2013, the Group signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with China Development Bank (“CDB”).
According to the agreement, CDB will provide financing
support of RMB10 billion to the Group. In June 2013, the
Group secured a long-term loan facility of USD70 million
from International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) under the
World Bank Group, which will be used to finance the Group’s
environmental water projects. In addition, the Group raised
fund of approximately HK$3,616,816,000 through a share
placement in December 2013, which provided adequate
working capital, broadened our shareholder and equity
bases, and facilitated further development of the Group’s
environmental protection business. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group has cash on hand of HK$5,814,606,000, and has
maintained a reasonable gearing level and healthy financial
position. The Group achieved a steady growth of its business
and further enhanced its competitive strength.

The Group also improved its technological advantages and
strengthened its market competitiveness through cooperation
with world-renowned environmental protection companies. It
signed an agreement with MARTIN GmbH fur Umwelt — und
Energietechnik (“MARTIN GmbH?”) on utilizing its grate furnace
technology and a cooperation framework agreement with
Suez Environnement Group to collaborate on waste treatment,
waste water treatment, sludge treatment, hazardous waste
treatment and environmental protection technology.

Over the years, the Group’s outstanding operating
performance, potential for long-term development and
excellent management approach have been widely
acknowledged in the market. The Group also strives for
excellence in corporate governance, technology innovation
and internal risk management. During the year under review,
the Group was included as a constituent stock of the MSCI
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China Index and Hang Seng China-Affiliated Corporations
Index, and selected as a constituent member of the Hang
Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index for the third
consecutive year, which demonstrated the Group’s excellent
performance in operating results, operation management and
corporate sustainable development.

In addition, during the year under review, the Group received
several awards including the Outstanding Brand Awards
2013 (Environmental Protection and Alternative Energy
Category), Gold Award at The Excellence in Management
and Corporate Governance Awards 2013, first place in the
Top Ten Influential Solid Waste Treatment Enterprises in
China, and the Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award
for the seventh consecutive year. The awards highlight the
significant achievements the Group has made during the year
and the wide recognition from the community for the Group’s
perseverance and efforts in the environmental protection
business.

The Group actively followed the State’s environmental
protection policies and applied for government subsidies and
tax benefits at all government levels. During the year under
review, the Group obtained subsidies of RMB43,109,000
under the scheme of the Central Budgetary Investment Plan
and special funds from the provincial budget, showing how its
high-quality project construction and operation had received
recognition from the central and local government. The Group
also continued to receive tax benefits; during the year under
review, it received value-added tax refunds and profit tax
refunds of RMB74,801,000 and RMB3,464,000 respectively.

In 2013, following the completion and commencement
of operation of the Group’s projects secured over the
past few years, the steady progress of the projects under
construction, as well as the commencement of production
of the Group’s equipment manufacturing centre, drove a
continued growth of its overall operating efficiency. During
the year under review, the Group’s consolidated turnover
amounted to HK$5,319,866,000, an increase of 56% from
HK$3,409,938,000 of 2012. EBITDA on recurring basis
amounted to HK$2,217,929,000, an increase of 42% from
HK$1,564,705,000 of last year. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year of 2013 was
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HK$1,324,667,000, 18% more than the HK$1,123,269,000
of 2012. The increase in profit on a recurring basis has
completely offset the profit from discontinued operation due
to the disposal of the Fuzhou Qingzhou Bridge Project in
2012. Basic earnings per share of 2013 were HK32.60 cents,
HK2.95 cents more than the HK29.65 cents in the prior year.

The Group remained dedicated to enhancing value for its
shareholders. To reward shareholders for their support and
considering the Group’s need to achieve long term sustainable
development, the Board of the Company has proposed to
pay a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per share to shareholders
of the Company. The total dividends for the year are to be
HK8.5 cents per share (2012: HKB.0 cents per share).

Environmental Protection

and Alternative Energy Businesses

To keep up with the rapid development of the environmental
protection and alternative energy industries, the Group
actively explored business opportunities in all areas of
the environmental protection and alternative energy
businesses. As at 31 December 2013, the Group secured
80 environmental protection and alternative energy projects,
with a total investment of approximately RMB18.972 billion.
Of these projects, those that had completed construction
accounted for a total investment of approximately RMB9.609
billion, while those currently under construction accounted
for a total investment of approximately RMB3.777 billion.
The total investment of projects still in preparatory stage
is approximately RMB5.586 billion. After excluding the
investment of RMB1.301 billion of the biomass power
generation projects which construction has been postponed,
the total investment of projects currently in preparatory stage is
approximately RMB4.285 billion.

During the year under review, the turnover from the
environmental protection and alternative energy business
sectors amounted to HK$5,315,721,000, in which
construction service revenue increased by 95% to
HK$3,117,580,000 and operation service revenue was
HK$1,453,755,000, increased by 20% as compared with
2012. The proportion of the revenue is as follows: construction
service revenue 59%, operation service revenue 27% and
finance income 14%.
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Major financial data of the environmental protection and
alternative energy businesses in 2013 is summarised in the
table below:

—E-=HFRREFEREB 2T EVBEEN
T :

2012
—F-
Environmental ~ Environmental Alternative Environmental ~ Environmental Alternative
Energy Water Energy Energy Water Energy
Pro;ec Pro;ec PrOJec : PrOJec PrOJec PrOJecs
HK$’000
BRI
Turnover =1
- Construction services  — B MR 2,516,997 449,779 150,804 3,117,580 932,978 530,231 138,741 1,601,950
- Operation services ~ — &2k 635,427 558,461 259,867 1,453,755 453,654 502,789 256,097 1,212,540
- Finance income ~BIEIMA 463,728 275,390 5,268 744,386 355,266 234,422 5,306 594,994
3,616,152 1,283,630 415,939 5,315,721 1,741,898 1,267,442 400,144 3,409,484
EBITDA BRHE - BB
TER
BEARN 1,541,318 660,043 146,147 2,347,508 996,743 442 860 205157 1,644,760

The Group attaches equal importance to both economic and
social benefits and adheres to the principles of protecting the
environment and fulfilling its responsibilities, through all of its
energy conservation and emission reduction indicators which
are constantly setting new standards. During the year under
review, the Group processed household waste of 4,423,000
tonnes, industrial and hazardous waste of 68,000 tonnes,
agricultural waste of 341,000 tonnes and generated green
electricity of 1,552,984,000 kWh. This output can support the
annual electricity consumption of 1,294,000 households and
is equivalent to saving standard coal of 621,000 tonnes and
reducing carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions by 1,864,000 tonnes.
Meanwhile, the Group treated waste water of 526,485,000 m3
and leachate from waste-to-energy plants of 923,000 m® and
reduced COD emissions by 192,000 tonnes. Since the Group’s
first environmental protection project commenced operation
in 2005, it has processed an accumulated household waste of
15,868,000 tonnes, industrial and hazardous waste of 244,000
tonnes, agricultural waste of 857,000 tonnes and generated
green electricity of 5,178,264,000 kWh, which can fulfill the
annual electricity consumption of 4,315,000 households and
save the equivalent of standard coal of 2,071,000 tonnes,
reducing CO, emissions by 6,416,000 tonnes and preventing
673,802,000 trees from being cut down. The Group has
processed an accumulated waste water of 3,179,594,000 m3
and leachate from waste-to-energy plants of 2,643,000 m3 and
reduced COD emissions by 1,224,000 tonnes.

AEERKBERHLEZ  KEBEEERHTE -
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BlEhm -  AEBERLEBEFERNDBEESE
by I 4,423,00008 + T 3 X f& % 8% 22 %7 68,000
B BREFEZYWI41,0000 - RIEHZEE N
1,552,984,000F ELBF » A 4£1,294, 00018 K & —
FER - BERELIZE621,0000 @ B &
{E#X HEF 1,864,000 ; & ¥ 557K 526,485,000
37 7 K Ko g 3% 3% S R 2B 8 923,0003L 7 K
CODJE HE192,000MF - B —TZT A4 H{ERRAE

HIBITUAK - 250 RIEE A /&5 15,868,000
umﬁ C TERBREZEY244,0000F - BEFEE
¥857,000M8 - IR 4% E 175,178,264,000F
FL B » A f£4,315,000f@ K fE—FFEH > HE
RET K IEE 2 071,000 » 5 4 — @b iR HE W
6,416,000 M8 & & > 4 T2 1 K Bk 1% 673,802,000
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3% E W B2 B R 2,643,000 77 K - CODR HE
1,224,000/ o

19



20 China Everbright International Limited B ¥ KB AR AR

Lead the GREEN way
5| 4 & €4 1) J75 Tkl

Strive to promote g
Waste-to-energyand |-
build a Beautiful
Environment
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Environmental Energy
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32 RMB12.044 billion

Projects JHH AR ¥ 120.44 {550

A total of 24 waste-to-energy projects and Total investment of approximately
8 industrial and hazardous waste treatment projects RMB12.044 billion
HBE24ENRBEHEMBETLERBERIEER BRENYARY120.44 BT
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647,000

tonnes M

Annual household waste processing
capacity of approximately 7,647,000 tonnes
FRIBAETENIRFRELT7,647,0000F

230,000

tonnes M

Annual industrial and hazardous waste treatment
capacity of approximately 230,000 tonnes
F T A3 RE R R £230,0001F
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 24 waste-
to-energy projects and 8 industrial and hazardous
waste treatment projects which commanded a total
investment of approximately RMB12.044 billion.
The facilities are designed with an aggregate annual
household waste processing capacity of approximately
7,647,000 tonnes, which can in turn generate on-grid
electricity of approximately 2.249 billion kWh annually. The
aggregate annual hazardous waste (including industrial
waste and medical waste) treatment capacity (including
landfill, incineration and physico-chemical processing) is
approximately 230,000 tonnes.

The Group is always well prepared and constantly learning
from its experience, has substantial knowledge of the
market, and concentrates its resources on developing the
environmental energy sector. In 2013, the Group secured
a total of 4 waste-to-energy projects including Shandong
Rizhao Waste-to-energy Project, Zhejiang Ninghai Waste-
to-energy Project, Shandong Heze Waste-to-energy
Project, and Jiangsu Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Project
Phase Il. The new projects add a total designed daily
household waste processing capacity of 2,300 tonnes.
The Group also secured 4 hazardous waste treatment
projects including Shandong Zibo Integrated Hazardous
Solid Waste Treatment Project (“Zibo Hazardous Solid
Waste Treatment Project”), Jiangsu Binhai Hazardous
Solid Waste Landfill Project (“Binhai Hazardous Solid
Waste Landfill Project”), Shandong Shouguang Integrated
Hazardous Solid Waste Treatment Project (“Shouguang
Hazardous Solid Waste Treatment Project”), and Jiangsu
Lianyungang Suzukigumi Waste Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Lianyungang Suzukigumi Hazardous Waste Treatment
Project”), in which the Group has signed an agreement to
acquire 100% equity interest.

As market demand continues to increase, the hazardous
waste treatment business has bright prospects. The Group
will seize this opportunity to expand its business, further
enhance its status in the hazardous waste treatment
industry and strengthen its core competitiveness. The
investment in Zibo Hazardous Solid Waste Treatment
Project and Shouguang Hazardous Solid Waste Treatment
Project marked the Group’s entry into Shandong’s
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hazardous waste treatment sector, further strengthened
the synergies among various projects in Shandong
Province. The Binhai Hazardous Solid Waste Landfill
Project is the largest hazardous solid waste landfill project
of the Group and it is also the Group’s fifth hazardous
waste landfill project in Jiangsu Province. The Lianyungang
Suzukigumi Hazardous Waste Treatment Project is the
Group’s first hazardous waste incineration project to
commence operation as well as its first medical waste
treatment project. The 4 new hazardous waste treatment
projects are designed with a total annual processing
capacity (including landfill, incineration and physico-
chemical processing) of hazardous waste (including
industrial waste and medical waste) of approximately
150,000 tonnes.

The success in market expansion is mainly due to
projects’ stable operation and compliance with discharge
standards. The Group sticks to its goal of building
exemplary environmental protection projects with regards
to construction and operation, which always adhere to
the highest industry standards; the gas emissions of the
Group’s waste-to-energy projects fully comply with the
Euro 2000 standard and the leachate treatment adheres
to the national Grade 1 emission standard, laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s leading position in China’s
waste-to-energy industry.
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During the year under review, the environmental protection
projects of the Group processed a total household
waste of 4,423,000 tonnes, industrial and hazardous
waste of 68,000 tonnes and generated a total on-grid
electricity of 1,052,199,000 kWh, an increase of 19%,
51%, and 27% respectively as compared with 2012. The
environmental energy projects contributed an EBITDA of
HK$1,541,318,000, an increase of 55% from 2012. The
growth in profit was mainly attributable to the recognition
of construction service revenue and cost savings during
the year as well as the increase in the operation service
revenue due to continued increase in the total processing
volume of operating projects.

Major operating and financial data of the environmental
energy business in 2013 is summarised below:

REBEFEAN RRERSEBE A& H
BE ¥ 4 87 3% 4,423,000 - T ¥ K &
¥ FEE ¥ 68,000 WA - ktﬁtiﬁ BEE46H
1,052,199,000 F LB + # Rl T — 4
BAN19% ~ 51% K% 27% - IRIREFREBFE
REBRAE - BB - %ﬁ%&%fﬁmﬁﬂﬂm\
78 #1,541,318,0007T * T — —F 10
55% o ZFIHE 0 - Egmﬂimﬁﬁﬁ S22
ERFUW AR AETL) - I EEEIHE &
REEESFELA  BATESRBE N -

T CHEERREREH T REL AN
BEHIT

Waste-to-energy Projects BRI T IE A
Waste processing volume (tonne) FiR IR = (M) 4,423,000 3,711,000
On-grid electricity (MWh) FREEKER) 1,052,199 825,490
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRAE - BiIE - TER

BIHA AT (BB TT) 1,408,226 933,983
Industrial and Hazardous ITERGELE

Waste Treatment Projects I8 H

Waste processing volume (tonne) b R IR = (WA ) 68,000 45,000
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRALE - BB TER

BiHA RN (BETIT) 133,092 62,760




Chief Executive Officer's Report 17H 4% 3%

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF

2. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

INDUSTRIAL PARKS

The Group actively promotes environmental protection.
Under the principle of Implementing Projects with One
Success Followed by Another, the Group works closely
with the relevant local government authorities to design
and build environmental protection industrial parks, and
plans the utilisation of local resources within the park,
sharing of infrastructure and optimisation of available land
resources. The objective of this exercise is to achieve
efficient recycling of solid waste and to enhance energy
conservation, making it easier for the government and
enterprises to implement a centralised management
system and ultimately achieve “Nil discharge”. The parks
will be established as modern environmental protection
industrial parks and educational centres for environmental
protection.

During the year under review, the Group signed a strategic
cooperation framework agreement with the Jiangning
District People’s Government of Nanjing City. The two
parties will further enhance their cooperation based on
the existing Nanjing Waste-to-energy Project (“Nanjing
Project”). The Group and Jiangning District People’s
Government established a joint venture company, in which
the Group is the major shareholder. At the same time, it
nominated members to the management committee of
Nanjing Jiangnan Veinous Industrial Park to advance the
park’s development and operation.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 10 environmental
protection industrial parks, including those in Suzhou,
Changzhou, Sugian, Zhenjiang, Zhenjiang (New District),
Yixing, Lianyungang Xuwei New District, Nanjing of Jiangsu
Province, Weifang of Shandong Province and Ganzhou of
Jiangxi Province.
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27 RMB3.661 billion
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Projects 15 H AR 36.61 57T
A total of 21 waste water treatment projects, Total investment of approximately

4 reusable water projects and 2 water BT projects RMB3.661 billion
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667,950,000

A DN A VA
m3 3 oK
Annual waste water treatment capacity of

approximately 667,950,000 m3
FI5KEIE R E#667,950,00037 55K

22,334,000

A N N 1A
m3 . 5 K
Annual reusable water supply capacity of

approximately 22,334,000 m3
F ARk B E£922,334,00052 5 K
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL WATER

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 21 waste
water treatment projects and 4 reusable water projects,
commanding a total investment of RMB3.214 billion.
The projects are designed with an annual waste water
treatment capacity of approximately 667,950,000 m3
and provide annual reusable water of 22,334,000 m3.
Meanwhile, 2 water BT projects have completed
construction, commanding a total investment of RMB447
million.

The Group continued to consolidate its environmental
water business. During the year under review, the Group
advanced the development of its environmental water
projects and obtained Shandong Zhangqiu Waste Water
Treatment Project and the upgrading project of Ling
County Plant No. 1 Project. In addition to achieving stable
operations and complying with discharge standards,
the Group reduced operating costs by saving electricity
consumption, monitoring water quality changes and
making adjustments accordingly, and centralising
procurement. During the year under review, Jiangsu
Jiangyin Reusable Water Project, Shandong Jinan
Licheng Waste Water Treatment Project Phase Il (“Jinan
Licheng Project Phase II”), Shandong Dezhou Nanyunhe
Waste Water Project Phase | (“Dezhou Nanyunhe Project
Phase I”), all commenced commercial operation. After the
Jinan Licheng Project Phase || commenced commercial
operation, the total daily waste water treatment capacity of
the Group’s four existing waste water treatment plants in
Jinan City reached 730,000 m3. Furthermore, the standard
waste water treatment fee of Zhoucun Waste Water
Treatment Project and Jinan Licheng Project has been
increased during the year under review.

Environmental water projects treated waste water of
526,485,000 m?3, an increase of 3% as compared with
2012. The environmental water projects brought an
EBITDA of HK$660,043,000, an increase of 49% as
compared with 2012. The increase in profit was mainly due
to the completion of construction and commencement of
commercial operation of Jinan Licheng Project Phase Il,
which contributed to the construction service revenue, as
well as construction cost savings recognised on completed
projects.
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Major operating and financial data of the environmental
water business in 2013 is summarised below:

“E-ZHFERWKBER T BE LAY
BERT

Environmental Water Projects
Waste water treatment volume (m?3)
EBITDA (HK$’000)

RIRKTSIE B

757K BRIE &8 (377 K)
BRAE - BIE - fTER
#EEm AN (BETIT)

526,485,000 508,822,000

660,043 442,860

To further accelerate the development of its environmental
water business, the Group is committed to restructuring
the business and enhancing its investment value. In
December 2013, China Everbright Water Investments
Limited (“Everbright Water Investments”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, signed a framework
agreement with HanKore Environment Tech Group Limited
(“HanKore”), which is listed on the main board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. According
to the framework agreement, the Company proposed
to inject all the investments of its environmental water
business into HanKore and in return HanKore agreed to
allot and issue certain consideration shares to Everbright
Water Investments. Upon completion, Everbright Water
Investments will hold more than 50% of the enlarged share
capital of HanKore and HanKore will become a subsidiary
of the Company. Both sides are currently conducting due
diligence investigation. Following the conclusion of the
terms of the transaction and the execution of definitive
agreements, the Company will make further announcement
to the market.
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Create the GREEN way

A Sk A Y A 4

Strive to develop

Alternative Energy [

to iIncrease the value

of Natural Resources

81 B 98P HE IR
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Alternative Energy
FEEIR

13

Projects JH H

A total of 8 photovoltaic energy projects, 6 biomass
power generation projects, 2 methane-to-energy

projects and 2 waste water source heat pump projects
HBESEXRBEIER  6EAEMERREER -
2@ BREEBIER R2{EBKFRARER

gy,

RMB2.855 billion

AR 28.55 87T

Total investment of approximately
RMB2.855 billion
BIRENHARY28.55(2 T
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1,643,000

tonnes M

Annual agricultural waste processing
capacity of approximately 1,643,000 tonnes
FRIBREEYIRELI1,643,000H

1,167,000,000

kWh T FL ¥

Annual on-grid electricity generation of
approximately 1,167,000,000 kWh
F F@EE491,167,000,000F FL B
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4. ALTERNATIVE ENERGY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 18 alternative
energy projects, including 8 photovoltaic energy projects,
6 biomass power generation projects (including 4
postponed projects), 2 methane-to-energy projects and
2 waste water source heat pump projects with a total
investment of approximately RMB2.855 billion. The total
designed annual processing capacity of agricultural waste
is approximately 1,643,000 tonnes, generating on-grid
electricity of 1,167,000,000 kWh annually.
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During the year under review, the photovoltaic energy
projects enhanced the operation efficiency through
enhancing the operation management and reduced the
self power consumption. By improving fuel quality and
the equipment utilisation rate and reducing auxiliary
power consumption, the operational efficiency of the
Anhui Dangshan Biomass Power Generation Project
(“Dangshan Project”) was enhanced. The Group officially
activated the Anhui Hanshan Biomass Power Generation
Project (“Hanshan Project”) after receiving approval from
the National Energy Administration Bureau in January
2013 and construction of the Hanshan Project started in
June 2013. The construction and operation quality of the
Hanshan Project will be further enhanced based on the
Dangshan Project. The Hanshan Project is expected to be
completed and commence commercial operation in 2014.

During the year under review, the Group’s alternative energy
projects contributed an EBITDA of HK$146,147,000, a
decrease of 29% as compared with last year. The decrease
in profit was mainly due to recognition of construction cost
saving in 2012.

Major operating and financial data of the alternative energy
business in 2013 is summarised below:

CIEFEAN AREEHEABAEBLELE
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Alternative energy projects
On-grid electricity (MWh)
EBITDA (HK$’000)

tBEEOKER)
BRAE - HIE - TER
BHEmEN(BETIT)

257,156 269,363

146,147 205,157
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Environmental
Protection Engineering

BRRIRE

26 RMBS.06 billion

PrOJects JHH AR ¥ 80.6 57T

26 projects under construction or Total investment of approximately
n preparatory stage RMB8.06 billion
GﬂEITL‘Szi‘iL J=! BIRENHARKS0.6 BT
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[uban Prize AAA

B YEAE Grade #

The highest award in the China Quality Project National AAA Waste-to-energy Power Plant
Construction 2012-2013 KRAAALL I 3 E iR
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ENGINEERING
By establishing a standardized engineering management
system, making the most of its management experience
and enhancing its core competencies, the Group was able
to provide high quality construction engineering services
and enhance the overall efficiency of the construction and
operations of various projects. During the year under review,
the Group undertook the highest number of projects and
contracts, with 4 projects completing construction, 26 projects
under construction or in preparatory stage, commanding a
total investment of over RMB8.06 billion.

During the year under review, Suzhou Waste-to-energy Project
(“Suzhou Project”) Phase lll, Dezhou Nanyunhe Project Phase |
and Jinan Licheng Project Phase Il completed construction
and commenced commercial operation. The total daily
waste processing capacity of Suzhou Project Phase I, I,
and Il reached 3,550 tonnes (amount of incinerated waste)
and the total daily volume of collected waste amounted to
3,850 tonnes after the Suzhou Project Phase Ill commenced
commercial operation, leading it to be the largest processing
capacity and highest industry standards in China. In addition,
Jiangsu Xinyi Surface Water BT Project, another key project,
was also completed and transferred, and officially started
supplying water to the urban area of Xinyi City. The project was
well managed in terms of the overall construction budget and
project quality, and won recognition from the Xinyi Municipal
Government. Moreover, the Group explored dismantling old
facilities and building new ones through the dismantling of the
Wujiang Waste-to-energy Project’s old plant and re-modeling
of equipment.
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The Group experienced an important year in project
construction in 2013. During the year under review, a total of
9 projects commenced construction, including Jinan Licheng
Project Phase Il, Zhangqgiu Waste Water Treatment Project,
Pizhou Waste-to-energy Project Phase |, Sanya Waste-to-
energy Project Phase I, Shouguang Waste-to-energy Project
Phase |, Boluo Waste-to-energy Project Phase |, Guanyun
Hazardous Solid Waste Treatment Project, Binhai Hazardous
Solid Waste Landfill Project and Hanshan Project. Together
with the continued construction of the Nanjing Project and
Ningbo Waste-to-energy Project Phase | as well as the
commencement of construction of other new projects, the
construction service revenue is expected to become a new
growth driver for the Group.

The Group is committed to the principle of First Class Quality,
Advanced Technology, High Standard, Outstanding Efficiency
with regards to project construction. It strives to create
benchmark projects in the country. During the year under
review, the Group’s Jinan Waste-to-energy Project received
the highest award in the China Quality Project Construction
2012-2013, also known as the “Luban Prize” for national
projects of quality. In addition, the Suzhou Project was
categorized as the National AAA Waste-to-energy Power Plant
by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
PRC and the China Installation Engineering High-quality Award
(China Installation Star) 2013-2014 by the China Installation
Association.
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Invent the GREEN way
B4 G020

Scientific Theory,
Meticulous Organisation,
Bold Innovation,

High Initiative
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Environmental
Protection Technology

BRIRPI >
3 RMB43.11 million

R&D topics WFsiE AR 4,311 &

Self-developed grate furnace reaching Received technological subsidies and
international standard incentives of RMB43.11 million
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Third generation of leachate treatment processing 5 invention patents and 16 utility invention patents
technology reaching international standard BAHEFSEREAUERN61E
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION TECHNOLOGY
The Group has always upheld an operating philosophy of
planning based upon scientific theory, meticulous organisation,
bold innovation, and has consistently increased its R&D
investments enabling it to be at the forefront of technological
trends developments. The Group has established a set of
R&D systems to ensure robust scientific development and
introduced first-class technology from China and overseas to
improve its technological development capabilities and quality.
During the year under review, the Group prioritised 8 fields
for R&D, with a total budget of more than RMB20 million, and
achieved substantial breakthrough in 5 major fields including
waste incineration grate furnaces, leachate treatment systems,
gas treatment systems, waste-to-energy control systems and
biomass collection-storage-transportation systems.

The Group’s self-developed grate furnaces now operate in
the waste-to-energy projects located in Jiangyin, Zhenjiang,
Sugian, and Suzhou in Jiangsu Province and have achieved
a satisfactory operational performance, reaching international
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standards. In addition, the success of the leachate treatment
high-efficiency anaerobic system can now boast short
retention time, high processing ability and low operating
energy consumption, making it the Group’s third generation of
international standard treatment processing and technology.
The self-developed equipment is most suitable for processing
solid waste incineration in mainland and has significantly
enhanced the operating efficiency of the Group’s waste-to-
energy projects. Furthermore, the Group has commenced and
promoted research in biomass integrated utilisation, hazardous
waste incineration treatment, food waste treatment, plastic
waste treatment, sludge treatment and disposal techniques,
and environment remediation.

During the year under review, the Group was granted 21
patents, of which 5 were invention patents and 16 were utility
invention patents. The Group will continue to strengthen its
efforts in advancing R&D to develop its business, so as to
fuel the scope of the Group’s expansion and sustainable
development.
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Completed the assembly commissioning of Confirmed the investment of Changzhou
7 sets of incinerators Equipment Manufacturing Project Phase |l
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2013 was the first full year of operation for the Group’s
environmental protection equipment manufacturing business.
The Group’s production base for environmental protection
equipment, which is located in Changzhou in Jiangsu Province,
commenced production in 2012. It mainly manufactures major
equipment such as grate furnaces, automatic control systems
and leachate systems for the Group’s waste-to-energy
projects. It also provides outsource waste-to-energy project
advisory services.

During the year under review, the Group completed the
assembly commissioning of 7 sets of incinerators and reduced
the production cost significantly, thereby enhancing the
market competitiveness of these products. At the same time,
gas purification system equipment and a complete set of
leachate equipment supplies were completed to facilitate the
project construction schedule. The production management
system for equipment manufacturing is on the path towards
standardization, institutionalization and systematization, with
its key products being categorised as Hi-tech Products by
Changzhou City and Jiangsu Province.

The Group’s environmental protection equipment
manufacturing business actively advanced the outsourcing
market. During the year under review, the Group signed
ash treatment equipment supply and project management
contracts, and provided technology consultancy services to
a number of local governments, achieving a breakthrough in
external sales of equipment and technology.

With the Group’s environmental protection business
continuing to develop, the Group decided to invest in the
Changzhou Equipment Manufacturing Project Phase Il during
the year under review. This will include the expansion of a
manufacturing plant, the construction of an R&D facility and a
technical test centre, etc.
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POST-RESULT EVENTS

The Group secured the Anhui Ma’anshan Waste-to-energy
Project (“Ma’anshan Project”) and Hunan Yiyang Waste-to-
energy Project (“Yiyang Project”) on 2 January and 14 January
2014 respectively. The Group will set up a joint venture
company with Ma’anshan Urban Development Investment
Group Co., Ltd. for the construction of the Ma’anshan
Project, and both parties will own a 50% equity interest in the
venture. The Ma’anshan Project, with a concession period
(including the construction period) of 30 years, is the first
waste-to-energy project for the Group in Anhui Province. The
Ma’anshan Project Phase | is designed to have a daily waste
processing capacity of 800 tonnes, with a total investment
of approximately RMB450 million. The Ma’anshan Project
is located near to the Nanjing Project, so the two projects
can take advantage of their synergy and proximity to help
save construction and operation management costs. The
Yiyang Project is the Group’s first environmental protection
project carried out in Hunan Province. The concession period
(including the construction period) of the Yiyang Project is 30
years. The Yiyang Project Phase | is designed with a total daily
household waste processing capacity of 800 tonnes, with a
total investment of approximately RMB373 million.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

2013 is the 10th anniversary of the Group’s transformation into
an environmental protection enterprise. In the past decade,
the Group has adhered to the principle that An Enterprise
is not only a Creator of Wealth, but also the Safeguard of
Environmental and Social Responsibility, with a total focus on
environmental protection and alternative energy. The Group
has developed a series of projects with first class quality, high
standards, advanced technology and outstanding efficiency
and in doing so has become a leading one-stop integrated
environmental solution provider in China.
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According to the Construction of a Beautiful China
development blueprint formulated by the 18th National
Congress of the Communist Party of China, social progress
and development will be guided by the principle ecological
civilization. The government will strengthen the sector’s
administration, build a strong base for the environmental
protection industry, highlight the key areas of environmental
protection and rely on environmental protection enterprises to
achieve the goal of environmental restoration in China.

According to the Opinions of the State Council on Speeding
up the Development of Energy-efficient and Environmentally-
friendly Industries plan issued by the State Council on
11 August 2013, the growth of the annual output of
energy conservation and environmental protection will be
maintained at above 15%. The industry output of China’s
energy conservation, environmental protection and resource
recycling is expected to reach RMB4.5 trillion in 2015. The
environmental protection industry will by then become a pillar
industry in China. The 12th Five-Year Plan clearly stated
that by 2015, all national municipalities, provincial capitals
and separately planned cities will conduct non-hazardous
treatment of household waste, with the non-hazardous
treatment rate of urban living waste reaching over 90%, and
the capacity of national urban waste incineration facilities
accounting for more than 35% of the total processing capacity
of non-hazardous treatment. This vast goal has brought about
tremendous market opportunities. The Group will explore the
potential and take full advantage of opportunities in the rapid
development of the industry in order to continue to grow its
business and increase its operational efficiency.

While strengthening its two traditional core business
segments, environmental energy and environmental water,
the Group is now actively expanding into other advantageous
business segments including alternative energy projects and
environmental protection industrial parks, and also focusing
on promoting the new business segment of environmental
protection equipment manufacturing. The Group will continue
to adopt a clear market position and strategy, focusing on
technological innovation, R&D while constantly enhancing its
core competitiveness, and through portfolio diversification in
various regional markets, create synergies and strong brand
influence to expand market share.

The Group will adhere to its management model of having
Hong Kong headquarter as a base supported by four
representative offices and developing markets in three
directions: expanding from modern cities to rural areas,
expanding from coastal cities to inland cities, and expanding
from domestic markets to overseas markets. As the Group
further develops its existing business segments, it will strive
to break through in new geographic areas and new business
segments to gradually expand the footprint of its environmental
business.
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The Group believes that more market opportunities and
challenges lie ahead in 2014. The Group will follow the market
closely in order to capture the best opportunities while paying
attention to risk control and strengthening the foundations
of the business. Against a complicated and ever-changing
international and domestic economic backdrop, the Group
will monitor the possibility of market risk in real-time, analyse
market conditions and take responsive measures to ensure
the steady development of the Group’s business and create
maximum value for shareholders.

Looking ahead, riding on the nation’s long term support for
the environmental protection industry and under the guidance
of the national policy of Ecological Civilization, with the strong
support by parent company, China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited (“CEH”), we are confident about future
development. As one of the leaders in China’s environmental
protection industry, the Group will take a humble, open and
practical attitude, forging ahead with advanced management
concepts and strategies to continue hitting new heights in
business development. The Group will pursue comprehensive
development of its business through synergies of its various
business sectors, and at the same time fulfill its commitment
and responsibility to the community in order to further
contribute to social development, economic growth and
environmental governance.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total assets
amounting to HK$23,471,047,000, with HK$13,374,264,000
worth of net assets attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company. Net asset value per share attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to HK$2.983 per share, an increase
of 44% as compared with HK$2.068 per share at the end of
2012. As at 31 December 2013, gearing ratio (total liabilities
over total assets) of the Group was 41%, 7 percentage points
less than the 48% as at the end of 2012.
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The Group adopts a prudent approach to cash and financial
management to ensure proper risk control and low cost
of funds. It finances its operations primarily with internally
generated cash flow and loan facilities from banks. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group had cash and bank
balances of HK$5,814,606,000 representing an increase
of HK$3,018,097,000 as compared to HK$2,796,509,000,
at the end of 2012. Currently, 94% of the Group’s cash is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

The Group is striving to increase its banking facilities to reserve
sufficient funds for the development of its environmental
protection business. During the year under review, the Group
has signed a strategic cooperation agreement of RMB10 billion
with CDB and a loan agreement of USD70 million with IFC. The
cooperation with two banks as well as the loan facilities from
Asian Development Bank (“ADB”) and other commercial banks
will comprehensively enhance the Group’s financial strength
for its future business development.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of HK$6,921,121,000, representing an increase
of HK$916,770,000 as compared to HK$6,004,351,000 at
the end of 2012. The borrowings comprised secured bank
loans of HK$4,320,879,000 and unsecured bank loans of
HK$2,600,242,000. The borrowings are mainly denominated
in Renminbi, representing about 58%, with the remainder
denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Most of
the borrowings are at floating rates. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group had banking facilities of HK$11,728,728,000, of
which HK$4,807,607,000 have not been utilised. The banking
facilities are for 1 to 10 year terms.
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The Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions
are mainly denominated in Renminbi. The Group mainly
settles business expenses in the PRC with Hong Kong dollar
remittances and income in Renminbi. It did not need to use
any financial instruments to hedge against bank borrowings in
Renminbi, which are used mainly to meet capital requirements
of its business in the PRC. The Group closely manages
and monitors foreign currency risk given the increased loan
balances in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured by certain
revenue and receivables in connection with the Group’s service
concession arrangements, bank deposits, mortgages on
fixed assets and equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate net book
value of assets and equity interests in subsidiaries pledged
amounted to approximately HK$10,695,111,000.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had purchase
commitments of HK$1,122,456,000 outstanding in connection
with construction contracts.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had issued financial
guarantees to 8 wholly-owned subsidiaries and a non-wholly
owned subsidiary. The directors do not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company as at 31
December 2013 under the guarantees issued is the facilities
drawn down by the subsidiaries of HK$2,207,798,000.

On 10 December 2013, the Company’s substantial
shareholder, Guildford Limited (“Guildford”) entered into a
placing and subscription agreement with the placing agents,
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc. and China Everbright
Securities (HK) Limited, pursuant to which, the Company
placed 430,000,000 shares to more than 6 independent
investors, most of whom are the institutional investors.
The placing price was HK$8.52 per share, and Guildford
subscribed to 430,000,000 shares of the Company at the
same price of HK$8.52 per share, with the net proceeds from
the share placement being approximately HK$3,616,816,000.
The Group has been using the net proceeds as its general
working capital for the development of its environmental

protection business.
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Internal Management

Strengthening management and risk control have always been
important duties of a corporation during its operation and
development. The Group adheres diligently to the management
principle that focuses on People, Pragmatism, Creativity
and Systematic Management and is committed to building a
comprehensive risk management culture. With the efforts of
the Risk Management Advisory Committee, the Engineering
Technical Management Committee and the Budget Approva
Management Committee, the Group has formulated strict
regulations on investment in, and construction and operation
of environmental protection projects. During the year under
review, the Group held Management Committee meetings
on a monthly basis to review all projects under construction
and operation. The Group also continued to enforce the
strict compliance of various systems to improve internal
management. Also, in order to refine the Group’s rules and
regulations, the Group looked at four areas: compensation
and welfare, financial management, budget management
and performance assessment. It also revised a series of
management systems including internal audit, research and
development and environmental management. In order to
further enhance the Group’s household waste-to-energy
projects, the Group formulated and implemented a series of
technical standard for household waste incineration during
the year. In addition, to strengthen financial management,
the Finance Management Department conducted an on-
site inspection of construction projects. The Internal Audit
Department conducted an internal audit to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems and
completed system-wide risk investigation work which
effectively promoted the standardization and institutionalization
of the management of each company.
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Committed to maintaining safe and stable operations in
compliance with discharge standards, with the goal of ensuring
no major safety and environmental accidents, the Group
embarked on the Race to Save Expenses, Increase Income
Sources and Efficiency, Reduce Energy Consumption, and
Lower Cost. The comprehensive auxiliary power consumption
rate of waste-to-energy, biomass power generation and
photovoltaic energy projects as well as the unit operating cost
of waste water treatment projects were significantly decreased
compared with 2012, contributing to an improvement in
efficiency. At the same time, through building a unified
purchasing platform, the Group facilitated an improvement in
the quality of products and services provided by suppliers,
thereby effectively reducing the purchasing costs.

Human Resources

The Group highly values its human resources, and puts
great emphasis on staff training. It believes that realising
the full potential of its employees is crucial to its long term
growth. During the year under review, to develop a culture
of incorruptibility, the Group held a Change Your Work Style
and Abide By Honesty conference and Prevention of Duty
Crimes Cum Financial Management video training. During the
year under review, the Group arranged a training course on
computerised financial management in March and an overall
financial training session in May. In addition, it arranged a
variety of training courses on topics such as environmental
and social responsibility, prevention of and solutions for waste
incineration project failures, and office PC systems. To ensure
employees’ development is in line with the Group’s sustainable
development, the Group has completed a competitive
selection of middle management for environmental water
project companies and company-wide competitive selection
for Everbright Environmental Protection, which motivates staff
and helps them achieve greater success in their careers. In
addition, the Group actively strengthened the team in a variety
of ways including overseas recruitment, campus recruitment,
recruitment of professionals and internal training. To speed
up the integration of new employees, during the year under
review, the Group held 2 execution development training
sessions, with the ninth session taken place in November in
Shenzhen, attracting a record 211 participants including the
most top level management.
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately
2,000 employees in Hong Kong and China. Employees of
the Group are remunerated according to their qualifications,
experience, job nature, performance and with reference to
market conditions. Apart from a discretionary performance
bonus, the Group also provides other benefits such as medical
insurance and provident fund scheme to employees in Hong
Kong. According to the share option scheme approved by
the Company’s extraordinary general meeting on 26 May
2003 (“Share Option Scheme”), at the discretion of the Board,
share options may be granted as performance incentives
to any employee (including the directors). During the year
under review, no share option was granted to any employee
(including the directors). The Share Option Scheme was
expired on 26 May 2013 and accordingly, no further share
option can be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance as it believes good corporate governance
practices are increasingly important for maintaining and
promoting the confidence of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). It is crucial for the development of
the Group’s business and protection of the Shareholders’
interests. The Group upholds the management principle of
People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and Systematic
Management, and through a set of rules and regulations,
has continuously strengthened internal controls and risk
management. Furthermore, by full and timely public disclosure
of information, the Group has maintained transparency and
accountability which also enhanced its corporate values. The
Board meets regularly and has set up Board committees,
namely Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Disclosure Committee
and Management Committee. For risk management, the
Group has set up a Risk Management Advisory Committee to
monitor and assess risk regularly, boost related management
standards and evaluate investment projects. Regarding
technological risk management, the Group has in place an
Engineering Technical Management Committee responsible
for assessing the technologies used in different investment
projects. For financial control, the Group insists on stringent
budget management, and has set up a Budget Approval
Management Committee that focuses on monitoring
construction budgets. In addition, the Group has also set up an
Internal Audit Department to perform internal audits to bolster
the Group’s management standard.
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The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
has been duly adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

The Company has complied with the code provisions and most
of the recommended best practices and the CG Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2013 except for the following deviation.

The Chairman of the Company, was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 April 2013
due to overseas commitment. This constitutes a deviation from
the code provision of E.1.2 of the CG Code which requires the
Chairman to attend the annual general meeting.

The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Tang Shuangning
(Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and 5 executive
directors, namely Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, Mr.
Wang Tianyi, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond and Mr. Cai
Shuguang. Its main duties include performing the duties
assigned by the Board as well as exercising the authority
and rights authorized by the Board. The general mandate in
relation to the Executive Committee in written form has been
established.

The Audit Committee, currently comprising all 4 independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Selwyn
Mar (Chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Li Kwok Sing,
Aubrey and Mr. Zhai Haitao, is primarily responsible for
reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as discussing and reviewing the internal
control and financial reporting matters of the Group. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed on the
website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management and KPMG, the Company’s
auditors, the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed the Group’s internal control and
financial reporting matters, including review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2013.
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhai
Haitao (Chairman), the independent non-executive director,
Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer, and 3 other
independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Selwyn Mar and Mr. Li Kwok Sing,
Aubrey. It is primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on appointment of directors regarding the
qualification and competency of the candidates, so as to
ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are disclosed on the
website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive directors
of the Company and discussed and made recommendation
of the Board the re-election of the retiring directors at the
forthcoming 2014 annual general meeting of the Company etc.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Li
Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Chairman), the independent non-executive
director, Mr. Zang Qiutao, the Vice-chairman of the Board, and
3 other independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Selwyn Mar and Mr.
Zhai Haitao. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, which are disclosed on the website of the
Company, set out the duties of the Remuneration Committee,
including to determine, with delegated responsibilities, the
remuneration packages of the individual executive directors
and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration policy, assessed performance
of executive directors and approved the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management.
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The Disclosure Committee currently comprises Mr. Chen
Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager of the
Company, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, the Chief Legal Officer
and the Company Secretary of the Company. The Board
has delegated the day to day execution of its continuous
disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Committee to ensure
the compliance of the Company with its disclosure obligations.
The terms of reference of the Disclosure Committee has been
established in writing.

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen Xiaoping
(Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager of the Company, Mr.
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, Mr. Cai Shuguang, Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr.
Chen Tao, 3 Deputy General Managers of the Company as
well as the General Managers of the Investment Development
Department and Investment Management Department and the
responsible person of the Legal Compliance Department. The
Management Committee is responsible for the daily business
operation management work, formulates and implements
annual work task and medium-term development plan of the
Group. The Management Committee is the decision-making
body for day-to-day business activities and makes collective
decisions on major matters relating to the Group’s daily
business operation, management and personnel etc. The
general mandate in relation to the Management Committee has
been established in writing.

The Group has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries to the
directors, all directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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On 11 January 2012, China Everbright Environmental Energy
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
granted a 5-year term loan facility of US$100 million from ADB.
Under the said facility, it will be an event of default if CEH,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, ceases to be the
single largest shareholder of the Company holding at least
35% of the issued share capital of the Company. Upon the
occurrence of the said event, (i) the said facility, and (ii) a term
loan facility of US$100 million granted by ADB on 3 September
2009 for a term of up to 3 September 2019 (together with the
said facility, the “Facilities”)), and (iii) all accrued interest and
any other amounts accrued under the Facilities may become
immediately due and payable and/or payable on demand.

On 28 June 2012, the Company was granted a 3-year term
loan facility of up to an aggregate amount of HK$500 million by
an independent third party bank. Under the said facility, it will
be an event of default if CEH ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company (direct or indirect) or reduces
its shareholding in the Company to less than 35%. Upon the
occurrence of any of the above events, all amounts advanced
and outstanding under the said facility will become immediately
due and repayable.

As at 31 December 2013, the circumstances giving rise to the
obligations under Rules 13.18 of the Listing Rules continued to
exist.

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of HK5.0 cents
per share (2012: HK3.0 cents per share) to Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 9 May 2014. Subject to the approval by
the Shareholders of the final dividend at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, dividend warrants will be
dispatched to Shareholders on or about Friday, 30 May 2014.
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The register of members will be closed from Wednesday, 23
April 2014 to Monday, 28 April 2014, both days inclusive, on
which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for attendance of the annual general meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 April
2014.

The register of members will also be closed from Wednesday,
7 May 2014 to Friday, 9 May 2014, inclusive, on which no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 May 2014.

Note: The address of Tricor Tengis Limited will be changed to Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with effect
from 31 March 2014.

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the listed
securities of the Company by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 February 2014
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Keep the GREEN way
A 2 2 35

I ove the Earth
I .ove the Planet

we live in
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Sustainability Report
A EERERE

0 21,300

Injury and accident Visitors

Ifw&,uﬂl‘ 2 PN i

Achieved a zero injury and accident record for Over 21,800 visitors to our environmental
four consecutive years protection projects
HENFRINREEIERTEIMIGE RRIEENSEERAREIB21,800AK
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Cities Charitable foundations
A ] BERS

Organized activities to promote environmental Set up two charitable foundations in Hong Kong
science in 27 cities with more than 200,000 and China respectively to promote environmental
popularisation protection and community caring
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The Group commenced its environmental protection business
in 2003, and has been taking advantage of the opportunities
arising from the PRC’s comprehensive implementation of
scientific development and emphasis on energy conservation
and emissions reduction, environmental protection as well
as building a community with ecological balance, from which
the Group will take the responsibility to create a beautiful
environment and benefit the general public while at the same
time commit to the eco-mission and pay back the society.
Under the strong support from our parent company, China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited, the Group, after a
decade of Exploration, Deployment and Development and with
its quality professional management team working with the
philosophy of Integrity, Efficiency, Pragmatism and Innovation,
created a series of outstanding environmental protection
projects which are of first class quality, advanced technology,
high standard and outstanding efficiency, therefore setting
itself as a renowned brand that is highly regarded by the peers.

While environmental protection is the key for creating a
balance ecosystem, it is also crucial for the sustainable
development of the state. The Group will continue to actively
look for new development opportunities, enhance its effort
in research and development of environmental protection
technology, encourage innovation and make more significant
advancements with its environmental protection business so
as to serve for the environmental protection of people and
the health of community, to which it is fulfilling the social
responsibility of an environmental protection guard.

We strive for maintaining a good relationship with our
stakeholders through open communication in various formal
and informal occasions. A genuine stakeholder engagement
can enhance stakeholder receptiveness and credibility of the
sustainability report, and also strengthen trust between the
Company and our stakeholders. In December 2013, we invited
our key stakeholder groups including employees, government
officials, business partners, investors, and suppliers to
participate in stakeholder interviews. All participants were
invited to answer a few questions relating to the sustainability
performance of the Company and their expectations for the
sustainability report.

This is a brief sustainability section in the annual report. The
full version of sustainability report, in both English and Chinese
versions, will be available for public download from the website
of the Company at http://www.ebchinaintl.com by April 2014.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

We keep trying our biggest efforts, via advanced technology
and better management, to improve our operational efficiency
and thus reducing the level of emission. The air emission
performance of our waste-to-energy and biomass power
generation plants in the past three years:

EMISSIONS FROM WASTE-TO-ENERGY AND
BIOMASS POWER GENERATION PLANTS

RIREKRIR

BF—EZOTE  BHBEBRATERMLE
LERE  2NETEL M - EMBEFERE -
BPSREERMMENEREREREBE=FN
REBPEMRR

SR EBMA LD E R ERNBINE
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Total particulate matter (PM10) emissions were recorded as
116.42 tonnes in 2013, which is equivalent to a decrease of
11.18% compared to 2012.

Total SO, emissions were 443.12 tonnes in 2013, showing a
decrease of 25.68% compared to 2012.

Total NO, emissions were 2,177.44 tonnes in 2013, decreasing
9.81% from 2012.

B Particulate Matter (PM10)

Fitk ¥ (PM10)

B Sulphur Dioxide (SO,)
kY73

[0 Nitrogen Oxides (NO,)
fikrm

Year (4F)
2013

TE-ZFRNRYPMI0O)EEERE B116.42
W B —F— —FEH11.18% o

TE—ZF ERAHENRE 54431200 0 &
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The figures show the decreasing trend in the air emissions
arising from the operation of our waste-to-energy and biomass
power generation projects, which can be derived by advanced
environmental protection technology and improvement
of operation efficiency. As an environmental protection
enterprise, we strive to adopt high emission standard on our
environmental protection projects. All our waste-to-energy
projects meet the national standard for Pollution Control on
the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration (GB18485-2001),
Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants (GB16297-
1996), Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Thermal
Power Plants (GB13223-2003 & GB13223-2011), applicable
ADB guidelines, and stringent European Union’s emission
performance standards (Directive 2000/76/EC and relevant
Annexes/Amendments).

Government officials can monitor the air emissions data as our
gas emissions monitoring systems installed at each waste-
to-energy plant have been connected to the network of the
government’s environmental protection departments. In order
to improve the level of transparency and build up the public
confidence in our operation, LED display screens have been
installed outside the plants to provide instant air emissions
data to the nearby public.
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All waste water generated during the operation is treated via
on-site waste water treatment facilities. All our operating plants
comply with the stringent national waste water discharge
standards - Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB 8978-1996), as well as the requirements described in the
approved Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report. Our
operating plants are exercising their best effort to reuse waste
water as much as possible so as to minimize the consumption
of fresh water and achieve Zero Discharge of waste water.
In 2013, we recycled waste water of 6,787,140 m?® in our
operation, equivalent to 82% of our total water consumption.

While we keep maximizing our operation efficiency, we also look
for the best way to minimize our resource consumption and waste
generation. For bottom ash generated from waste-to-energy
projects, 91% of it was reused for making bricks. In addition, we
once again achieved a 100% recycling rate of fly ash and bottom
ash generated from the biomass power generation project. We
also successfully achieved a Zero Leachate Discharge from our
waste-to-energy projects since all leachate from waste-to-energy
projects was treated by our self-developed leachate system and
reused.

Proper treatment of sludge arising from our waste water
treatment plants is another key issue. We treat our sludge
in accordance with IFC’s General Environmental, Health and
Safety Guidelines and other applicable law and regulations.
In 2013, nearly half (47%) of the total sludge generated was
recycled. For sludge which eventually needs to be disposed of
at the landfill, we will reduce their water content and volume by
dewatering process onsite to alleviate landfill burden.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Safety is a core value in all aspects of our business, from
generating safe and green energy, to ensuring the highest
safety standards in our workplace. We are committed to
operating in a way that protects the health and safety of our
employees. We are happy to see we can successfully keep
our excellent safety record by achieving a zero injury and
accident record for four consecutive years. All our operating
project companies have developed occupational health and
safety management systems with internationally recognized
OHSAS 18001 (GB/T28001-2001) certification. We have also
developed a risk management system which identifies and
manages all potential risk associated with our operations.
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Project companies are required to convene a quarterly safety
meeting and the management officers are responsible for
overseeing daily health and safety issues. Safety inspections
are also organised on a regular basis to identify potential risks
associated with the operations and then develop prevention
and mitigation measures for those identified risks.

To build the capacity of our employees to tackle different
contingency scenarios timely and properly as well as improving
coordination among different teams and departments in
various situations, all our operating project companies are
required to conduct emergency drills and exercises on a
regular basis. In addition, we organised a series of health and
safety trainings, seminars and talk to raise our employees’
health and safety awareness.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

We are committed to develop close long-term relationship with
the community. As an environmental protection enterprise, we
are keen to leverage our technology and resources to spread
message of environmental protection. In September 2013,
National Science Popularisation Day was held across China
with the theme as Preserving an Ecological Environment and
Construction of a Beautiful China. Our project companies in
different provinces actively participated in this event by means
of exhibitions and seminars to introduce the technology of
waste-to-energy and waste water treatment as well as raising
the public awareness of recycling and other sustainable
resources utilization. We also supported other events such
as World Water Day and World Environment Day to promote
advance technology in environmental technology and raise the
public awareness on environmental protection.

In March 2013, our Shenzhen office established an exhibition
hall, which is one of the designated Science Popularisation
and Education Base in Shenzhen where different group of
people can visit and get hands on experience in environmental
protection. Moreover, our project companies in different
locations have been also designated as environmental
protection bases and play an active role in promoting
environmental protection awareness among schools and
community.

In 2013, there were over 21,800 visitors to our environmental
protection projects.
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CHARITABLE FOUNDATIONS

To further improve the efficiency of our community
programmes, we successfully set up Everbright International
Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation Company
Limited in Hong Kong in August 2013. The company will
manage the Everbright International Environmental Protection
Charitable Foundation and coordinate all our charitable
projects in environmental protection, environmental education,
energy-conservation, ecological conservation and community
caring. The foundation was officially started contributing funds
for support of environmental and social programmes in 2014.
More details will be reported in our next sustainability report.

Our project company in Suzhou is a co-founder of China
Everbright Environmental Protection Charitable Foundation
with Suzhou Environmental & Municipal Administration
Bureau and Suzhou Charity Federation. The foundation was
established in June 2013 and we will donate RMB1.5 million
annually to the foundation for helping Suzhou’s sanitation
workers and families who are facing difficulties and in need
of financial and emotional support. In September 2013, the
foundation provided its first batch of financial aid to 96 eligible
sanitation workers.

We established Everbright International True Love School in
September 2011 in Anhui Dangshan. The school has been
installed with state-of-art facility and teaching equipment
to provide students in Danghsan with pleasant learning
environment. Meanwhile, we have set up a True Love Fund
to provide the student with financial support and recognise
the outstanding students. In September 2013, we sent our
third batch of volunteers to Everbright International True
Love School as 6-month acting teachers to assist in teaching
English, fine art and music.
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The Group strives to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance as it believes good corporate governance
practices are increasingly important for maintaining and
promoting the confidence of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). It is crucial for the development of
the Group’s business and protection of the Shareholders’
interests. The Group upholds the management principle of
“People-oriented, pragmatism, creativity and systematic
management”, and through a set of rules and regulations,
has continuously strengthened internal controls and risk
management. Furthermore, by full and timely public disclosure
of information, the Group has maintained transparency and
accountability which also enhanced its corporate values. The
Board meets regularly and has set up Board committees,
namely Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Disclosure Committee
and Management Committee. For risk management, the
Group has set up a Risk Management Advisory Committee to
monitor and assess risk regularly, boost related management
standards and evaluate investment projects. Regarding
technological risk management, the Group has in place an
Engineering Technical Management Committee responsible
for assessing the technologies used in different investment
projects. For financial control, the Group insists on stringent
budget management, and has set up a Budget Approval
Management Committee that focuses on monitoring
construction budgets. In addition, the Group has also set up an
Internal Audit Department to perform internal audits to bolster
the Group’s management standard.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
has been duly adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

The Company has complied with the code provisions and most
of the recommended best practices of the CG Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2013 except for the following deviation.

The Chairman of the Company, was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 April
20183 (the “2013 AGM”) due to overseas commitment. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision of E.1.2 of the
CG Code which requires the Chairman to attend the annual
general meeting.
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE IN RELATION BT EERRAEZLERE
TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 55T
Composition and function ARERBE
The Board currently comprises 6 executive directors and 4 EES@BEBANUNITEERIBYFNTES
independent non-executive directors. #RK o
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of RAMBEEAREBEARABRE ANEETSKE
the report are set out on page 113 of the annual report and S HIIAFEHRANE113E - MREBENEEEKE
currently are follows: N
Name of Directors Title EEMA Bz
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tang Shuangning Chairman BEELLE E73
Mr. Zang Qiutao Vice-chairman BB LA e
Mr. Chen Xiaoping Chief Executive Officer BR/NE A 1TEARE,
Mr. Wang Tianyi General Manager TRERE S
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond  Chief Financial Officer HiREa S A B fsa gt
Mr. Cai Shuguang Deputy General Manager BN ILE Bliais
Independent Non-executive Directors HUHBTESF
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip Independent Non-executive BLBLE BYIERTES
Director
Mr. Selwyn Mar Independent Non-executive EamEeas B IEMITE SR
Director
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey Independent Non-executive THE Kt BN IENITES
Director
Mr. Zhai Haitao Independent Non-executive Bkt B IEHITES

Director




Corporate Governance Report (¥ &8 &

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition and function (continued)

Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Group’s affairs. The directors have disclosed to the Company
annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments. The Board believes that the balance between
executive directors and independent non-executive directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient balances that
protect the interests of the Shareholders and the Group.

Non-executive directors provide the Group with diversified
experience and professionalism. Their advices and views as
well as participation in the Board and committee meetings
bring independent view, advice and judgment on issues
relating to the strategy and development, business operation
and performance, risk control, conflict of interest etc, to ensure
the Shareholders’ interests are taken into consideration.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
subject to the manner of retirement by rotation of directors
as from time to time prescribed under the Listing Rules and
notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which any
director may be appointed or engaged, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held by separate individuals, with a view to maintain an
effective segregation of duties between the management of
the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business and operation.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. Under the
lead of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for approving
and supervising the overall strategy and policies of the Group,
approving annual budget and business plans, assessing
the Group’s performance and supervising the work of the
management. All directors have access to board papers and
related materials, and are provided with adequate information
on a timely manner. The directors of the Company may, if
necessary, seek legal or other independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition and function (continued)

In respect of regular board meetings and audit committee
meetings, the agenda is sent out to the directors at least
fourteen days before the meeting and the accompanying
papers are sent at least three days before the meeting for
information.

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s
authority and duties:

1.

2.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Tang Shuangning
(Chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and 5 executive
directors, namely Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Chen Xiaoping,
Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond and
Mr. Cai Shuguang. Its main duties include performing the
duties assigned by the Board as well as exercising the
authority and rights authorized by the Board. The general
mandate in relation to the Executive Committee in written
form has been established.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee did
not convene any meetings.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, currently comprising all 4
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Mr. Selwyn Mar (Chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip, Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey and Mr. Zhai Haitao,
is primarily responsible for reviewing the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as
discussing and reviewing the internal control and financial
reporting matters of the Group. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are disclosed on the website of the
Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee
has reviewed with the management and KPMG, the
Company’s auditors, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the
Group’s internal control and financial reporting matters,
including review of the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2012 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2013.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition and function (continued)
3. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhai
Haitao (Chairman), the independent non-executive
director, Mr. Chen Xiaoping, the Chief Executive Officer,
and 3 other independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Selwyn Mar
and Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey. It is primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on appointment
of directors regarding the qualification and competency of
the candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair
and transparent. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are disclosed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company and discussed and made
recommendation of the Board the re-election of the retiring
directors at the forthcoming 2014 annual general meeting
of the Company etc.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey (Chairman), the independent
non-executive director, Mr. Zang Qiutao, the Vice-
chairman of the Board, and 3 other independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Fan
Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Selwyn Mar and Mr. Zhai Haitao.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
which are disclosed on the website of the Company,
set out the duties of the Remuneration Committee,
including to determine, with delegated responsibilities,
the remuneration packages of the individual executive
directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration policy, assessed
performance of executive directors and approved the
remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management.

The remuneration of all the directors and their respective
interest in share options are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements and under the “share option scheme”
paragraph in the report of the directors of this Annual
Report respectively.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition and function (continued)

5. Disclosure Committee
The Disclosure Committee currently comprises Mr. Chen
Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager of the
Company, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, the Chief Legal Officer
and the Company Secretary of the Company. The Board
has delegated the day to day execution of its continuous
disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Committee to
ensure the compliance of the Company with its disclosure
obligations. The terms of reference of the Disclosure
Committee has been established in writing.

6. Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Chen
Xiaoping (Chairman), the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Mr. Wang Tianyi, the General Manager of the
Company, Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, Mr. Cai Shuguang,
Mr. Hu Yanguo and Mr. Chen Tao, 3 Deputy General
Managers of the Company as well as the General
Managers of the Investment Development Department
and Investment Management Department and the
responsible person of the Legal Compliance Department.
The Management Committee is responsible for the
daily business operation management work, formulates
and implements annual work task and medium-term
development plan of the Group. The Management
Committee is the decision-making body for day-to-day
business activities and makes collective decisions on major
matters relating to the Group’s daily business operation,
management and personnel etc. The general mandate
in relation to the Management Committee has been
established in writing.

Role of the Board

The Board directs and approved the overall strategies of the
Group. It is the ultimate decision making body of the Company
except for matters requiring the Shareholders’ approval in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has delegated day-to-day business of the Group to
the management. All committees established under the Board
have their specific terms of reference clearly defining their
powers and responsibilities.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy in
August 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of
the Board of the Company.

The Board recognizes the importance of having a diverse
Board in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate
governance. A diverse Board will include and make good use
of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, background and other qualities of directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) and does not discriminate on
the ground of race, age, gender or religious belief. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board and when possible should
be balanced appropriately.

The Nomination Committee of the Company has responsibility
for identifying and nominating for approval by the Board,
candidates for appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility
in assessing the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills
and diversity required on the Board and assessing the extent
to which the required skills are represented on the Board and
overseeing the Board succession.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and reporting to the Board in relation to Board diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Diversity Policy (continued)

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part,
dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and
other qualities. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity, including gender
diversity, is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any
measurable objectives to implement the board diversity policy.
However, it will consider and review the board diversity policy
and setting of any measurable objects from time to time.

Training for directors

Each newly appointed director would receive an induction
package covering the statutory and regulatory obligation of
a director of a listed company. The Company continuously
updates Directors the latest developments and changes to
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
and provides training to develop and refresh the directors’
knowledge and skills. During the year under review, the
Company provided Directors with monthly updates on the
performance, position and prospects of the Company.
Moreover, the Company provides Directors with monthly
analysis report on the Company’s stock price performance and
monthly journal of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training
record in order to assist the Directors to record the training that
have undertaken.

A seminar was organised for Directors in December 2013 to
give a brief introduction on the New Companies Ordinance.
Individual director had also attended seminars and/or
conferences or workshops or forums relevant to his profession
and duties as directors. Moreover, the Company had
conducted a site visit for independent non-executive directors
on our Ningbo Waste-to-energy Project in October 2013 so as
to allow them to have a better understanding on the Group’s
project under construction.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Training for directors (continued)

Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received
during the year under review:

EE34C )
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Type of trainings

Name of Directors BEMA sl
Mr. Tang Shuangning BEEEE A,C
Mr. Zang Qiutao IR E A,C
Mr. Chen Xiaoping BR/NF S AB,C
Mr. Wang Tianyi FTRELE A,C
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =R A A,B,C
Mr. Cai Shuguang BN K4 A,B,C
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip BLBLE A.C,D
Mr. Selwyn Mar BREREE A,C,D
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEESLE AC,D
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEsEAE A,C

A: attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums

B: giving talks at seminars/conferences

C: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the
economy, environmental protection business or director’s

duties and responsibilities etc

D: attending site visit arranged by the Company

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:
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B HBERmT

Remuneration bands (HK$) Number of persons A% 4R B (FBEETT)
L

$1,000,001 to $1,500,000
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000

—_ a0 =

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements, respectively.

1,000,0017c%21,500,0007T
1,500,0017t£2,000,0007T
2,000,001 7C%£2,500,0007T
2,500,001 7C%£3,000,0007T
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NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
RATE OF DIRECTORS

The following shows the number of regular board meetings and
committee meetings held during the year under review as well
as the attendance rate of the Directors.

ESELREBEEERRBNEESH

IR EK

TRETHEFEARRAMBITNEHESS
REZEEGRRBREENHFERK -

Attendance rate H R
Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Disclosure  Management
Name of Directors Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
BEMH g BTi%EYg REZEY® FMWEEg KEZE® EEEZEE
I —

Mr. Tang Shuangning 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
EEESL A TiEH TiEA NiE A @A TE A
Mr. Zang Qiutao 5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A N/A
AR SE A TiEA TiEA iE T E A
Mr. Chen Xiaoping 5/5 N/A 11 N/A 1/1 11/11
BR/NF e A TEA TiE A
Mr. Wang Tianyi 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 9/11
FTRERE TiEmA TiE A TEHA
Mr. Wong Kam Chung,

Raymond 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11 11/11
Ebi) e TiEmA TiEA TiE A
Mr. Cai Shuguang 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 10/11
BB TiEA TiE A TEA TiEmA
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip Nt 5/5 3/3 1/1 N/A N/A N/A
BBk AER TEH TiEM A3
Mr. Selwyn Mar 5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A
ShaktE TiEmM TiEmM
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 4/5 3/3 0/1 0/1 N/A N/A
TEE KA T @A TiEA
Mr. Zhai Haitao 5/5 3/3 11 11 N/A N/A
BeEkE @A TE A

Note: Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip was appointed as a member of Remuneration
Committee on 27 February 2014.
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THE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
BETWEEN THE CHAIRMAN AND

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
should be separate. The Chairman’s responsibility is
to manage the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility is to manage the Company’s business. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is clearly established.

The main duties of the Chairman include providing leadership
for and overseeing the functioning of the Board; formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company; ensuring
that all directors of the Board are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and giving each director an
opportunity to express his view at board meetings; ensuring
that directors receive adequate information, which must be
complete and reliable, in a timely manner; ensuring that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities;
ensuring that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely manner; drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting taking into account, where
appropriate, any matters proposed by the other directors
for inclusion in the agenda; taking responsibility for ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established; encouraging all directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company; ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole; and
facilitating the effective contribution of directors and ensuring
constructive relations between executive directors and non-
executive directors.

The duties of the Chief Executive Officer include taking
responsibility for the Group’s operation and management;
implementing decisions and plans approved by the Board;
making day-to-day operational and managerial decision; and
coordinating overall business operations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The current 4 independent non-executive directors of the
Company hold office for a term until 31 December 2015. They
are subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors are independent (except
that for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under Rule 3.13(7), he had
been a non-executive director prior to his re-designation as
the independent non-executive director of the Company)
and the Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Independent non-executive directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing names of the
directors of the Board. An updated list of the directors of the
Board identifying the independent non-executive directors and
the roles and functions of the directors is maintained on the
websites of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Group has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all directors had
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the
Company and reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer. She is responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters. For the year under review,
the Company Secretary has obtained the practitioner’s
endorsement certificate for 2013/14 issued by The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and confirmed she has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year under review, there was no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on their audit, on the Company’s financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the Company, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and for no other
purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of the independent
auditor’s report.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, KPMG, the
Group’s external auditors, also carried out interim review of
the Group’s results and provided other financial services in
compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and
the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, KPMG, the external
auditors received the following remuneration from the Group in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services
to the Group:
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g REEMETRE I RBARENAS - Y
T E AR ERABEAE -

AEBENIMNEZBENRE TSR EBA - KR
BEREHREZRB - TEHASENPHES
Ko AN S BIR IR b T 160 Ko B 3k GRAA) 7T 8145151
7 MR EL A B A AR A

HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HILFER ML
ZHMES B EBAIRHEZLIFER
RIS T AN E M RE TSI S

2013
—E—=F
HK$’ 000
BET T

Annual audit services and interim review services FEEZRE R EHFHZEERS 3,900
Other services H b AR 7% 6
3,906
INTERNAL CONTROL A 2B BS 42
The Board has full responsibility for the Group’s internal ZEZSE®2HABAEENANEZERSE - 215

control system, which includes the establishment of a
defined management structure with specified limits of
authority. The system is designed to help the achievement of
business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication and
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulation. The
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

AIERRE AN ER A BB A EBIZERER
BiR REBENARKSRBERAHHE - #R
FHIEEE SRR ENM B ERHERED
Bk NN - WHERE TR BDAGIE SRR -
FEERGAI SR (BAFRE)RETGHER
EXRKRERMEER -
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
The key procedures that the Board established to provide
effective internal controls are as follows:

Organisational Structure

An appropriate organisational structure is in place with
defined operating policies and procedures as well as
responsibility and lines of authority.

Authority and Control

The executive directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities to carry
out the corporate strategies and policies and the related
matters formulated by the Board.

Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting

The Group implements budget management, and financial
budget is executed upon approval by the Board. Relevant
procedures have been established to assess, review and
approve major capital and recurrent expenditures, and
regular review and comparison between operating results
and the budget are made.

The Group has established appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure the keeping of accurate and
complete accounting and management records on a timely
basis. Examination and review are carried out regularly to
ensure that the financial statements are properly prepared
in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations.

Internal Auditing

The Group has its Internal Audit Department, which has
regularly conducted internal audit to review whether the
internal control procedures are implemented appropriately.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system. This review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, and
also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget. Any internal control weaknesses detected
by the Internal Audit Department of the Company will
be reported to the Audit Committee members and
the management of the Company. Accordingly, the
management will take remedial actions and the Internal
Audit Department will subsequently follow up and review
whether the remedial actions are in place. The Company
has established a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees of the Company to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters.

B ESHE (42)
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors confirm that they are responsible for the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements.

The Finance Management Department of the Company is
taken charge by the Chief Financial Officer. With the assistance
of the Finance Management Department, the directors
ensure that the Group’s financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and
applicable accounting principles.

A statement by KPMG, the auditors of the Company, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Group is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 123 to 124.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company recognizes the importance of good
communications with the Shareholders and the investment
community and also recognizes the value of providing current
and relevant information to Shareholders and the investors.
The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation
to the Shareholders’ communication, with the objective
of ensuring the Shareholders and investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to current and relevant
information about the Company.

The Company maintains on-going dialogue with Shareholders
to communicate with them and encourage their participation
through annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered Shareholders are notified by post for the
Shareholders’ meetings. Notice of meeting contains agenda,
proposed resolutions and postal voting form.

All registered Shareholders are entitled to attend annual and
extraordinary general meetings, provided that their shares have
been recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to Shareholders and
the annual general meeting of the Company provides a forum
for Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board,
which together help enhance and facilitate communication
with Shareholders. Shareholders who are unable to attend a
general meeting may complete and return to the Company’s
Share Registrar the proxy form enclosed with notice of meeting
to give proxy to their representatives, another shareholder or
chairman of the meetings.

BRI HRARTAENET
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-
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CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY

GENERAL MEETING ON REQUISITION

BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to section 566 of the new Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“New Companies
Ordinance”), the members of the Company representing at
least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having
a right to vote at general meetings may request the directors
to call a general meeting. The request must state the general
nature of business to be dealt with at the meeting and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The request may
consist of several documents in like form and may be sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and must
be authenticated by the person(s) making it.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the request proceed duly to convene a general
meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on
which the notice convening a general meeting is given, the
members concerned or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a general meeting, provided that the general meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from such date.

The general meeting convened by such members shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSAL AT ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to section 615 of the New Companies Ordinance,
the members of the Company may request the Company to
give, to members of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the annual general meeting, notice of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting. The request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form and must identify the resolution
of which notice is to be given, be authenticated by the person
or persons making it and be received by the Company not later
than 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relates; or if later, the time at which notice is given of
that meeting.
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&Pl ) FE566H  EERNBRRAS LERENE
BRRAKERZVERNARFRR - ATEK
EEARBRRAE - FRAZRELAIAKNE
FRENEEOABME  YABEENE LE
EHRARNELBBNREZRAT - BAZRK
SRS Z M AT - WAIBBEEAR
BAHEFEABARFRLE - BXAKLREY
FEHRMANLTHZE ©

MEEEZEREFHBHEF _+—KRA K
BEARABRRASBMNERL AR -_T/\XA
ZHABR—RBRRAE @ MIZFHELALEEE
BERA—FNEBRRENFBRLA - TETTERA
BERAE - Btk BRMNBERAE NMEE LR
KA MR =@ AEMEERTT -

MEBARRARNKRRERRS
EZARBRRAGN T AERM -

ABABEARAE

RERBAFA S LREZER

RIBF R REPIE6151K » AR BPRRAT ZRKA
NEIAAREDBERAFASBENRRE LR
AEAET MBRAZERNBRRABFAEG LE
EPRIEN G LBE - AHERENEBEE
ARAREFHARMARERYE - LAFAHT
BHBEMIURESR - ABBKRREREROA
THE URARRBANERBRRRBFEA
SRITAHANEAERR(WER) FHRRABSF
AREBENEHXEFHELE -



Corporate Governance Report (¥ &8 &

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSAL AT ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING (continued)

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has received
the requests from (a) members representing at least 2.5% of
the total voting rights of all the members who have a right to
vote on the resolution to which the request relate; or (b) at least
50 members who have a relevant right to vote on the resolution
to which the request relate.

PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION

AS A DIRECTOR

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s
website at www.ebchinaintl.com.

2013 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the 2013 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including re-
election of each retiring directors. All resolutions were duly
passed by Shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the
meeting. The Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the
2013 AGM due to overseas commitment. Certain directors
and members of committees attended the meeting to answer
questions of Shareholders. The Company announced the
results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing
Rules. No other general meeting was held during 2013. The
attendance record of the Directors at the general meeting is set
out below:

REREFAE LREZER@E)

ARBEREBEETIALTHELNERER - B
REBERBE - QHARILEARARRERENERE
BREIEERED2E5%MIE  H(0)ELDE0H
BAVBEABRRREROBRE -

REERALIREE SRS

BRRAENATEREEENREF  BL2EARQ
A I www.ebchinaintl.com R 2 E R E o H

R -

—E—FRERBAFKRE
RIE—=ZFREBAFRY  ETEREFEBIH
FIHERREBIRER - HPREEESRE
B -TERAZRERREUARERAFNES -
EEeXrRRAA BN ERTEEREMAELFE
EZ-=FRFBAFAE  URBHESEREZES
KB R RO ERREANER - KAQRIREL
MRAMENITRAMGBEERAGLER - K 2F
—ZHEFERISBRITEMBERAS  EF L
FBIRERE 28T

General meeting attended/held

Directors o HREAGRE, 2HRE R
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Tang Shuangning EEESLE 0/1
Mr. Zang Qiutao IR L £ 1/1
Mr. Chen Xiaoping PR /N SE A 1/1
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELRE 1/1
Mr. Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =IREASL A 1/1
Mr. Cai Shuguang ERENR LA 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors HUIMTEE

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip SBIEEEAE 1/1
Mr. Selwyn Mar BRESE 1/1
Mr. Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey TEELE 0/1
Mr. Zhai Haitao BEELAE 1/1
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
The Company recognizes the importance of efficient and
effective communications with the investor community.
Briefings and meetings with institutional investors are
conducted regularly to provide them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information about the Group’s development.
Besides, the Company facilitates the initiation and coverage
of the Company published by research analysts of well-
received investment banks which are instrumental in providing
investors with independent and professional evaluations of
the Company. Moreover, the Group participates in different
international forums and overseas non-deal roadshows
to elaborate on the Group’s business development plans
to global investors. Furthermore, the Company arranges
site visits for investors and media to our key projects in
China. Last but not least, the Company has established a
function dedicated to investor relations and engaged an
external public relations company to take care of investor
relations matters. The Company also maintains a website
(http://www.ebchinaintl.com) which renders Shareholders,
investors and the general public direct access to the
information of the Company on a timely basis.

In order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow them to engage actively with
the Company, a shareholders communication policy of the
Company has been established. Shareholders may at any time
send their enquiries and concerns to the Company via the
Company’s website at www.ebchinaintl.com. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS

Operating projects

Project
ER

Suzhou Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |
FMAUREBEE —H

Suzhou Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |l
FMAREBEE —H

Suzhou Waste-to-energy
Project Phase lll
FMARESIEE =4

Yixing Waste-to-energy

IRIREEIRIE B
EZEA
Daily Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Type of investment BRe operation ARERE FREE
REER (AR¥7) BXEEH (W) (TRE)
|
BOT for 28 years 489,443,000 July 2006 1,050 >100,000,000
BOT 284 ZZTRFLA
Same as Suzhou Waste-to- 450,000,000 June 2009 1,000 >100,000,000
energy Project Phase | ZZTNERRA
MR EER
— 48R
Same as Suzhou 750,000,000 January 2013 1,500 >158,000,000
Waste-to-energy Project “E-=F—f
Phase | & Phase Il
SEMNRETER
— R H1ER
BOT for 28 years 238,300,000 June 2007 500 >45,000,000
BOT 28%F S

Project Phase |
HESREEEA —H

Suzhou

Waste-to-energy

Project Phase |, Il and |lI
BM R EEIEA
—Hy - ZHIR=H3
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)
Operating projects (continued)

Total
investment
(RMB)
Project Type of investment BrRE
5H REER (AR¥R)

IRIRBERIAR (#)

Jiangyin Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 388,740,000
Project Phase | BOT 30%F

TEAREEER

Jiangyin Waste-to-energy BOT for 27 years 205,000,000
Project Phase Il BOT 274

T REEER —H

Changzhou Waste-to-energy ~ BOT for 25.5 years 412,560,000
Project BOT 25.5%

BEMaREEEE

Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 413,338,000
Project Phase | BOT 30

BETNREEEE -1

Jinan Waste-to-energy BOT for 25 years 900,920,000
Project BOT 25%

EEAREEEA

Sugian Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 324,152,000
Project BOT 304

BERAREEER

BEEE (4)
Daily Annual power
processing generation
Date of capacity capacity
commercial (tonne) (kWh)
operation REERE ERES
BXELH (W) (TR&)
May 2008 800 >77,000,000
“2T\§1A
March 2011 400 >37,000,000
—T—%=AH
November 2008 800 >77,000,000
“BRN\FF-A
August 2011 1,000 >91,000,000
—T—%)/\A
October 2011 2,000 >188,000,000
“E——%1R
December 2011 600 >64,000,000
“T—5+ZH

Zhenjiang

Waste-to-energy
Project

HTHIRFEEIRR
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)

Projects under construction or in preparatory stage

Project
ER

Nanjing Waste-to-energy
Project
MRSREEER

Ningbo Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |

FRAAFTAA

Pizhou Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |
BMaRESER —H

Sanya Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |
“oNREEEA -8

Shouguang Waste-to-energy
Project Phase |
SHNREEEA -

Weifang Waste-to-energy

RIRBERIAR (#)

EEREEEEPER
Daily Annual power
Total processing  generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Type of investment BrE operation HEEHRE EFREE
REER (AR%T) [EELE]= (1) (TRE)
|
BOT for 30 years 1,030,218,000 2014 (expected) 2,000 >220,000,000
BOT 304 “T-ME(ES)
BOT for 30 years 560,000,000 2014 (expected) 1,000 >112,000,000
BOT 304 “T-ME(BH)
BOT for 30 years 329,800,000 2014 (expected) 600 >71,000,000
BOT 30F “T-WE(EH)
BOT for 27 years 425,646,000 2014 (expected) 700 >75,000,000
BOT 274 “T-ME(RH)
BOT for 26 years 338,531,000 2014 (expected) 600 >80,000,000
BOT 26 “T-ME(RH)
BOT for 30 years 585,600,000 2015 (expected) 1,000 >122,000,000
BOT 304 —T-nF(EH)

Project Phase |
H R EEIEA —

Nanjing
Waste-to-energy

. Project
A RBIIREEBIRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)

RIRBERIER (#)

Projects under construction or in preparatory stage

(continued)
Daily Annual power
Total processing generation
investment Date of capacity capacity
(RMB) commercial (tonne) (kWh)
Project Type of investment BRE operation FEERE §RE=E
HH REEH (AE¥ ) B¥EER (W) (TRE)
|
Yixing Waste-to-energy Same as Yixing 150,843,000 2015 (expected) 300 >31,000,000
Project Phase |l Waste-to-energy “Z-RF(EH)
HENREEBRR —H Project Phase |
BERNRETER
— R
Wujiang Waste-to-energy BOO for 30 years 890,000,000 2015 (expected) 1,500 >146,000,000
Project BOO 304 —T-nF(EY)
RIINFEERR
Boluo Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 416,959,000 2014 (expected) 700 >91,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 30%F “T-WE(EE)
BENRESEN B
Huidong Waste-to-energy BOT for 29 years 334,405,000 2015 (expected) 600 >104,000,000
Project BOT 294 “T-RF(EH)
BRARESER
Ninghai Waste-to-energy BOT for 28 years 360,000,000 2015 (expected) 700 >80,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 284 “E-RE(ES)
ESNREEEE
Rizhao Waste-to-energy BOT for 25 years 349,631,000 2015 (expected) 600 >71,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 254 —“E-RE(EH)
RRNREERE —H
Zhenjiang Waste-to-energy Same as Zhenjiang Waste- 200,000,000 2015 (expected) 400 >45,000,000
Project Phase Il to-energy Project Phase | “E-RF(EH)
HTREERE — 4 BETHREERE
—HiAm
Heze Waste-to-energy BOT for 30 years 350,000,000 2016 (expected) 600 >64,000,000
Project Phase | BOT 30 “E-NF(EH)

SRR EER —H

HEREEBEPIERE (F)
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)  IR{REEIRIE B (4&)

Operating projects EEIEF
Total Designed storage
investment Date of capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?) Annual Processing
Project Type of investment aKeE operation WERRRE capacity (tonne)
BB REEH (AR®T) BXELH (LAK) FRERE(H)
'
Suzhou Industrial Solid Waste BOT for 30 years 118,100,000 July 2007 512,000 40,000
Landfill Project (Phase land ~ BOT 304 “ZTLELA
Phase Il) (Phase )
#M T X EREYEEER (—#)
(—BR=H)
November 2011
%14
(Phase )
(=8)
Sugian Hazardous Solid Waste ~ BOO for 25 years 99,090,000 January 2013 340,000 20,000
Landfil Project Phase | BOO 25 ZZ-=F-4

FREHREER 4
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)  B{RELRIBE (£)

Projects under construction or in preparatory stage EEZGEEEETPIER
Total Designed storage
investment Date of capacity
(RMB) commercial (m3) Annual processing
Project Type of investment agg operation REERTRE capacity (tonne)
| REEH (AR%7T) H¥EZR (XHX) FRERE ()
|
Guanyun Hazardous Solid Waste  BOT for 25 years 109,150,000 2014 (expected) 300,000 20,000
Landfill Project Phase | BOT 256 “E-ME(EH)
EEREESEA—H
Binhai Hazardous Solid BOT for 20 years 186,000,000 2014 (expected) 600,000 30,000
Waste Landfill Project BOT 20§ “T-ME(RE)
BBLEERER
Zibo Integrated Hazardous Solid ~ BOO for 50 years 400,000,000 2016 (expected) N/A Annual incineration
Waste Treatment Project BOO 50% ZE-RE(EH)  TER processing
MEERTAREEE capacity: 40,000
Annual physico-
chemical
processing
capacity: 50,000
ERBERIE : 40,000
EMMLEIE - 50,000
Shouguang Integrated Hazardous BOO for 25 years 157,000,000 2016 (expected) 500,000 20,000
Solid Waste Treatment Project BOO 254 RN (EE)
SheEGRREER
Lianyungang Suzukigumi N/A 80,240,000 2014 (expected N/A Annual industrial
Hazardous Waste TNER completion of TER hazardous
Treatment Project acquisition) waste treatment
(Acquisition and upgrade) “F-WF(EE capacity: 9,000
EZARAAERREER TRE) Annual medical
(KB RABRKE) waste treatment
capacity: 1,650
EIXERRE
9,000
FEEEMRE

1,650



94 China Everbright International Limited B ¥ KB AR AR

Project Highlights « J§ H $i§ 2

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS IRIR/KFIE B
Operating projects E®IEE
Total Daily waste water
investment Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment are operation ASkEEER
BB REER (AR®T) HEEER (YHX)

Qingdao Waste Water Treatment Project BOT/TOT for 25 years 356,000,000 January 2005 220,000
(Haibohe & Maidao Plants) BOT/TOT 254 “EERE—F  (Maidao Extension Project
FETKEEER completed in July 2007)
(BBTRESHK) (RBERER
RZZZHFLARK)
Zibo Waste Water Treatment Project TOT for 25 years 354,276,000 November 2005 250,000
(Southern and Northern Plants) TOT 25% (Including investment of “ZTHF+-F  (Upgrading work
METKEERA RMB130,221,000 for completed in May 2008)
(BB EILH) upgrading work) (AAETRE
(EREARSEIRRER RZZZNEFRATH)
AR#130,221,0007C)
Zibo High-tech Zone Waste Water BOT for 25 years 150,000,000 September 2007 100,000
Treatment Project BOT 254 “ETLENA
HEEHNRSKEEHER
Zibo Zhoucun Waste Water BOT for 25 years 70,000,000 November 2009 40,000
Treatment Project BOT 254 Z2ENET-A
Bk EEER

Zibo Waste Water
Treatment

Project
E IR /KEEIEIE B
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) IR{R/KIEIEH (&)

Operating projects (continued) ERIER (&
Total Daily waste water
investment Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment  #1R%E operation RSkEEE
EH REER (AR%7) HEEZR (LAX)
'
Binzhou Boxing Waste Water TOT/BOT for 25 years 85,000,000 Phase I - April 2008 60,000
Treatment Project TOT/BOT 254 (Including investment of —H-—FZ\FMA (ncreased from
EMNERSKEERS RMB65,500,000 for Upgrading work - 30,000 mé to 60,000 m?
upgrading work of Phase | December 2008 upon completion of
and construction of Phase I) FHRBE T2~ Phase Il in June 2009)

(AE—BRGER_BER —TENET-F  (CETAENA BTN
TiE AR H65,500,0007T) Phase Il - June 2009 BiETR% » }30,0001
“H-"FFNERA  HKEMZE60,00035K)

Jinan Waste Water Treatment TOT for 30 years 707,000,000 November 2006 500,000
Project (Plant 1 and Plant 2) TOT 304 (Including investment of “EERET-AR (Increased from
BEKRRER (—BR ) RMB287,000,000 for 420,000 tonnes to
upgrading and extension work 500,000 tonnes upon
for Plant 1 and Plant 2) completion of extension
(BE-BRZBARSEREE work in May 2009)
TRIREARE287,000,0007) (ZEZNFRATRER
T84 - F3420,0008
# 1Z500,000)
Jinan Licheng Waste Water BOT for 28 years 138,000,000 October 2009 100,000
Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase |~ BOT 284 “ETNETA

BERERKRERR (ZK) 8

Jinan Waste Water

Treatment

Project
Br)5KEEIEE
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EMNEEA KRR R —

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) IRIR/KIEIER (£&)
Operating projects (continued) E®EE (&)
Total Daily waste water
investment Date of treatment capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?3)
Project Type of investment A% %& operation ASkKEEE
R REER (AR¥7) BXELH (XAK)
|
Jinan Xike Waste Water BOT for 26 years 72,680,000 June 2010 30,000
Treatment Project (Plant 4) BOT 264 “E-TERA
EREESKERER (M)
Ling County Waste Water BOT for 30 years 58,000,000 June 2010 30,000
Treatment Project (Plant 2) BOT 304 ZE-TFRA
EERKEEEE (ZK)
Ling County Waste Water TOT for 30 years 33,720,000 June 2010 30,000
Treatment Project (Plant 1) TOT 304 “Z-ZF1A
BESKRERE (—H)
Jiangyin Waste Water Treatment TOT for 30 years 530,266,000 January 2008 190,000
Project (Acquisition and upgrade)  TOT 305 “ZE\F—A
IRAkEEAR
(KR RE)
Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste Water BOT for 25 years 150,270,000 September 2013 75,000
Treatment Project Phase | BOT 254 —T-=FHA

Dezhou Nanyunhe
Waste Water

Treatment Project
1= N EE 8 A
J5IKEEIEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued)

Operating projects (continued)

Project
HR

Total
investment
(RMB)

Type of investment ##R%E

REEH (AE®T)

RIRKIEIAR (48)
EEW|A (&)

Daily waste water

Date of treatment/water supply
commercial capacity (m?)

operation ASKEE,/ HKE
B¥EER (LX)

Jinan Licheng Waste Water
Treatment Project (Plant 3) Phase Il

BRERAKEEER (Z/) =4

Zibo Reusable Water Project
Phase |
MERKIER —H

Jinan Licheng Reusable
Water Project

BEES KRR

Jiangyin Reusable Water Project

TeHKER

Same as Jinan Licheng 195,000,000

Waste Water

Treatment

Project (Plant 3)

Phase |
BERER KRR

HE (=) — 28R
BOO for 20 years 44,000,000
BOO 20%

BOO for 24 years 31,061,000
BOO 24

BOO for 25 years 73,067,000
BOO 254

November 2013 100,000
—E-=F1-A

September 2011 4,800

“E——%NA
September 2011 42,000
“Z—%NA
January 2013 10,000
“ET-=F—f
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ENVIRONMENTAL WATER PROJECTS (continued) IRRKFEIEE (#8)
Transferred project 2BREH
Daily waste water
Total treatment/water supply
investment capacity
(RMB) Date of (m?)
Project Type of investment BRE transfer AEKEE k&
A REEH (AR¥7) BXBH (LX)
|
Xinyi BT Waste Water BT for 4 years 62,150,000 October 2010 10,000
Treatment Project Phase | BT 45 —E-ZE+R
MTBTSKEREE — 4
Xinyi BT Surface Water Project BT for 8 years 385,110,000 June 2013 100,000
HTBTHA KRR BT 845 —2-=£%A
Projects under construction or in preparatory stage EEREREEEFTER
Daily waste water
Total treatment/water supply
investment Date of capacity
(RMB) commercial (m?)
Project Type of investment BRE operation ASkEE/#iE
EH REEH (AR¥7) HEELR (LFX)
|
Dezhou Nanyunhe Waste Water BOT for 25 years 79,977,000 2014 (expected) 75,000
Treatment Project Phase |l BOT 25% “T-NE(ES)
EMEEKERER 8
Zhangqiu Waste Water Treatment BOT for 30 years 60,700,000 2014 (expected) 30,000
Project BOT 304 —Z-mE(RE)
BKREREE
Ling County Waste Water Treatment ~ TOT for 30 years 14,314,000 2014 (expected) 30,000
Project Plant 1 (upgrade) TOT 304 “T-ME(ES)
BESKEEE B —BARSE
Zibo Reusable Water Project Phase Il Same as Zibo Reusable 11,000,000 2014 (expected) 4,800

JaEmKER Z 5

Water Project Phase |

EHBTACRE — R

“T-ME(EE)
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ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS $acRIE B
Operating projects E%EE
Total Annual power
investment Date of generation capacity
(RMB) commercial (kWh)
Project Type of investment &% %& operation EREE
R REER (AR# ) HxEER (TEB)
|
Suzhou Methane-to-energy BOO for 25 years 27,940,000 August 2006 >18,000,000
Project Phase | BOO 254 —ETREN\A
HNBREBTEE —H
Suzhou Methane-to-energy Same as Suzhou 12,750,000 September 2008 >9,000,000
Project Phase I Methane-to-energy “EZNFNA
HMNBREZERE =1 Project Phase |
BN AREEIER
—HER
Shenzhen Rooftop BOO for 25 years 27,917,000 November 2010 >1,480,000
Photovoltaic Energy Project BOO 25% —Z-ZTF+-A
FYIBTEAREERE
Zhenjiang Ground Photovoltaic BOO for 25 years 73,490,000 December 2010 >4,059,000
Energy Project BOO 254 —T-FE+_A
BIMENAEEIER
Sugian Rooftop Photovoltaic BOO for 25 years 52,720,000 December 2010 >2,205,000
Energy Project Phase | BOO 25 —Z-TF+ZA

EBERAREERAE —H

German Ground
Photovoltaic Energy

Project
B b NTTRIA VN
EEIEE
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Project
BHE

German Ground Photovoltaic
Energy Project
EEELREEIEA

Changzhou Rooftop Photovoltaic
Energy Project
EMETEXAREEER

Zhenjiang Rooftop Photovoltaic
Energy Project
BIERAAEERA

Sugian Rooftop Photovoltaic
Energy Project Phase I
BREREANEEEA M

Zibo Heat Pump Project Phase |
MEERIAR —H

Huaining Ground Photovoltaic
_Energy Project
BEWERAEEIAR

Dangshan Biomass Power
Generation Project
BILEMEREEER

Zibo Ceramic Technology
Development Park
Heat Pump Project

HIBREEARER

Project Highlights « J& [H 42

ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)

Operating projects (continued)

Total investment

FECIRTE R (&)
BEEE (4)

Annual power
generation capacity

(RMB) Date of commercial (kWh)
Type of investment  #i1R%& operation EREE
REER (AR® ) HMEEZR (TEE)

|

BOO for 20 years 68,360,000 September 2011 >3,611,000
BOO 20%F —Z——%NA
BOO for 25 years 79,213,000 December 2011 >4,112,500
BOO 254 —T——%+ZA
BOO for 25 years 236,095,000 December 2011 >11,680,000
BOO 254 —T——%+ZA
BOO for 25 years 142,109,000 December 2011 >6,198,000
BOO 25% —T—%+ZA
BOO for 30 years 57,887,000 December 2011 N/A
BOO 30%F —T—%+ZA A
BOO for 26 years 50,470,000 May 2011 >2,170,000
BOO 26%F —Z——%AA
BOO for 30 years 312,468,000 September 2011 >184,000,000
BOO 304 —E——%NA
BOO for 30 years 93,110,000 November 2013 N/A
BOO 304 “T—=%+—A4 A

Dangshan
Biomass Power

Generation Project
ZILAEYE R

HEIRA
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ALTERNATIVE ENERGY PROJECTS (continued)

Projects under construction or in preparatory stage

Project
R

Hanshan Biomass Power
Generation Project
ZILEMEREERE

Xinyi Biomass Power
Generation Project
FOTEMEREEER

Shuyang Biomass
Cogeneration Project
M EME R ERHIAR

Linyi Biomass Power
Generation Project
REAVERETER

Laiyang Biomass Power
Generation Project

Total investment

HEERIAR (&)
HEREEBZHIAE

Annual power
generation capacity

(RMB) Date of commercial (kWh)
Type of investment #RE operation FEREE
REEH (AR%T) BHEEZA (FRE)
|

BOO for 25 years 320,000,000 2014 (expected) >184,000,000
BOO 254 “T-WE(EE)
BOO for 25 years 321,040,000 (construction temporarily >184,000,000
BOO 25%F postponed)

(BEER)
BOO for 25 years 339,610,000 (construction temporarily Power £
BOO 25% postponed) >172,250,000 KWh T FL

(B&ER) Heat 8

> 390,000 tonnes M

BOO for 25 years 320,000,000 (construction temporarily >184,000,000
BOO 25%F postponed)

(BEER)
BOO for 25 years 320,000,000 (construction temporarily >184,000,000
BOO 25%F postponed)

(BEER)

REEMERERERR

ik
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION RREEER
INDUSTRIAL PARKS

Expected number

Environmental Protection Industrial Parks Investment amounts of projects
RREXE REHE EEEHE
|
Suzhou Everbright National Demonstrative Veinous Industrial Park RMB3.3 billion >10
FNHARBRFRESRREE ARE33ET

Zhenjiang Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park RMB2.0 billion 6-8
HIMEARREXE ARB20{ET

Sugian Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park RMB1.6 billion 6-8
BEMAARRERE ARB16(ET

Changzhou Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park RMBH1 billion 9
BMNTARRRERE ARB10ET

Weifang Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park RMB3.7 billion >10

T RARRREXE ARBITET

Yixing Everbright Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park HK$2-3 billion >10
HEMARNRRFMESE B #20-301E T

Nanjing Everbright Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park RMB4.2 billion >10
BRTEARRFREZE AEE42ET

Zhenjiang New District Everbright Environmental Protection Industrial Park  RMB2 billion 6-8
BIMEAARREXE AR#B20(ET

Lianyungang Xuwei New District Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park  RMBO.6 billion >10
BEBRITHRRAFRERE ARK6IET

Ganzhou Everbright Environmental Protection Veinous Industrial Park RMB2 billion >10
BINAARRRFRELE ARE20ET

Suzhou Everbright

National Demonstrative
Veinous Industrial Park
NP PNETEN-
EFERER
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Directors and Senior Management

HELAREBEHAR

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

TANG SHUANGNING - CHAIRMAN

aged 59, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Tang is the
representative of the 12th National People’s Congress and the
Vice-chairman of the Agriculture and Rural Affairs Committee
of the 12th National People’s Congress. He is also the
Chairman of China Everbright Group Limited, China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited and China Everbright Bank
Company Limited. Mr. Tang is also the Director of Everbright
Securities Company Limited, Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance
Company Limited and the Chairman of China Everbright
Limited. He also serves as the Vice Chairman of China Society
for Finance and Banking and the Consultant of China Society
for Investment. Prior to joining the China Everbright Group,
he was the Vice Chairman of the China Banking Regulatory
Commission, the Director-General of the Banking Supervision
Department |, the Director-General of the Currency, Gold
and Silver Bureau and the Director-General of the Credit
Management Division of the People’s Bank of China. He holds
a Master’s Degree in Economics from China Northeast University
of Finance & Economics. Mr. Tang has extensive knowledge and
experience in banking and finance management. Mr. Tang joined
the Board in July 2007.

ZANG QIUTAO - VICE-CHAIRMAN

aged 61, is the Vice-chairman of the Company. Mr. Zang is
a member of the National Committee of the 12th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also the Vice-
chairman of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. Mr.
Zang is the Deputy Chairman of China Everbright Limited. Mr.
Zang graduated from the Graduate School of the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences. He was formerly the Division
Chief of the State Economic Commission and Deputy Division
Director of the State Planning Commission. He joined the
Board in September 2004.
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ARBYAREER  GETERTEEEERZ
BgaEFE PEARRTROTEE —AAK .
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RIOTMEMERTHEBIFEREZOANB L+
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

CHEN XIAOPING — CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

aged 60, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
He is also the Vice-chairman of China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited and a Standing Director of China
Environmental Culture Promotion Association. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chen had been a department head in the
Bureau of Investigation & Supervision of The People’s Bank
of China, the Assistant Governor of China Everbright Bank
Company Limited and the President of the Bank’s Guangzhou
Branch. He graduated from the Department of Finance of
the Southwest University in Finance and Economics, the
PRC, finished the MBA class of the Research Institute of
Business Management of Sichuan University, the PRC and
holds a Master’s Degree with a major in Money & Banking
from the Department of Finance and Trade of the China
Research Institute of Social Science. He holds the title of
Senior Economist and Certified Public Accountant in the
PRC. He was also engaged as a researcher at the China
International Economic Development Research Centre. He
has rich experience and extensive knowledge in banking,
capital market and management. Mr. Chen joined the Board
in August 2001.

WANG TIANYI — GENERAL MANAGER

aged 51, is the General Manager of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the President of Shandong Academy
of Science. He was formerly the Deputy Mayor of Jinan City
of Shandong Province. He had been the Vice President, Dean
and Professor of Economic Management Faculty of Yantai
University of Shandong Province. He is currently also a part-
time professor and doctoral tutor of Shandong University.
He is also a member of HKTDC Mainland Business Advisory
Committee. He holds a Doctorate’s Degree in Economics, a
Master’'s Degree in Management and a Bachelor’s Degree
in Electronics from Tsinghua University. He had pursued
advanced studies at Harvard University and University of
California in the United States. Mr. Wang joined the Board in
February 2010.

EE(#)

BITEE(E)

B (TTEAREL)

BEBOR  AABITHAR  TRATEEAE
BAERAFMEETREAPERRECRESR
BIRE - RELEMAREER - SEBFEAR
RITEZEBRRERRPBERRITITREER
BMBITDTITR - REXERTEARMLARE
TRE - WIKBTEEENRAMMBANT A
BEFEPEEEMBA RN EMEERTE
FETEE - AEe RS EMBEMNEMEs
AhE TS - IR R BB R EERA T OM
K8 - WRIRTT - EAMSREXEETEHEE
LELRMEZAE REER_FTT—F\A
MAEER -

T AF (H4EHE)

WES1RR - AR RIEKIE - EMARNEER] - A
IWERARERRER - FASTILREERmaT
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

WONG KAM CHUNG, RAYMOND - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
aged 50, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
He holds a Master of Business Administration Degree, a
Master of Management Degree in Information Technology
Management from Macquarie University, Australia, and a
Bachelor of Arts with Honours Degree in Accountancy from
the City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of United Kingdom and a Certified General
Accountant in Canada. He has extensive experience in
accounting, finance and auditing areas. Mr. Wong joined the
Board in December 2002.

CAl SHUGUANG - DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER

aged 58, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company.
He is also the General Manager of Everbright Environmental
Protection (China) Limited. Prior to joining the Group, he
was formerly Deputy General Manager of Shenzhen Kingway
Brewery Limited. He graduated from the Department of
Computer Science from Shanghai Fudan University and holds
a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University
of Ballarat in Australia. He holds the title of senior engineer. Mr.
Cai has rich experience and extensive knowledge in corporate
management and project planning. Mr. Cai joined the Board in
August 2010.

EEE-))

HITES(E)

EIRER (I HRE)

HES0m  ARAMBEHRE - BEREFABRIMNE
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

FAN YAN HOK, PHILIP

aged 64, is Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive director
of the following Hong Kong listed public companies, namely
HKC (Holdings) Limited, Hysan Development Company
Limited and First Pacific Company Limited. Mr. Fan is also an
independent director of Goodman Group, an Australian listed
company and a member of the Asian Advisory Committee
of AustralianSuper, a pension fund established in Australia.
He was formerly an independent director of Zhuhai Zhongfu
Enterprise Co., Ltd., a Shenzhen listed company and
Suntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange until June 2013 and December
2013 respectively. Mr. Fan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Industrial Engineering, a Master’s Degree in Operations
Research from Stanford University and a Master’'s Degree
in Management Science from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology. Before joining the Company in 1997, he was
an executive director of CITIC Pacific Limited in charge of
industrial projects in China. He joined the Board in November
1997 and was re-designated as the Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
January 2010 and December 2012 respectively.

MAR SELWYN

aged 78, is Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Mar graduated from the London School of
Economics, University of London. He is a fellow member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is a partner of Nexia Charles Mar Fan & Co. He is also
an independent non-executive director and chairman of
the audit committee of Minmetals Land Limited and Man
Yue International Holdings Limited. He was the President
of Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1991. Mr.
Mar is an Honorary Fellow of the Lingnan University and
appointed member of the Court of Lingnan University by
the Chief Executive of the HKSAR. He joined the Board in
September 2004.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

LI KWOK SING, AUBREY

aged 64, is Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. He is the Chairman of MCL Partners Limited, a
Hong Kong based investment firm, and has over 40 years’
experience in merchant banking and commercial banking.
He is also a non-executive director of The Bank of East
Asia, Limited and an independent non-executive director of
Café de Coral Holdings Limited, Kunlun Energy Company
Limited, Kowloon Development Company Limited, Pokfulam
Development Company Limited and Tai Ping Carpets
International Limited. Mr. Li has a Master of Business
Administration from Columbia University and a Bachelor of
Science in Civil Engineering from Brown University. He joined
the Board in November 1998.

ZHAI HAITAO

aged 45, is Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. He is the President and Partner of Primavera Capital
Group. He was formerly Managing Director of Goldman Sachs
Asia LLC and Chief Representative of Goldman Sachs Beijing
Office. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. Zhai worked at
the International Department of the People’s Bank of China in
Beijing, and was Deputy Representative of the People’s Bank
of China Representative Office for the Americas based in New
York. He holds a Master’s Degree in International Relations
from Columbia University, a Master of Business Administration
Degree from New York University and a Bachelor of Arts
Degree in Economics from Peking University. He has extensive
experience and knowledge in banking, capital market and
management. Mr. Zhai joined the Board in January 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HU YANGUO

aged 47, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company.
He is also the Deputy General Manager of Everbright
Environmental Protection (China) Ltd. and General Manager of
Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering (Shenzhen)
Ltd. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly the lecturer
of mathematics of Northeast Forestry University, the
General Manger of Accounting Department of Guangzhou
Branch of the China Everbright Bank and the Deputy
General Manager of Sunshiny Group. He graduated from
the Department of Infrastructure of Northeast Forestry
University and holds a Master of Agricultural Degree from
Economic Management Faculty of the Northeast Forestry
University. Mr. Hu holds the title of Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC. He has comprehensive experience in accounting
and settlement, administration management, construction
management. Mr. Hu joined the Group in April 2006.

CHEN TAO

aged 50, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He is
also the Deputy General Manager of Everbright Environmental
Protection (China) Ltd. and General Manager of Everbright
Environmental Protection Technological Development (Beijing)
Ltd. respectively. Prior to joining the Group, he was formerly
the lecturer and laboratory supervisor of automation of
Sichuan Light Chemistry Institute (presently known as East
China University of Science and Technology), the Automation
Department Manager and the Assistant General Manager of
Shenzhen Catic Intelligent System Co., Ltd. He graduated
from the Department of Chemical Instrument and Industrial
Automation of East China Chemistry Institute (presently known
as East China University of Science and Technology) and holds
a Master of Automation Degree from East China University of
Science and Technology. Mr. Chen holds the title of Certified
Senior Engineer in the PRC. He has comprehensive experience
in construction management, technology development and
administration management. Mr. Chen joined the Group in April
2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

QIAN XIAODONG

aged 41, is the Assistant General Manager of the Company.
He is also the General Manager of Investment Development
Department and Everbright Environmental Protection Venture
Capital (Shenzhen) Ltd. He graduated from the Department of
Heat Energy Engineering of Dalian University of Technology
and holds a Master of Environment Engineering Degree of
Southeast University. He has comprehensive experience and
knowledge in market development of environmental protection
industry, national environmental policies and industrial trend.
Mr. Qian joined the Group in July 2003.

AN XUESONG

aged 43, is the Assistant General Manager of the Company
and the General Manager of Investment Management
Department. He holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree of Jinan University. Mr. An holds the title of Certified
Public Accountant in the PRC and International Internal
Auditor. He has comprehensive experience and knowledge
in project management, accounting management and risk
management. Mr. An joined the Group in May 2002.

YANG ZHIQIANG

aged 53, is the Chief Legal Officer of the Company. Prior
to joining the Group, he was formerly the Legal Assistant
and PRC legal consultant of Livasiri & Co., the lawyer of
Beijing Xinghe Legal Firm and Jiade Legal Firm, Shenzhen
branch. He was graduated in Medical Science Department
from Beijing Medical University. He obtained the Professional
Certificate of Law recognized by the Law Society of England
and Wales and holds the title of Lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Yang
joined the Group in December 20083.

POON YUEN LING

aged 46, is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She joined the Group in April 1994, with over
20 years of experience in company secretarial matters.
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Report of the Directors
Tl

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Room 2703,
27th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 3 to
the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and
suppliers of the Group respectively during the financial year is
as follows:

EEMAREBE_Z—=F+-_A=+—H1t
FEZEEREMEECHHRE

EBEFRME
FEXADRARAT(ARE)A—RRES
MR - EUBBRARZAR - ARAZE
MR E BRI BTN ESERE R
ERSBF OB LTS

EEXR
ARRZEBXRBRREZER - SHBARIZE
R E M A BEN P HRRM 6

ARBRAMBAR(TAKE DR AMBFER
ZEBRBRIRIILE D 2 DI ER M TR M
A3 e

FTERPRHER
AEERAVBFREZETERP REEEERDN
BN

Percentage of
the Group’s total
HAREE TNV EE 2 BN

Turnover Purchases
EER PR
The largest customer BAEPF 18%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFER 57%
The largest supplier BAMER 7%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREER AT 23%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

REREMER > BEEAES REZHE
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water Treatment
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao EB-VW?”, a subsidiary of the Company)
entered into an operation and maintenance agreement
with Qingdao Veolia Water Operating Company Limited
(“Qingdao Veolia”, an associate of the Group). Pursuant
to the agreement, Qingdao EB-VW will subcontract
to Qingdao Veolia the provision of the operation and
maintenance services in respect of the waste-water
treatment plants (the “Plants”) in Qingdao, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). During the year ended 31
December 2013, service fee for the operation and
maintenance of the Plants paid/payable to Qingdao Veolia
amounted to HK$57,549,000 (2012: HK$53,303,000).

In June 2004, Qingdao EB-VW entered into a waste-
water treatment agreement with Qingdao Municipal
Drainage Company (“Qingdao Drainage”, a non-
controlling shareholder of Qingdao EB-VW). Pursuant
to the agreement, Qingdao EB-VW will provide waste-
water treatment services and other related services to
Qingdao Drainage on an exclusive basis. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, waste-water treatment revenue
received/receivable from Qingdao Drainage amounted to
HK$130,892,000 (2012: HK$110,893,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if
there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

ZAN/N

CEBNESKEERR
NCINQI =5 I /NG o= /N DR
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M| AREBEZHBENT)FMELEREDE
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FEFDZ@ ERBEERERBINATSE
BBV BEZZT—=F+=-A=+—
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BB/ BN TESB L ZREE
RBEEST,549,000 (=T —=F : B
53,303,0007T) °
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report to the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter of Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions as disclosed by the Group in the annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 125
to 257.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$1,364,198,000 (2012: HK$1,154,104,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK3.5 cents per share (2012: HK3.0
cents per share) was paid on 30 September 2013. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.0 cents per share (2012: HK3.0 cents per share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$938,000 (2012: HK$6,701,000).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements.

FEBERS(E)
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29(c) to the financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year on placing of
new shares of the Company to broaden the capital base and
exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Tang Shuangning, Chairman

Zang Qiutao, Vice-chairman

Chen Xiaoping, Chief Executive Officer

Wang Tianyi, General Manager

Wong Kam Chung, Raymond, Chief Financial Officer
Cai Shuguang, Deputy General Manager

Independent non-executive directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip

Mar Selwyn

Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey

Zhai Haitao

In accordance with articles 73, 77, 78 and 79 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Tang Shuangning,
Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Mar Selwyn and Mr. Li Kwok Sing,
Aubrey will retire from the board at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The current 4 independent
non-executive directors of the Company hold office for a term
until 31 December 2015. They are all subject to retirement
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association as
indicated above.
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ARRARARAEER 2 BHF BERRAHRE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who held
office at 31 December 2013 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated

%%ZH&%D M
AN B 3 AT AT B B & B 3 48 E A B AS 2217 2 AR
RBFAG L REBEZERITUTAR—FR

R EE (—ROEERERRSN) TR 2 REW

RIFEH -
ESRTFETBRAEBRBZENG - HHE

iy MEHEm AR

BARBIRERE S BERDIEI2GREAT
FEZEERTBTRABRGE AR B LCMA
Bk~ R_E—=F+-_A=+—H%EE
ZERRRAEZRTIEZTBRAERZAELRRAR]

corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures  HZERE AR - WE AR M EMBEAR (EE R
Ordinance (“SFO”)) at that date as recorded in the register of aa%&,ﬁﬂfﬂbk Bl) 2 B&tn - ARERMD RES AT
directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions %A Z =m0 :
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:
Long position in shares of the Company RARBIRAD 2 &
Number of
Nature of interest shares Percentage
Name of director EEJeE EmE BRINEE B
(ordinary shares)
(Eimhk)
Zang Qiutao R Personal A 2,000,000 0.04%
Chen Xiaoping N Personal { A 9,000,000 0.20%
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond = iRER Personal fE A 2,000,000 0.04%
Fan Yan Hok, Philip B #R Personal A 8,500,000 0.19%
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEHE Personal {iE A 1,000,000 0.02%
Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors and chief B _EXFTitEIN - 1RA R TIRE B 5 &S &G
executive of the Company or any of their spouses or children FE352/&RFE B TEE 2 S M8~ -
under eighteen years of age has interests or short positions in =~ KRR EEERFETHA BRIKE 2 (F MRS

the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company had a share option scheme which was adopted
on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the Company
were authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of
the Group, including directors of any company in the Group,
to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
The purpose of the scheme was to provide an opportunity
for employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation
in the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
share option scheme should be valid and effective for a period
of ten years ended on 25 May 2013, after which no further
options would be granted.

The exercise price of options was the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on the date of grant and the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The options were exercisable six
months (or a later date as determined by the directors of the
Company) after the date on which the options were granted
for a period up to ten years or 25 May 2013, whichever was
earlier.

In respect of the maximum entitlement of each participant
under the share option scheme, the number of securities
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant in any 12-month period was limited to 1%
of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue.

Offer of an option should be deemed to have been accepted
when the letter comprising acceptance of the option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1 was
received within 28 days from the date of offer.

The share option scheme was expired on 26 May 2013 and
accordingly, no further share option can be granted under the
share option scheme. There was no outstanding option as at
31 December 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The directors and employees of the Company had the following
interests in options to subscribe for shares of the Company
granted at nominal consideration under the share option
scheme of the Company which was expired on 26 May 2013.
The options were unlisted. Each option gave the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each of the
Company.

FEArERT Sl ()
ARBEZREBEARBBEARRBMND 2 BRE
FHEB TR - ARBREDREAAREK
iR SBARERD - AARBERESIE
R-ZE—=FRAA_+"BEW FRABREYL
ELET o BERBRERTRHEARE -—KRARQT
FREEBE0ITTH T B Z R

* Market
value per * Market
share at value per
Period date of share on
uring which grant of exercise of
options are Exercise options options

exercisable price per NERE EE
e shae  REAHZ {1k
208 BRAERE = il ShifE

No. of
No. of shares

options acquired No. of

outstanding 0N eXercise options

at the of options ~ outstanding

beginning during at the

of the year the year year end
=) ERfif L2 Date
Directors and mATEZ  BRERA  RATEZ granted
employees EEY BRESE  ZBHEE  EREHE ]zl
Zang Qittao ke 2000000 (2,000,000, - 3 August 2006
I
NA=H
Chen Xiaoping BT 4,000,000 (4,000,000) - 29 September
2008
I &
ABZTHA
2,500,000 (2,500,000 - 3 August 2006
i
NA=R
2,500,000 (2,500,000 - 3 August 2006
i S
NA=R

3 August 2008 HK$0.85 HK$0.85 HK$5.81
025May2013  E%0ssm  EE0sT  EESSIT
it
NA=RZ%
LA-t3R

29 September 2004 HK$0.296 HK$0.296 HK$5.81
025May2013  E%0206m 02T EESSIT
“3EpE
AEZThEE

—F_=
F—=
27z

il g

3 August 2007 HK$0.85 HK$0.85 HK$5.81
025May2013  E%0ssm 0T AESSIT
“35¢E
N\A=HZ

S ——
—-< =

LA-t3R

3 August 2008 HK$0.85 HK$0.85 HK$5.81
025May2013  E%08m 08T EESSIT
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RERRERT 2 (8)
No. of
No. of shares * Market
options acquired No. of value per * Market
outstanding 0n exercise options share at value per
at the of options ~ outstanding Period date of share on
beginning during atthe during which grant of exercise of
of the year the year year end options are Exercise options options
) ERfiE 3 Date exercisable price per ERE ‘BRE
Directors and mAEz  BREEA  HAOE granted ki e RiHAHY fifehe
employees SV BREER  (ROER BRERA elal k8 BRORE SR SRt
Wong Kam Chung, ~ E$5% 1,500,000 (1,500,000} - 3 August 2006 3 August 2008 HKS$0.85 HKS0.85 HKS5.70
Raymond ZERNF 025May2013  A¥0ST  EM0sT  AELION
NA=R ZEENE
\A=RZE
2E-cf
RA-TiE
Employees Eg 1,400,000 (1,400,000 - 3 August 2006 3 August 2007 HK$0.85 HKS0.85 HK$5.25
“ERNE 025Mey2013  E¥08m  AH0sT  AEST
NA=R kS g
\A=RZE
ZE-cf
RA-TiE
1400000 (1,400,000 - 3 August 2006 3 August 2008 HKS$0.85 HK$0.85 HK$5.25
“EE5E 025Mey2013  E¥08m  AH0sT  AEST
NA=R “2Z)\f
\A=RZE
2E-cf
RA-TiE

*

Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary ~ * Bl &) % @A E BB BB R H e 17 (R &3
shares immediately before the dates on which the options were )R BTz T HE -
granted or exercised, as applicable.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The options granted to the directors were registered under the
names of the directors who were also the beneficial owners.
During the year, no options was granted, cancelled or lapsed
under the share option scheme. Information on the accounting
policy for share options granted and the weighted average
value per option is provided in note 1(s)(ii) and note 28 to the
financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company’s issued shares at 31 December 2013 amounting to
5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue:

RERRERT ()

BRYEECBEREDNNES 2 HERER  MES
MAEREBA - A - QRN BIRIR SR
STEIR E TR - TR IR AR T S Sk
HERY - FADREBRE S BRRERE
I 4 2 INFE T EE 2 B R 5 B S B 7% & M
FE1(s)(ii) B Mf5E28 ©
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Rk -

T ERRREAM A TERD MAEBER N
FEER s MOKR

AKARIERR - ZE—=F+_A=+—HEEX
NABETR M 2 EFECBITERKS%I A
RN

Long position Percentage

in ordinary of total

Nature of shares held issued shares

Capacity interest P H2HE BT

1 BERtE TRk cre BB

China Everbright Holdings ~ FEI% REEBRAE] Interest of Corporate interest ~ 1,853,951,910 Approximately

Company Limited (‘CEH") ([t AREE ) controlled NGIE 41.35%

(note (1)) (Bi3E(1)) corporation #141.35%
XTI R AN R

RRJ Capital Master Fund Il, RRJ Capital Master  Interest of Corporate interest 318,360,000 Approximately

L.P. (“RRJ Capital”) Fund Il, L.P. (RRJ  controlled DA 7.10%

(note (2)) Capital]) (Hf3(2))  corporation 47.10%

RS DR M
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Notes:

)

Out of the 1,853,951,910 ordinary shares, 1,758,215,910 ordinary
shares are held by Guildford Limited (“Guildford”). Guildford is owned
as to 55% by Datten Investments Limited (“Datten”) and the remaining
45% by CEH. Datten is wholly-owned by CEH. The remaining
95,736,000 ordinary shares are held by Everbright Investment &
Management Limited (“EIM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEH.
Accordingly, CEH is deemed to be interested in the 1,758,215,910
ordinary shares held by Guildford and the 95,736,000 ordinary shares
held by EIM.

The corporate interest of RRJ Capital was attributable on account
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dalvey Asset Holding Limited.
According to the register kept under section 336 of the SFO, as at
31 December 2013, RRJ Capital and its associates had interests
of 318,360,000 ordinary shares (approximately 7.85% of the
issued share capital of the Company before the Company allotted
430,000,000 ordinary shares to CEH on 20 December 2013 pursuant
to a placing and subscription agreement dated 10 December 2013.
Details of the placing and subscription agreement were set out in the
Company’s announcement on 11 December 2013).

Apart from the foregoing, the Company had not been notified

of any other interests by prescribed notices which had been
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2013

T ERR R EAM A TERD MAEBER O
RRB 2R NORR (8)

MaE

(1) 71£1,853,951,9108k L i@AR+ - HH1,758,215,910
% 3 3@ A% 7Y | Guildford Limited ([ Guildford |)#% °
Guildford J5 fDatten Investments Limited([ Datten )
HHS5% M HE - Hera5%MH K K& EFA © Datten
THAREBEZ2EHRE - HE895,736,0000% & i AR
AN AEEZ2ENB AR A RIREEEBR AR
(TRREEEBFHA -ttt - AARAEBERRA/E
Guildford Fi A 2 1,758,215,91 0 % & 378 i% K2 ¢ K%
BEIRFTH A 295,736,0000% & @A A HERS o

(2) RRJ Capital z ARI#E= B RE T2 EN B A A
Dalvey Asset Holding Limited# & ° & A R &R &
BHERAEKAIFEKREEZELMAR  R=F
—=%#+=-A=+—H ' RRJ Capital R HE & A -4
5318,360,000R EBIR(EARRN T —=F+=
A-t+ARERAHA—Z—=F+_A+B2EER
TR 175 5% 1) 3 K 5= [ it 35 430,000,000 A% & 3@ AR AT 2
RATIBBITRALT.85% - BARERREREZ
HBEHERARFAR-_TE—=F+-_A+—ABAF%ZA
ff5) °

B EXFES  R-F—=ZF+-_A=+—
B ARRWEEEFTANBN R REEANR
filf B AR SR K PR A8 77 M A B 1R B 55 336 R 17
BEZEREMA -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

As at the date of this annual report, as far as the directors
are aware, Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip is an independent non-
executive director of HKC (Holdings) Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange and its business activities
including property development and investments, alternative
energy investment, infrastructure, and in particular, waste-to-
energy and wind power, are considered to compete or likely
to compete with the business of the Group. Although, Mr.
Fan Yan Hok, Philip is an independent non-executive director
of HKC (Holdings) Limited, he does not engage in the daily
operation of HKC (Holdings) Limited and thus the Group is
capable of carrying on its business independently from HKC
(Holdings) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report
and as far as the directors are aware, none of the directors
or their respective associates had any interests in a business
which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group or any other conflicts of
interests with the Group.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Company and the Group as
at 31 December 2013 are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 258
and 259 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES
Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on
page 260 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local
eligible employees in Hong Kong under an approved defined
contribution provident fund (the “ORSO Scheme”). The ORSO
Scheme is administered by trustees, the majority of which are
independent, with its assets held separately from those of the
Company. The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from
employees and employers at 5% each based on the monthly
salaries of employees. Forfeited contribution may be used to
reduce the existing level of contribution by the Company.

As from 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.
Employee can choose to contribute with a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to
the income statement during the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to HK$29,054,000.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that
all independent non-executive directors are independent
and satisfy the requirements under Rule 3.13 (except that
for Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip under Rule 3.13(7), he had
been a non-executive director prior to his re-designation as
the independent non-executive director of the Company)
and the Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By order of the board
Tang Shuangning
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 S % U B % <

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Everbright International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to
257, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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LAY TR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 February 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

gﬁl‘: | *)E\ fi % For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 8 & —ZE— =%+ = A=+—H I EE (ABK:E)

2013 2012
= —_F—=
Note $'000 $'000
B aE Tt Tt
Continuing operations REREER
Turnover = 3 5,319,866 3,409,938
Direct costs and operating expenses BERAREEER (2,944,458) (1,726,266)
2,375,408 1,683,672
Other revenue HAth Yz 4 144,190 106,929
Other loss Hihgsia 5 (128) (10,022)
Administrative expenses THER (392,238) (297,377)
Profit from operations 4L B 2,127,232 1,483,202
Finance costs B E A 6(a) (315,579) (312,640)
Profit before taxation i BT & R 6 1,811,653 1,170,562
Income tax Frigit 7(a) (447,455) (266,554)
Profit from continuing FEREXEB 2B
operations 1,364,198 904,008
Discontinued operation BRI E R
Profit from discontinued operation RIS E T 2 B
(net of tax) (Br#12) 8 - 250,096
Profit for the year REEZ A 1,364,198 1,154,104
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Consolidated Income Statement

Ao iR R
»h g 185 ﬁll For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #1Z = E— =%+ =B =+—HILFE (B E)

2013 2012
—_EF—= —Eg—=
Note $'000 $'000
B aE T T
Attributable to: JEAEHB1 -
Equity shareholders of the Company ZiN/NS )33 11
— Continuing operations —REEEET 1,324,667 881,239
— Discontinued operation — R PR TS - 242,030
1,324,667 1,123,269
Non-controlling interests AR A
— Continuing operations —FBEBEEER 39,531 22,769
- Discontinued operation — IR T - 8,066
39,531 30,835
Profit for the year REZ RN 1,364,198 1,154,104
Earnings per share BRAT 12
Basic BN
— Continuing operations —FBEEEEY 32.60 cents {li | 23.26 cents 1l
- Discontinued operation — RS - | 6.39 cents 1l
32.60 cents 1l | 29.65 cents 1l
Diluted 5
— Continuing operations — BB EERS 32.57 cents {li | 23.14 cents il
— Discontinued operation — RIS - | 6.35cents

32.57 cents 1l

29.49 cents 1l

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the
year are set out in note 29(b).

HNE136 EEF257A 2 M AL EEHREK
2 — B e AEARFDE L EIRMN T AR R
RZREFFIBHRMIFE29(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SO EmiBAR
Al‘/]-; | _:[‘A S For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) %2 =&

—=F+ A=+ —HIEREABEHE)

2013 2012
—T—=F —T—=
Note $’'000 $°000
B 5T Tt Tt
Profit for the year NEEAF 1,364,198 1,154,104
Other comprehensive income REEEMETE
for the year: WA
Items that will not be reclassified to T EEFIEEEmE
profit or loss: EE
— Surplus on revaluation of land and -BEERzTH R
buildings held for own use BF 2 EHEAR 13(a) 107,153 -
— Tax effect relating to surplus on -FEERAZ TR
revaluation of land and buildings held BFE7EGHRBSBZE
for own use AT E (16,641) -
Items that may be reclassified Al e B 7 EE Em
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH -
— Exchange differences on - BENBRARIMBHRE
translation of financial EACERZERE
statements of subsidiaries 277,549 82,527
— Changes in fair value of ERF AN EED
available-for-sale securities (25,171) 10,396
- Reclassification adjustment for -EBSBERRIGER
impairment loss on SREEBBCEND
available-for-sale securities AR
transferred to profit or loss . - 9,994
— Tax effect relating to changes in fair - FEBHFRAABEREH 2
value of available-for-sale securities ARG E 3,264 (2,528)
- Exchange reserve realised on disposal - H & {8 A AR
of subsidiaries B3R ER 8(d) - (96,560)
346,154 3,829
Total comprehensive income AREE2EIM AL
for the year 1,710,352 1,157,933
Attributable to: JEAG B 10
Equity shareholders of the Company YNN8 1,660,391 1,127,677
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE S 49,961 30,256
Total comprehensive income AEEEEBALTE
for the year 1,710,352 1,157,933

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

2852 I
»IT; é F: ﬁ 13 % At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R = E—=4%+= A =+—H (L&t E)

2013 2012
—T—= —g—=
Noj[e $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
B sE T Fr T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets ETEEE 13(a)
— Investment properties — KB 177,442 10,731
- Other property, plant —HipE - BE IR
and equipment 1,374,138 1,422,515
— Interest in leasehold land —-BELEEHE
held for own use under BEERZ
operating leases HE iR 35,739 37,801
1,587,319 1,471,047
Intangible assets EVEE 14 1,096,453 613,564
Goodwill EES 15 20,793 20,793
Interest in associates il NI 17 254,380 -
Other financial assets Hi s EE 18 176,710 196,692
Other receivables and deposits ~ Eff el B K1k S 19 3,023,616 2,603,369
Gross amounts due from F‘Euﬁzg}f{:\ T2
customers for contract work pIBMAE 20 9,035,315 6,889,550
Finance lease receivables rﬂéﬁﬁ%? Wik 22 21,485 21,384
Deferred tax assets FILRIBEE 27(b) 10,966 27,508
15,227,037 11,843,907
Current assets MEEE
Inventories 7E 21 75,524 65,317
Debtors, other receivables, FEAEESR » B UoR -
deposits and prepayments e MIERTIE 19 1,376,719 1,207,000
Gross amounts due from EREESHTRR
customers for contract work HIBERE 20 941,297 643,800
Tax recoverable —M&@mlﬁ 27(a) 35,359 26,118
Finance lease receivables MERERWEIE 22 505 463
Pledged bank deposits BEIRPRITER 23 43,468 46,289
Deposits with bank RITER 1,345,404 943,352
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEED 24 4,425,734 1,806,868
8,244,010 4,739,207
Current liabilities TEAE
Bank loans RITER 25
- Secured —BHEM 939,146 604,162
- Unsecured — fE I 840,721 1,031,224
1,779,867 1,635,386
Creditors, other payables and  [EfBRZN « HERFIA
accrued expenses RETER 26 1,733,757 1,190,736
Current taxation AEIRIIR 27(a) 58,413 58,179
3,572,037 2,884,301
Net current assets mEBE 4,671,973 1,854,906
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AN =3
gﬁl‘: | | g %:5 ﬁ 1E % At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R = Z—=4%+— A=+—H (LABHE:tE)

2013 2012
=F = —F—=
Note $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
B sE FT Fr T T
Total assets less BEERRBARE
current liabilities 19,899,010 13,698,813
Non-current liabilities ETBEE
Bank loans BITER 25
- Secured — B 3,381,733 3,104,148
- Unsecured — {3 1,759,521 1,264,817
5,141,254 4,368,965
Deferred tax liabilities EREHIEEE 27(b) 978,635 659,439
6,119,889 5,028,404
NET ASSETS BEFH 13,779,121 8,670,409
CAPITAL AND PR K
RESERVES
Share capital [N 29(c) 448,371 403,841
Reserves HE 12,925,893 7,945,918
Total equity attributable AR AR fEfs
to equity shareholders ~ ##
of the Company 13,374,264 8,349,759
Non-controlling interests  3EiZfkiEz 404,857 320,650
TOTAL EQUITY T B 13,779,121 8,670,409

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ZHE®R T —NF = A =+t BZERFFA %

27 February 2014. 17 °

Chen Xiaoping Wang Tianyi
Bt /N1 ER#E
Director Director

EZE EFE

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial ZH R FE136H EF257 B 2 M5t At F 1R
statements. R8P o
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v = =
é % ﬁ {E % At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R = E—=%+= A=+—B (WA E%:tE)

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bt T T T T
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - HE Mk 13(b) 4,484 2,747
Interest in subsidiaries lEENGIb 16 6,867,022 6,317,849
Other financial assets HMBiEEE 18 3,899 3,899
6,875,405 6,324,495
Current assets TEEE
Other receivables, deposits HMEWHIE EE2 N
and prepayments BITRIA 86,390 64,038
Deposits with bank RITFER 1,300,000 680,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESZEY 24 2,352,446 352,742
3,738,836 1,096,780
Current liabilities REAE
Bank loans RITER 25
- Secured —H i 40,000 27,500
- Unsecured — E I 73,250 317,100
113,250 344,600
Other payables and accrued H{h A< 008 K e A
expenses EH 35,692 20,024
148,942 364,624
Net current assets BN E EF 3,589,894 732,156
Total assets less BEERABDAE
current liabilities 10,465,299 7,056,651
Non-current liabilities ErRBERE
Bank loans RITER 25
- Secured — B 115,000 20,000
- Unsecured — m I 1,038,675 626,250
1,153,675 646,250
Amounts due to subsidiaries L ENGIE ] 16 1,370,172 1,816,163
2,523,847 2,462,413
NET ASSETS BEFHE 7,941,452 4,594,238
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Balance Sheet

v & =N
é % ﬁ 1E i% At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R = Z—=4%+—= A=+—H (Bt E)

2013 2012
—E—=F %

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000

FasE T T T T
CAPITAL AND IR A I (e

RESERVES 29(a)

Share capital % 448,371 403,841
Reserves E 7,493,081 4,190,397
TOTAL EQUITY BB 7,941,452 4,594,238

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

27 February 2014.

Chen Xiaoping
T

Director

EZ

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial

statements.
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Wang Tianyi
ER#E

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

,%‘/% = 1‘% ﬁ & ﬁj‘] % For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #iZ = E— =%+ = =+—HILFE (AEEE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANAIREEN
Capital
redemption
Share Share Special reserve Capital
capital premium reserve BR reserve
BA  BROEE  FAEE  BERE BAEE
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
(i T T T r r
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E——4
—A—Hz&H% 367,546 2,160,080 - 70 5,329
Changes in equity for 2012: TR E R
Profit for the year AEZRF - - - - -
Other comprehensive income HiZ2ERA - - - - _
Total comprehensive income FEMRALTE e e - -
Dividend approved in respect of BHEEFEZRE
the previous year 29(b)ii) - - - - -
Shares issued under share option scheme  1R#BEE AR IEFT 212417 28k 29(c)(i) 1,295 8,418 - - (2,029)
Issue of ordinary shares BATERAY 29(c)(ii 35000 1,202,100 - - -
Transfer to reserve fund BREEED - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMERR - - - - -
Capital contributions received by FErEMBATMK
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from FERBRBEFGFZ
non-controlling shareholder HEE - - - - -
Capital refunded to non-controling EERBERETE
shareholder - - - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling BENTHERRE2RE
shareholders - - - - _
Dividend declared in respect of BERAFEZRE
L OO O T e Y
Balance at 31 December 2012 p-Z=——=
TZA=T-RAZER 403,841 3,370,598 - 70 3,300
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-E—=%
—R—Hz &% 403,841 3,370,598 - 70 3,300
Changes in equity for 2013: CE-CERERE
Profit for the year REERF - - - - -
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA - - - - -
Total comprehensive income FEMALRE e - - -
Dividend approved in respect of EREEEEZRE
the previous year 29(b)ii) - - - - -
Shares issued under share option scheme  1R#BEE AR IEFT 212417 28k 29(c)(i) 1,530 12,559 - - (3,300)
Issue of ordinary shares BITLEM 29(c)(i) 43,000 3,573,816 - - -
Transfer to reserve fund ERERES - - - - -
Capital contributions received by E2EHBRATN
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from FERBFBEAGEZ
non-controlling shareholders HEE - - - - -
Dividend declared in respect of BERAFEZRE
the current year 29(b)) - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-ZT—=%
TZA=t—RAz&# 448,371 6,956,973 - 70 -

The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial &N FE16EEF257E 2 Wi At Z G ®E
statements. Z—Bn e
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARREERS
Goodwill Property
arising on  revaluation Non-
consolidation reserve  Exchange Fair value Reserve Retained controlling Total
RARRE IES reserve reserve fund profits Total interests equity
EAZHE  BREE EXRE QALERB #EE  REEA mE FERER  EREE
$’00_0 $’00_0 $’00_0 $’0(p $’0(p $’00_0 $’00_0 $’00_0 $’00_0
T T T T T av aw T T
(1,806) - 702,444 (22,006) 127,582 2,850,785 6,190,024 471,540 6,661,564
- - - - - 1,123,269 1,123,269 30,835 1,154,104
- - (13,454) 17,862 - - 4,408 (679) 3,829
- - (13,454) 17,862 - 1,123,269 1,127,677 30,256 1,157,933
- - - - - (91,892) (91,892) - (91,892)
- - - - - - 7,684 - 7,684
- - - - - - 1,237,100 - 1,237,100
- - - - 54,653 (64,553) - - -
820 - - - - (820) - (82,713 (82,713
- - - - - - - 8,620 8,620
- - - - - - - (73,908) (73,908)
- - - - - - - (33,145) (33,145)
______________________________________________ e T D 0B G088 (120884
(986) - 688,990 (4144) 182,135 3,705,955 8,349,759 320,650 8,670,409
(986) - 688,990 (4,144) 182,135 3,705,955 8,349,759 320,650 8,670,409
- - - - - 1,324,667 1,324,667 39,531 1,364,198
- 90,512 267,119 (21,907) - - 335,724 10,430 346,154
- 90,512 267,119 (21,907) - 1,324,667 1,660,391 49,961 1,710,352
- - - - - (121,611) (121,611) - (121,611)
- - - - - - 10,789 - 10,789
- - - - - - 3,616,816 - 3,616,816
- - - - 100,875 (100,875) - - -
- - - - - - - 34,246 34,246
- - - - - (141,880 (141,880 - (141,880)

(986) 90,512 956,109 (26,051) 283,010 4,666,256 13,374,264 404,857 13,779,121
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AOBEmaR
»‘/T; = ) { L E‘ For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &= — & —

=FE+Z A=+ —HIEFEOABSE)

2013 2012
—T—=F g
Note $'000 $'000
ik T T
Operating activities KT
Profit before taxation from BEL R B
- Continuing operations —ﬁi“"%« BETE 1,811,653 1,170,562
- Discontinued operation a5 - 288,694
1,811,653 1,459,256
Adjustments for: S R
Depreciation e 6(c)&8(b) 70,080 52,521
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESE 6(c)&8(b) 19,433 28,905
Amortisation of interest in leasehold land held ~ RIEELHERIEFER
for own use under operating leases ME LR B(c) 1,184 972
Finance costs BB ER 6(a)&8(b) 315,579 314,942
Dividend income from listed securities EHEEREWRA 4 (3,539) (8,804)
Bank interest income H|ATHIEHA 488(b) (27,339) (24,742)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale FEELFEEER
securities 5 - 9,994
Net loss on sale of other property, plantand ~ HEEMYE BEN
equipment R FEE 5 128 28
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z WS 8(d) - (234,768)
Fffect of foreign exchange rates changes ExEEH s P2 1,547 (4,064)
Changes in working capital: LEESEY
Increase in inventories FEEN (8,353) (21,361)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, FEMER R - Eoth Rk
deposits and prepayments B RIBNFIALE jJD (481,807) (561,492)
Increase in gross amounts due from ElEFANTIR *hIEZ'%E
customers for contract work =90 (2,229,425) (945,077)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, other FEBRF - EfpETFIER
payables and accrued expenses BB le]/(m'J ) 296,019 (238,312)
Cash used in operations REMBAZRE (234,840) (172,002)
Interest received UH B 27,339 24,742
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B & EFEH - (7,908)
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) income tax EﬁﬁPi/\E#ﬁI
paid (T B mEH (156,403) (134,756)
Net cash used in operating activities E&EEFEH2HEFEE (363,904) (289,924)
Investing activities KREEE
Payment for purchase of other property, plant BB E Y% « FiE
and equipment & 1%2*”15 (56,360) (621,395)
Payment for additions of interest in leasehold  BRERBELZHEREER 2
land held for own use under operating leases & iﬂME Z/T)\IE - (6,786)
Payment for additions of intangible assets i*%%%,ﬁFZ (246,130) (103,320)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries (net of HEHE A7 Fﬁ?%%’\lﬁ
cash disposed of) (BNBmEE ES) 8(d) - 648,570
Payment for capital contribution to an FBHE AR
associate (254,380) -
Proceeds from sale of other property, plant and HEEME « BE k&
equipment FTig A 191 196
Increase in loan receivable FEW S TIE AN - (49,172)
Dividend received from listed securities Bl EMBHRE 3,539 8,804
Increase in deposits with bank |ATF LM (397,749) (940,324)
Repayment from finance lease receivables BEHEEWTIAEE T 477 437
Net cash used in investing activities ~ ®EZHMEH IR S H5E (950,412) (1,062,990)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

p.. 225 B
‘%ﬁl‘: | | ﬁ % ‘{ﬁﬁ H % For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—H It FE(LABEB1E)

2013 2012
ZT—=F —T——F
Note $'000 $'000
Uik T T
Financing activities BEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans RITE RS ROR 3,403,959 2,772,617
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITEX (2,597,320) (1,814,727
Repayment of loan from ultimate holding BESREKIERARER
company - (73,908)
Repayment of other loans BEEMER - (55,318)
Capital contributions received by non-wholly ~ JE2EKIE AT
owned subsidiary from non-controlling e IR R AR R AR ER T 15
shareholders L& 34,246 8,620
Capital refunded to non-controlling shareholder FF42% Hxﬂxiﬁé - (73,908)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT Hxﬁﬁﬁfk 3,616,816 1,237,100
Proceeds from shares issued under share RIE BT 21T D
option scheme FT{3 B 10,789 7,684
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRRRITE IR 4,135 11,066
Interest paid BAFIE (315,579) (314,942)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of S EYNGILET 5,
the Company (263,491) (212,726)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders 2 {5 3F 1% A& A& 5 A& 2, - (33,145)
Net cash generated from financing  gI&EEEES
activities BT FER | 5893555 | 1,458,413
Net increase in cash and cash BeRkBeEEY
equivalents 0 EA 2,579,239 105,499
Cash and cash equivalents at —RA—BzRek
1 January BEEEBY 1,806,868 1,684,299
Effect of foreign exchange rates EXBH s FE
changes 39,627 17,070
Cash and cash equivalents W+-—A=+—H
at 31 December ZHERESZEY 24 4,425,734 1,806,868
The notes on pages 136 to 257 form part of these financial #HHWRFE136EE Bz aEALETBHRE

statements.

Z—&kn o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %& il% I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

— investment property (see note 1(h)); and

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
securities (see note 1(g)).

1

ERHRE

(a)

(b)

BTEH

HEFBBRREHRBESMRSHE
M2 EER(EEMBREER) - %
FHEEMEERNERSN(EEVER
EEAD (FREHEA)RRE R
AREF R RBECRTED) 2 R E
MAmEL o ULo - WEMBHRERITEBIR
BEMAXSABRAFES LMARA
(TEMRRAD P EROEERE - A&
BT T2 BERBREHIIMNT -

BB ARMEM T E T REE
Rl 2K BB B EED) - BHEERIB
AEERANRGH ARG 5T B E R R £
AR ATERA - RABIM KRBT S
HifE - AR YIRGER Ll AR K B 5 7
ZHE] RASHERTK BB B E 2R ) M
B HEEH o wBE RN ILE
ISR o B E RSB w M
FZ1(C)A °

MBRREREE
BE_T—=F+-A=+—HILFE
ZIHREMBERREEARARENER
BINASEE 2B E DR o

AT BRRER A BEELERESL

RAE - ETINEERAEHNARE
SIBR (FF R T XX &FT BRI RN -

— REWMEGRMEIN) &

— DEAGEZSFZEMIA(RMNE
1(g)) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

__l: A}
Ej % %& %% Mj‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (r BAFERRIN - FrA BB E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

—  Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

— HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

1

TESFHER®E)

(b) MBHRMBRELE(E)

(c)

B ETACERMBRSEER) 28
BHAFTREERBEHHE - A5t ER
& MzFHE - A RBRREFER
RZERNMMBHRZEE - BFE KA
ERAXERE - RFhHt RBEBRRT

BREBETARMEEERENZERR
THEAEZERAMEARMEL - AT
SRRBNEEEEBERREEMIR
BHEEREEZREERFELHE 2
HE - ERBFHREBRINGEETHF ©

$’§l?i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁf’ﬁfﬁﬁr&ﬁﬁ%f@“ﬂ’ﬁﬁ
AHE - BRIESFZESHMEFEES
AIFMEt AT 22BN E PR - 1
ZEEHBAEHTEE MR ARY
B - RIS At 2N E RN
& HIR FERR o

EEERERRACEEMBHRELER) KA
EHA B EBRRBEERTEZHE
AREBHEERRIEELEZ 2K
B FHRRAMTEE2 -

B BERZ2E

BEGFEAGEM T BEMTNEE
MBRELENARBTERBRELER 2
£5]  ARAKERARRNSEST

HEBREM - EF - UTA/EBRAE
SEMBEHRRNED
- (BREHEADF1RZIET -4

BH#HxE5 - A2 EKRARE
225

- (BAMBHREENF
EHRE ]

/_/'/TD
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Notes to the Financial Statements

,_l: »
Ej % %& % I}fj‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@:TEKR(£)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) BFtBR 228 (&)

-  HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

-  HKFRS 183, Fair value measurement

- Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures -
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in these financial statements
has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control
model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has
power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of those
returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee.
The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

- (BARMBHREERDF125 /KA
B s K

- (BRAMBREEADFISR /24
EitE |

- (EBMBREEADETRZET -
[~ AR B R ERH B

7N £% B 3 8 8 PR AE (R 0 AN & AT R R
R F AT R R R -

(BB G ER) E1R2ER] —[HFH
X2 —AMETENAEERZZ3]

BREBITHRE  BERALRARENS
ETHREZBEATHEEN D EERES
RZEMEERAER  BAGEHD
BEEsRZEME2ERAEESFRE
5 - UL FEHBIRERT - AREEHER
frEHBEaRzZHEMEABAERERZZ
S AR BB

CRBMBRELEL)FE105: — /4755
B
(CEABUBERELER) F10RR T EH
BERIREVBREROCEBSFEL)E
275 [ 458 RIBU B #HE A RE B
(FHZ2EZEe ) R2EBE 2% /40 —
HHEER | EHRTE - (BBEYBR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Ej % %F‘ % I}fj‘ %i (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (r BAFERRIN - FrA BB E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@THKER(£)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) Bt &F (&)

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those previously required by the respective
standards. To the extent that the requirements are
applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in notes 16 and 17.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and
non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group
has provided those disclosures in notes 13 and 30.
The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material
impact on the fair value measurements of the Group’s
assets and liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect
of offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
Those new disclosures are required for all recognised
financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments and transactions, irrespective
of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on these financial statements because the
Group has not offset financial instruments, nor has
it entered into master netting arrangement or similar
agreement which is subject to the disclosures of
HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.

(CEBTERELER)F125 — [ REM
-4 i)
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,_l: »
Ej % %F( %% I}fj‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with notes 1(p) or (q)
depending on the nature of the liability.

1
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses
(see note 1(l)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the associate’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the associate’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (I)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the associate’s other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Associates (continued)

U]

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that associate, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former associate at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 1(l)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in notes 1(v)(viii)
and (iv).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)
Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(l)). Dividend income from equity securities
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policies set out in note 1(v)(viii).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(l)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 1(v)(vi).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@THER(£)
(i) Other property, plant and equipment (i) Ett% - BMERRE

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1(l)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, from 20 to
50 years after the date of completion.

— Plant and machinery 10 to 25 years

— Leasehold improvements 10 years or over

the remaining term of
the lease, if shorter

—  Furniture and fixtures 51to 10 years

— Motor vehicles,

electronic equipment
and other fixed assets

3 to 12 years
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

1)

(k)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets represent operating rights of a
toll bridge, certain environmental energy projects,
environmental water project and alternative energy
projects. The intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1(l)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets are
amortised from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Toll bridge operating right

- Environmental energy project
operating rights

- Environmental water project

30 years

20 to 30 years

operating right 30 years
— Alternative energy project
operating rights 30 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@THER(£)
(k) Leased assets (continued) (k) HEEE(Z)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group () AEEEFEEZ FHE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, except that land held for own use
under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely that the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(i). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 1(l). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)
(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property (see note
1(h)).

() Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investment in associates, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 1(l)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 1(1)(ii).

— For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.

— For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FZEaHEHE(#£)

() Impairment of assets (continued) () EEFZEB(E)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and ()  RAGESIRE R F M EY IR~ FE
other receivables (continued) (&)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
debtors included within debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified
as being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;
— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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Ej % %& il% I}fj‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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__l: A}
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@THER(£)
() Impairment of assets (continued) n BEFBEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) BEMEEZFEE)
— Reversals of impairment losses — B OFEEEE
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an HEBAINNEEMS - MAE

impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(l)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period,
or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
not profit or loss.
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,_l: »
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories, mainly comprise construction materials,
biomass fuel, spare parts and consumables used in the
repairs and maintenance of the environmental energy
projects, environmental water projects and alternative
energy projects, are carried at cost less provision for
obsolescence (if any). Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula. When inventories are
consumed, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in note 1(v)(i). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in
the balance sheet as the “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amounts due to customers for contract work”
(as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet
paid by the customer are included under “Debtors,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments”.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

()

(a)

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(l)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
1(u)(i), creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(t)

(i)

(ifi)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Income tax (continued)
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 FE@THER(£)
(t) Income tax (continued) t) FRBR(E)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses in respect of that guarantee i.e.
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

Revenue from construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue
and expenses are recognised in profit or loss
in proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract.

The stage of completion is assessed by reference
to surveyors of work performed. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. An expected loss on a
contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue from service concession arrangement
Revenue relating to construction services under
a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the work
performed, consistent with the Group’s accounting
policy on recognising revenue from construction
contracts (see note 1(v)(i)). Operation or service
revenue is recognised in the period in which
services are provided by the Group. When the
Group provides more than one service in a
service concession arrangement the consideration
received is allocated by reference to the relative fair
values of the services delivered.

Revenue from environmental energy project,
environmental water project and alternative energy
project operation services

Revenue from environmental energy project,
environmental water project and alternative energy
project operation services are recognised when the
related services are rendered.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Finance income
Finance income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Construction management fee income
Construction management fee income is recognised
when the related service is rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(vii) Toll bridge revenue

Toll bridge revenue, net of business tax, is
recognised upon the passage of vehicles through
the bridge.

(viii) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ix) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Repairs and maintenance

(x)

Expenditures on major overhaul, repair and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is both the Company’s presentation currency and
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1

(x) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

FESEEEKR(E)
(x) eI (4E)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before
1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(2)

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal. Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on the face
of the income statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
disposal of the assets or disposal groups
constituting the discontinued operation.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(aa) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

0)

(ii)
(i)

An

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

0)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(ab) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build—Operate-Transfer
(“BOT”), Transfer—Operate-Transfer (“TOT”) and Build—
Operate-Own (“BOQO”) arrangements in respect of its
environmental energy projects, environmental water
projects, alternative energy projects and toll bridge
project.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2 @:stHEREE(#E)
(continued)
(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

(a) EEAA KBS BEREATE 2 BEE

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)

The Group concluded that all the BOT and TOT
arrangements and certain BOO arrangements are
service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC) 12,
because the local government controls and regulates
the services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In
respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry
of concession right agreement, the infrastructure
has to be transferred to the local government at nil
consideration. Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is
used in the service concession arrangements for its
entire or substantial useful life.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 13(c), 15, 28 and 30 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to valuation of investment properties, goodwill
impairment, fair value of share options granted and
financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

() Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 1(n) and 1(v)(i),
revenue and profit recognition on an incompleted
project is dependent on estimating the final
outcome of the construction contract, as
well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activity undertaken by the Group, the
Group makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced such
that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached, the “Gross amounts due from customers
for contract work” as disclosed in note 20 will
not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the balance sheet
date, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years as an adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2 @:tHEMEE (&)
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(i) Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

if3)3

(b) EFEEHBEIMEM 2&H(E)
(i) REBRZFEIRETR

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of
the customers to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing
of the receivables, customer credit-worthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial
conditions of customers were to deteriorate, actual
write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Other impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values
of investments in subsidiaries, associates, fixed
assets, intangible assets and other financial
assets may not be recoverable, these assets may
be considered impaired, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of
these assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in
use. It is difficult to estimate precisely fair values
because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating
costs.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 2 @:rHEMEE &)
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) (b) EFLEHRAEEM Z&H (&)

(iv) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management reassess these estimates at each
balance sheet date. Additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@) Turnover

Continuing operations

The principal activities of the Group are construction,
environmental energy project operation (waste-to-
energy power plants, industrial solid waste landfills
and hazardous waste landfill), environmental water
project operation (waste-water treatment plants and
reusable water treatment plants), alternative energy
project operation (methane-to-energy power plants,
photovoltaic energy projects, a biomass power
generation plant and waste water source heat pump
projects), environmental technology, construction
management, equipment manufacturing, property
investments and investment holding.
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 BERBEDHHEE)

(continued)

(a) Turnover (continued) (a) EXE(Z)
Continuing operations (continued) TSR ()
Turnover represents the revenue from construction EHEEPEREERB WS « REERRE
services, revenue from environmental energy projects, JRIBE - RIRKBIEE RFLIRIEER 2
environmental water projects and alternative energy EERBWE - BBERA - HEB AR
projects operation services, finance income, rental TREEBRA - FABEEEEPRE
income and construction management fee income. RHEEEEZW AR WEFENT ¢

The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

2013 2012
=% ZT—=F%
$'000 $'000
Tz Tt
Revenue from environmental energy project IB{Re¢RIE B iSRS
construction services Wz 2,516,997 932,978
Revenue from environmental water project IR{R/KFIE B ZEiE R
construction services e 449,779 530,231
Revenue from alternative energy project HeERE B 2ERE
construction services Wz 150,804 138,741
Revenue from environmental energy project IB{RELIRIE B 184 R
operation services e 635,427 453,654
Revenue from environmental water project IB{R/KFSIE B &4 RE
operation services W= 558,461 502,789
Revenue from alternative energy project HeeIRIE B iEE R
operation services e 259,867 256,097
Finance income RS A 744,386 594,994
Gross rentals from investment properties K&V EFH S AEEE 3,742 454
Construction management fee income IREBBIA 403 -
5,319,866 3,409,938
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(a) Turnover (continued)

Continuing operations (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has
transactions with four local government authorities
in the PRC which individually exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenues. The revenue from these four PRC
local government authorities during the year ended
31 December 2013 amounted to $953,152,000
(2012: $53,897,000), $614,290,000 (2012:
$979,723,000), $589,724,000 (2012: $272,900,000)
and $539,896,000 (2012: $51,295,000) respectively.

The aggregated revenues from environmental
energy project construction and operation services,
environmental water project construction and
operation services, alternative energy project
construction and operation services and finance
income derived from local government authorities
in the PRC amounted to $5,089,324,000 (2012:
$3,028,499,000) for the year ended 31 December
2013. The revenues are included in “Environmental
energy project construction and operation”,
“Environmental water project construction and
operation” and “Alternative energy project construction
and operation” segments as disclosed in note 3(b) to
the financial statements. Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from these customers are set out in
note 30(a).

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following six reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments.

— Environmental energy project construction
and operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of waste-to-energy
power plants, industrial solid waste landfills and
hazardous waste landfill to generate revenue from
construction services, revenue from operation
services as well as finance income.

3

(a) &

(b)

LEENDEHWE (&)

EEBEE)

FFEAR T ()
HE-_ZT—=+-A=+—HBItF
& - ZN 52 [ 1 Y {E P B b I A R i
TR BARZELHAEEREE
10% - BE_-_T—=F+-_F=+—H
WEFFE - R E £ O {E A B & b BT
Bz W= o Rl A953,152,000 L ( = &
— % : 53,897,0007T) * 614,290,000
T (=F— — 4 : 979,723,000 7T ) *
589,724,00070( =& ——4F : 272,900,000
7T ) % 539,896,000 7T ( — & — — 4 :
51,295,0007T) °

HE-_ZT—=F+_F=+—HIHF
€ RE R RE BT H#RE 2 IRIRER
HEREEREERBKE  BERKH
HEEEREEREKE - FERE
BEEMEERE K RMEBALR
¥ /4 5,089,324,000 T ( =& — — 4 :
3,028,499,0007T) ° B W maT A [ IR
REFREBZRERES DI - [IRIERK
WEBZRERES | DR [ FeeRE
BRERES | DI (FRUBHRRM T
3b) - BEZERFER2EREER
%2 BRI FES0(a) ©

DEEHE

AEBEZEBEEGRBEZE D SZED
BRI ANIAE IR - IR AR A EBEL B IR D
ERXRBFEMAEERSEEEZR
ERZ—8H - AEEEE T MR
1I7E%#&%%a‘l3 o REBEIWEA GHEM
BEDE  AERTIIATHRE DA

- RRGERABRENES ' BED
DEEBEENEENREER
TXRERREYEHEES NER P?;E’f@)

HIBE - AR &R W
& AR s U R K AU o
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__1: »
Ej % %& il% I}fj‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

Environmental water project construction
and operation: this segment engages in the
construction, upgrade and operation of waste-
water treatment plants, reusable water treatment
plants and surface water treatment plant to
generate revenue from construction services,
revenue from operation services as well as finance
income.

Alternative energy project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of methane-to-energy
power plants, photovoltaic energy projects,
biomass power generation plants and waste water
source heat pump projects to generate revenue
from construction services, revenue from operation
services as well as finance income.

Environmental technology and construction
management: this segment engages in the
conduct of environmental protection technology
research projects, the provision of construction
management services and manufacturing of
environmental protection equipment to generate
management and consultancy fee income and
revenue from sale of equipment.

Property investment: this segment engages in
the leasing of office premises to generate rental
income and to gain from the capital appreciation of
the properties’ values in the long term.

Infrastructure construction and operation:
this segment engages in the construction and
operation of a toll bridge to generate revenue from
construction service and toll fee revenue.

3 2XEEDE

(b) &I E ()

Bk (&)
154%7J<7_f&1§§@if&3§% TS
DEEBEE  BUEREEITKE

B~ FoKE AR IE R R KE
HE - WRIGRERE R - B2
PR 75 U 25 K2 BA TS UR A o

HMeeRABRENRES : WEKD

HEBRERELBREER - &

RBEERA - EWEREERMNS

7}<*J?§ﬂ?159  DABRERE & IR 7% M
3B R W M B AU

BRMEEIEER kXKD
BEBETRAMKRMHIAR - BH]
TREERERRERRSESE - N
PREUE IE & B RS B R A TR R 8
BEHBA -

MERE  WEBOBBEREEER
NEBMN - ARBESKRA - ARk
K EBEZ KETHET RIUKE

ERRErEsE  EXBHHEs
BENMELZKERR URIREZE
AR5 e o Ko W B AR AR M 2



Annual Report 2013 —Z—=%4%# 175

Notes to the Financial Statements

__l: A}
Ej % %& %% Mj‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (r BAFERRIN - FrA BB E)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

EERBLDEWHRE (&)

(b) 2 EBE ()

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () #nEf%EiE BEREE
For the purposes of assessing segment HoIMRBEFERDHE 2 ERD
performance and allocating resources between Rms  AEBz&RERERT

segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, interest in associates, deferred
tax assets and current assets with the exception
of goodwill, investments in other financial assets,
intercompany receivables and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include current taxation,
deferred tax liabilities, creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses attributable to the activities
of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, with the
exception of intercompany payables.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales of
equipments and provision of construction
management services, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including technical know-
how, is not measured.

WlﬁﬁﬁxﬂM%ﬁ%%ﬂZ¥
CBENAE:

NHBEBRMBERLEE B
BE BEnnfEaD  BEEHEE
ERRBEE  HEIRERHE N
HPHEEZRE  KEARAQA
Bz EURBEREMBEEE -
%Eﬁ@%k1ﬂﬂ“$2¥%&
BELZARHRIE  BEEHEEA
& - ERRR - R RERE
AERMASESMEREREZE
E HTEREEAAREZEN
TR e

W kA H2EATRE DDA
BEZWRREEZRATNE#E
“%Zﬁ?%?iZﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ

EEEAE - A BRBRED
ﬁﬁZmﬁﬁ%&%fZIF%ﬁ
RSN - H— DA% — o S
2B (BIEEEMBEI) L TE
HER -
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “EBITDA” i.e. “earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning EBITDA, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue (including
inter-segment sales and revenue from construction
management services), interest expense from
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation and amortisation and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

__l: »
Ej % %& %% I}fj‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

W
3 &2

RN D ERERE ()

(b) 2 EB3RE (&)

(1)

DEbRAE  BERREE)

ARBREDHRBANZRTIARNAE
[EBITDA] * BD [BR A B ~ BiIE
WERBHEMEN] - RTHE
EBITDA + A"N&E B 2 Z 7% 5t &R g
SERMEMSE2EE (flan: Z=E
- ZEAMe REMBR AR
ETBEA)(E#E— S HE -

B IR B BIEBITDA Z o 28 & %t
h - BERENEREBEBATIEE
ZoEER: WE(BEREEEANRAR
MZHEBERRAEIREEREZ
DEEWE) SO PEEEEZE
EFSRIREDEELRER
ZHERBOBEEZIE - BHEK

BE o
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8 BEBERDEHEE)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) D EBEReE (&)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () #PEbEE BERBEE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable BE_ZT—=FR-T—Z-F+=
segments as provided to the Group’s most ﬂ —+—HIEFE  XEBHER
senior executive management for the purposes of o BE & 8B 5% B8 7 A 1 A AN 5 B &%
resource allocation and assessment of segment RERERHEZATREDHBER
performance for the years ended 31 December QHT :

2013 and 2012 is set out below.
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
FEEEER RHEEER
Environmental Environmental Aterative Environmental
energy project water project enerqy project technology and Infrastructure
construction and constructionand ~ construction and construction construction and
operation operation operation management operation
BReRER BRIBER i iER BRRAR  Property investment Sub-otal i Totel
BERER BERER BiERER TEEE ELE it BERER ]
203 20121 2013|2012 013 2012 2013 2012 2003 2012 2003 2012 2013 012 2013 012
I e s i i e e
$000| $000| $000| 00| 00| 000 $o00| 00| oo oo ooo| Sooof Sooof S0o0| $000| $000
| fz| Fo| x| | F=| Fm| x| x| F=| | x| FR| Tr| TR| T
Revenue fomextemal -~ RENREE
customers ey 3,616,152 (1,741,898 |1,263,630 |1,267,442 | 415,939 | 400,144 403 - 34 454 (5,319,866 (3,409,938 - | 73,564 15,319,866 |3,483,502
Iter-segment revenve  S3ENE - - - - - - | 661,893 | 389,229 - - | 661,893 | 389,229 - - | 661,893 | 389,229
Reportable segment
revenue 3,616,152 1,741,898 (1,283,630 |1.267,442 | 415,939 | 400,144 | 662,296 | 389229 | 3742 454 15,981,759 {3,799,167 - | 73564 5,981,759 (3,872,731
Reportable segment /&7 3
profit (EBITDA) ET(EBTDA) |1,541,318 | 996,743 | 660,043 | 442,860 | 146,147 | 205,157 | 385,796 [ 255,529 3,216 436/2,736,520 {1,900,72 - | 69012 2,736,520 [1,969,737
Interestincome from bank~ /773175
depostts WA 7896 3051| 6745( 11662 456 1 2840 23% - S| 19T 17498 - Q0 11w 17920
Inferest expense FES T 132,692 | 136462 | 57403 [ 78721 | A7173| 17852 | 43987 | 34651 - - | 251,285 | 267,676 - 2302 251,265 | 269978
Depreciation and EREH
amortisation TA | 6493 15066 9935 | 47358 ( 43881 17.697( 8251 1 1| 87554 | 68,561 -| 10889| 87554 | 79450
Adaitons to fired assets ~ EERFEER
and intanglble assets VLR 340,188 | 11028 12,292 89648 | 153,372 97014 | 24763 | 531,924 - - | 530,615 | 729,614 - 7| 530,615 | 729,621
Adaitons to non-curent  EEZ Bl
porton of other ERiEERE
recavables and deposits ~ WEFANT
and gross amounts RV
due fom customersfor  SEEDERED
contract work 2,896,026 (1288244 | 726,717 | 743,765 | 3958 | 60313 - - - - (3,626,701 (2,092,322 - - (3,626,701 |2,092,322
Reportable segment
assels 1,134,410(7929,219 (4,945,965 |4,465,279 1,796,499 [1,624,461 1,030,748 |1,077,356 | 200,159 | 110,087 [19,107,781{15,196,402 - - [19,107,781/15,196,402
Reportable segment
ligbilities 3,935,287 (2,722,138 (1,282,006 |1492,508 | 653,582 | 566,215 | 862,925 | 854870 8,102 | 3,083 |6,761,902 (5,638,814 - - (6,761,902 [5,638,814
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(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
E\j‘ % %Ii % Mj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EEBRDIME(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) P& (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) BTHED Wz - BF - BEER
profit, assets and liabilities BEZHE
2013 2012
k- St 3 —E--F
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operation operations  operation
BE Rk Total HE &1k Total
BEEE K%K g% | QLEEB  KEEER k]
$000 $000 $ 000 $000 $000 $000
T T i T i i
Revenue Wi
Reportable segment AYREH Ble
revenue 5,981,759 - 5,981,759 | 3,799,167 73,564 3,872,731
Elimination of KD M
inter-segment revenue (661,893) - (661,893) | (389,229 - (389,229)
Consolidated tumover MAEEE 5,319,866 - 5,319,866 | 3,409,938 73,564 3,483,502
Profit &N
Reportable segment profit  EFHREDBEF | 2,736,520 - 2,736,520 | 1,900,725 69,012 1,969,737
Elimination of BiEH BEAT
inter-segment profit (493,237 - (493,237) | (315,967) - (315,967)
Reportable segment profit  REREESNR
derived from the Group’s ~ BF 2 AT H%E
external customers BT 2,243,283 - 2243283 | 1584758 69,012 1,653,770
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation (90,697) - (90,697)| (71509  (10,889)  (82,398)
Finance costs BBEA (315,579) - (315579 | (312,640) (2302)  (314,942)
Gain on disposal of HERERR
subsidiaries Wozs - - - - 234,768 234,768
Unallocated head office FPEEA
and corporate income i%”ﬁ(}\ 9,401 - 9,401 17,059 - 17,059
Unallocated head office FPOEEA
and corporate expenses i%ﬁ;ﬁi (34,755) - (34,755) (47,106) (1,895) (49,001)
Consolidated profit RAREAET
before taxation 1,811,653 - 1,811,653 | 1,170,562 288,694 1,459,256
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 EEBRDIME(E)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2EHRE(E)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) BTHED W - BF - EER
profit, assets and liabilities (continued) BlEZHE(E)
2013 2012
=== ===
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BATHREDEEE 19,107,781 15,196,402
Non-current other financial assets EREBHEMB S E E 176,710 196,692
Goodwill EES 20,793 20,793
Unallocated head office and ROBBAT R
corporate assets ﬁ%é? 4,165,763 1,169,227
Consolidated total assets IR BAEBER 23,471,047 16,583,114
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities BYREDEBEE 6,761,902 5,638,814
Unallocated head office and AN W /NTINS
corporate liabilities TEAE 2,930,024 2,273,891
Consolidated total liabilities re RERE 9,691,926 7,912,705
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers, (ii) the Group’s fixed
assets and intangible assets and (iii) the Group’s
non-current portion of other receivables and
deposits and non-current portion of gross amounts
due from customers for contract work. The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of fixed
assets, and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of other receivables
and deposits, intangible assets and gross amounts
due from customers for contract work.

Notes to the Financial Statements
B\j j% %& ié I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

o
3 &:

RN D ERERE ()

(b) DEHE(Z)

(ifj) Hb 2 & FY

TREINERO)AKREREIRETF
ZWs - (AR EZBEEEENME
& B R (i) AN 5= B 22 B i e W 3R IR
ke 2 MO REEERFE
#TIRFKIRAREE 2 FRAVEI R (D 2 P

EiE - FPMAELRERRERH
HwEE D - EFFﬁZ—Ei@IEEEF"‘;

RITEME (ABEEEMS) -
/bF&Z%i%ZFﬁEim%ﬁ(LAﬁJM%

WRERES  BYEEREBERE

FeX I aREms)8n -

Non-current portion of

other receivables and
deposits and gross
amounts due from
customers for
contract work
Revenue from Fixed assets and Hih YA R
external customers intangible assets EeRERERAY
RESNREP 2 e ETEERENEE  IRIBAEZEINHBH
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-CZF | 23 | ZF-ZE | ZE-ZF | ZBR-=F | 2 CF
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T i i T T i
Continuing operations; #EFL %%
Hong Kong N
(place of domicile) (e ) - - 58,005 56,844 - -
Other parts of the PRC HEE iR 5,312,832 | 3,402,041 | 2,559,621 | 1,961,090 | 12,058,931 | 9,492,919
Germany &8 7,034 7,897 66,146 66,677 - -
5,319,866 | 3,409,938 | 2,683,772 | 2,084,611 | 12,058,931 | 9,492,919
Discontinued operation:; #4827
Other parts of the PRC HE A E - 73,564 - - - -
5,319,866 | 3,483,502 | 2,683,772 | 2,084,611 | 12,058,931 | 9,492,919
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4 OTHER REVENUE

4 EAblas

Continuing operations BESEER
2013 2012
=2—=4 —E——F
$°000 $°000
Tt Tt
Bank interest income IRTTH BULA 27,339 24,320
Dividend income from listed securities EmESEZREWA 3,539 8,804
Government grant* BT Bh & 4,273 1,057
Value-added tax refund** BEBR 94,316 56,660
Others Hi 14,723 16,088
144,190 106,929

*k

Government grant of $4,273,000 (2012: $1,057,000) was
granted during the year ended 31 December 2013 to subsidise
certain environmental energy, environmental water and
alternative energy projects of the Group in the PRC, of which the
entitlement was unconditional and under the discretion of the
relevant authorities.

Value-added tax refund of $94,316,000 (2012: $56,660,000) was
received during the year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to
environmental energy and alternative energy project operations
of the Group in the PRC. The entitlement of the value-added tax
refund was unconditional and under the discretion of the relevant
authorities.

*%

REE-_T—Z=ZF+_A=+—HILF
E » AEBEERIT/HBEI£4,273,000
T(ZFE——4% :1,057,0007T) - LA#HEL
AEBE THBIRRER « IRIRKIE LI
RERIER - BRAMBN S TR - I
A BERERIERTEEN -

REBEEZTE—=F+-_A=+—HL
FE - AEEERHZSHERRER
Dt RELTHE ERPIEERER
94,316,0007T( — & ——4 : 56,660,000
JC) o BRASERE EGEHER 0 I
A AEERERTE N -

5 OTHER LOSS

5 HiEiE

Continuing operations BEREER
2013 2012
—_F— —_=F—=

$'000 $'000
T T

Net loss on sale of other property, HEEMYE  BEL
plant and equipment HE 2 FEE 128 28

Impairment loss on available-for-sale TEBSFEEEE

securities (note 18) (Ft7E18) - 9,994
128 10,022
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B\j % %Ii % Mj‘ %AEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 BRAERIE A
Continuing operations BEREER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BERTAMBEMER, (A

2013 2012
—EF—= —_F——
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) A& M
Interest on bank advances wholly BREFRNEREEER
repayable within five years ZIRITERZFE 155,630 144,701
Interest on other bank advances and HAbSRITIE R R EAh
other loans B2 AR 159,949 167,939
315,579 312,640
(b) Staff costs (b) B TRAK
Contributions to defined contribution TE B FURIKET &
retirement plan R 29,054 18,503
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERAEMBER 350,477 254,744
379,531 273,247
(c) Other items (c) EfbIER
Amortisation B
— interest in leasehold land held for —IREBREEHERE
own use under operating leases BRZHEE LM
= 1,184 972
- intangible assets —EmILEE 19,433 18,107
Depreciation e 70,080 52,430
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 F RR (20,149) (10,601)
Auditors’ remuneration 1% EREN N &
- audit services — BIZIRTE 3,900 3,650
— other services — H M AR 7% 6 6
Operating lease charges: KEHEER
minimum lease payments =EEEER
- hire of premises —YERE 10,530 5,343
Research and development costs i 3% K2 B B pk AN 8,377 11,793
Rentals receivable from investment FEWIE EMER SR
properties less direct outgoings of B 119,000
$119,000 (2012: $45,000) o (ZE——4F
45,0007T) (3,623) (409)
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v

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

7

Z-—L—‘

AT

Bk

2R TS

/

[mo
E\|,

(a) FEBEERATZHER

represents:
2013 2012
—E=F —T_fF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ZAHAF{1E — & 8 RIS
Provision for the year NEZEME - -
Current tax — PRC Income Tax ZAHEFIE—-PERFER
Provision for the year REZEAG 149,707 144,528
Over-provision in respect of prior years — B1F € /& B8 % (2,311) (19,427)
147,396 125,101
Deferred tax EAEF IR
Origination and reversal of temporary =R ZES
_ Jdifferences . k®wE 300,059 | 180,061 |
447,455 305,152
Representing: (A
Income tax expense from continuing A R AL B g
operations TSR 447,455 266,554
Income tax expense from discontinued 4% |F 4844 ¥57% >
operation FriS sz - 38,598
447,455 305,152
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made HEB T‘J SHME  BRBE-T—=
in the financial statements for the years ended 31 FRZZE—Z—F+ZA=+— EIJJ:EF

December 2013 and 2012 as the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax
purpose.

Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits under
taxation ruling in the PRC. During the year, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to tax at 50% of the standard
tax rates or fully exempt from income tax under the
relevant tax rules and regulations.

$%IZE/%%%“" SIRER - Bt
AEBEYERHBERERARTEFEHR
TR B -

o B SR 75 2 T TR R SRV & ) DA R B3R
TTAEME2%HE - FR - RIBEARA
MIGERIMER - ETHENMBARZA
RIZER K Z50% AT IALEPTEH
HIRF R ©
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7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

REREKRZABER@E)

(b) RERABRAE B EAIHESTR
Rz H AR

party to dispose of the Group’s 80% equity interest in
and shareholder’s loan to, Greenway Venture Limited
(“Greenway”) at a total consideration of approximately
$657,629,000. The subsidiaries of Greenway include
China Everbright Road & Bridge (Fujian) Investment Limited
and Fuzhou Guang Min Road and Bridge Construction &
Development Company Limited. The principal activities
of Greenway and its subsidiaries are construction and
operation of a toll bridge in the PRC. The disposal was
completed in June 2012.

Accordingly, the consolidated operating results of
Greenway and its subsidiaries for the period ended 31 May
2012 are presented as discontinued operation in the
financial statements.

2013 2012
—EF—= T4
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Profit before taxation R B3 A &2 R 1,811,653 1,459,256
Notional tax on profit before taxation, WREEATRG AR
calculated at the rates applicable to HAFTE R R g BR T AT
profits in the tax jurisdictions BHtE 7 2EF1E
concerned 460,427 333,004
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TTTDHiHjZfRIEE“ 40,320 25,342
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERFBUAZ FiET & (12,192) (7,596)
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax AIZERHREGIEACER
exemption in the PRC BN BB E (131,578) (88,874)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KERAMAERERZ
recognised jﬁfﬁjﬁuﬁﬁazmlﬁﬂ“ 16,132 10,336
Tax effect of withholding tax on TELRFTS TP EIMTE A
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries &% ,}E”ﬂzmlﬁ%; 76,657 52,367
Over-provision in respect of BEFERELETR
prior years (2,311) (19,427)
Actual tax expense ERBIBEZ L 447,455 305,152
8 DISCONTINUED OPERATION IR IRE TS
On 25 May 2012, the Company entered into sale RZZE—ZFRAHAZTHA  ARAEEE
and purchase agreements with an independent third NE=ZAFAMNEEHE HEAEER

Greenway Venture Limited([ Greenway | )&
80% % #E M & B F Greenway Z R E
&K A{B & #)657,629,000 7T ° Greenway Z
MBARBREPEEAKE(BEI)RER
RARREMNAEEREESFAZEBRAT
Greenway N EffB AR 2 T E2XK AR F
HEEkEE —HREUEBR BRELESE
BER=ZZE—Z=FNAREK -

Ilkl: MR A - Greenway & H it B
REARBE-T——FAA=+— B ILHH
IR EEIE R AR IEEEER -



Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FFf

Notes to the Financial Statements
E\j‘ % $& % Mj‘ %?E (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (r BAFERRIN - FrA BB E)

8 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
(a) Results of the discontinued operation:

8 WRILEEXG &)
(a) M ILAEERE 2 ¥M&

1 January 2012
to 31 May 2012

—E-—F

—5—HE

T

_:EH :‘I’_ H

$'000

Tz

Revenue e 73,986

Expenses s (20,060)

Profit before taxation BR 5 A & F) 53,926

Income tax Frigti (13,598)

Profit from operation KA TR 2 B A 40,328
Gain on sale of discontinued operation HERIEEER Y

(net of tax) Wz (Br#ii%) 209,768

Profit for the period AEIE & T 250,096

(b) Results of the discontinued operation is arrived

at after charging/(crediting):

(b) RIEREEK 2 EBECHKR (5T A) :

1 January 2012
to 31 May 2012
— 4

—A-B=%
AA=+—H
$000
Tt
() Finance costs: () MBER:
Interest on bank advances wholly ARAFTAZEEERZ
repayable within five years RITERZFE 2,302
(i) Staff costs: (i) BIAA :
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FORRET EIE R
retirement plan 45
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMER 754
799
(i) Other items: (i) HALIEE :
Bank interest income HRITH WA (422)
Amortisation of intangible asset M A EE 10,798
Depreciation e 91
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8 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 8
(c) Cash flows of the discontinued operation:

RIS ()
(c) RILEEXRBRE

ME -

1 January 2012
to 31 May 2012

—T——F—A—-R%

—E——HFFRA=1—H

$'000

Tt

Net cash generated from operating activities K& EEE SRS F5E 32,124
Net cash generated from investing activities & &EETE L 2 R4 R 58 648,563
Net cash used in financing activities BEEESFTHRE RS R (46,838)
Net cash flows for the period AEER®FRE 633,849

(d) Effect of disposal on the financial position of

(d) HESEHAEENBRRE 2L

the Group:
$’000
Tz
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFRE
Fixed assets &l & B 1,515
Intangible assets mEE 533,419
Goodwill FEES 25,340
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and FEUBR R « B {th FE WK IE
prepayments e RTEIIHRIE 32,394
Pledged bank deposits SRR TIFER 158,709
Cash and cash equivalents Re RFEEEY 9,059
Bank loans ﬁﬂﬁg%ﬁ’\ (85,484)
Creditors, other payables and accrued JERTERER « EMuER FRIA N
expenses i ,\ﬁﬂ (4,309)
Current taxation NEARRIE (4,456)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEEE (16,915)
Loan from non-controlling shareholder IR R E R (47,142)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IS FE =R (82,713)
Net identifiable assets AR EEF R 519,421
Exchange reserve realised on disposal R IR 2 B (96,560)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B ARz W 234,768
657,629
Satisfied by: SENVAEE
Cash consideration RERE 657,629
Analysis of the net cash inflow in respect of BRI ENE 7717 2 A
the disposal of subsidiaries JREEA T
Cash consideration B&RE 657,629
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrHERERASEEY (9,059)
Net cash inflow HemAFHE 648,570
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 EEM=
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 RIEBRB(ATUEN ) F161 (8 E 2 = 5 B
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ST :
Saleries,
alowances Retirement
and benefits scheme 2013
Directors’ inkind Discretionary contributions Total
fees & 2R bonuses RINETE =
554 KEON& EETEAL A ot ]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
T Tr T T T
Executive directors HITES

Tang Shuangning 3 - 25 - - 25
Zang Qiutao BINE - 1,699 - - 1,699
Chen Xiaoping BR/ N - 2,175 5,280 - 7,455
Wang Tianyi IXE - 1,585 1,700 - 3,285
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond #1552 - 1,325 1,600 290 3,215
Cai Shuguang B - 1,263 1,500 31 2,794

Independent BUFRITES

non-executive
directors

Fan Yan Hok, Philip BB 200 45 - - 245
Mar Selwyn SR 200 50 - - 250
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE2 200 50 - - 250
Zhai Haitao BBz 200 50 - - 250

800 8,267 10,080 321 19,468
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEM=EE)
Saleries,
alowances Retirement
and benefits scheme 2012
Directors’ in kind Discretionary contributions Total
fees  Fd EES bonuses |
5 REDT BETEA 5K it
$000 $:000 $000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr T T
Executive directors HWIEE
Tang Shuangning EeEE - 25 - - 25
Zang Qiutao EIE - 1,704 - - 1,704
Li Xueming (note) 25 (M) - 524 - - 524
Chen Xiaoping BNE - 2,175 4,800 - 6,975
Wang Tianyi TAE - 1,585 1,600 - 3,185
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =352 - 1,325 1,500 140 2,965
Cai Shuguang K - 1,312 1,000 21 2,333
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Fan Yan Hok, Philip BIE 180 30 - - 210
Mar Selwyn SH8% 200 55 - - 255
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey 5] 200 55 - - 255
Zhai Haitao BEE 200 55 - - 255
780 8,845 8,900 161 18,686
Note:  Mr. Li Xueming resigned as executive director and Vice- fizk : ZBREER-"ZT——FWNA —_+RHBETHT
Chairman on 25 April 2012. EERBERBS -
10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 = # B E R A+
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four TREE=TMERALH - EREg(=
(2012: four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed E——F:NE)REET  BFHRNMEFRE
in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of RO ER - A T —REARA T Z2EHE 42
the other individual are as follows: BERFIBAT
2013 2012
—_F— —_=F—=
$’000 $’000
Tz +7T
Salaries and other emoluments e hEMME 1,204 307
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT 1,300 2,088
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET B K 29 21
2,533 2,416
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10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 &= % BEBI A (&)

(continued)
The emoluments of the individual with the highest EHEEHMENA LT ZHER AT E
emoluments are within the following band: :
2013 2012
—F—= —E—CfF
Number of Number of
individual individual
Emolument band M ZE AE AE
$2,000,001 - $2,500,000 2,000,0017T - 2,500,0007T - 1
$2,500,001 - $3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,0007T 1 -
11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11 AR A IR E(H & A
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders KRR EIIRERE(L 4R G B F B 1EE1858,758,000
of the Company includes a loss of $58,758,000 (2012: JL(ZZF— =% : &7/396,805,0007T)E 5 A
profit of $396,805,000) which has been dealt with in the RNATZBEIRENA ©
financial statements of the Company.
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s FSEHEARARAFEN(EE) B2
(loss)/profit for the year: AR -
2013 2012
—F—= —E—_fF
$’000 $’000
Tz Tz
Amount of consolidated (loss)/profit BAIAKRR R Z B iR
attributable to equity shareholders dealt N7 REERGE
with in the Company’s financial statements (F|E18) &F| (58,758) 396,805
Reversal of impairment loss on amount due B UL B A 7]
from a subsidiary FIBFEREE 9,900 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiary to a subsidiary HEM B AT TS —HE
NSIR 6 16,681 -
Final dividends from a subsidiary attributable i@ B EE R FH
to the profits of the previous financial years,  fig » WP F R ET 2
approved and paid during the year 2 B A RIRHARE 15,277 69,210
Company’s (loss)/profit for the year RARRERZ (ER),/
(note 29(a)) B (F7E29()) (16,900) 466,015
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity BN RENARRRE 2 REFFIBHNM T

shareholders of the Company are set out in note 29(b). 29(b) °
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 GIRAF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $1,324,667,000 (2012: $1,123,269,000)
and the weighted average number of 4,063,329,000
ordinary shares (2012: 3,788,297,000 ordinary shares) in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

FREARBF TR AQT) LRI E
FE 15 & A 1,324,667,000 . ( Z & — =
F :1,123,269,0007T) M FA B BT E
B A INHE 15 8r4,063,329,000 /% & 8
H&(:;‘ — — 4 : 3,788,297,000 4% & i@
FR)FHE - EFtEFAMT :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERRINIEF 12
2013 2012
—T—=F —T—=
000 ‘000
+ +
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January —A— E! BEITLER 4,038,412 3,675,462
Effect of ordinary shares issued E%E?TT Rz B
(note 29(c)(ii) (B £E29(c) i) 14,137 109,973
Effect of share options exercised BT o &
(note 29(c(iii)) (B 7E29(c)(iii) ) 10,780 2,862
Weighted average number of ordinary W+—-—A=+—HB2
shares at 31 December TR i T 5 4,063,329 3,788,297
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREEEF

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $1,324,667,000
(2012: $1,123,269,000) and the weighted average
number of 4,067,373,000 ordinary shares (2012:
3,809,145,000 ordinary shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

FRESERA IR AN R T RKREEE
15 B F1,324,667,0007T ( —ZF— —£F :
1,128,269,0007T ) K& i/ f& hnE F 15 2k
4,067,373,000 % & ﬁﬂx(_; ——fF:
3,809,145,000/x @M )T HE - E5tE
HRAWT :

BBRINEFE (#E)

2013 2012
—F—= —Eg—=
000 000

F F

Weighted average number of (\\Jr A=+—Bz

ordinary shares at 31 December T mAR Nt T 5 8 4,063,329 3,788,297
Effect of deemed issue of shares under ¥ 18 AR E A &) 5 IR &

the Company’s share option scheme FrElEERTRG 2

for nil consideration (note 28) 2 (MfiFE28) 4,044 20,848
Weighted average number of ordinary W+ -—A=+—B2ZE@EK

shares (diluted) at 31 December HNAE S S (S @5) 4,067,373 3,809,145
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13 FIXED ASSETS 13 EEEE
(a) The Group (a) A&E

Motor Interest n

vehicles, leasehold land

Leasehold lectronic held for own

improvements,  equipment and e Lnder

furmiture other operating

andfixtures  fixed @ssets Ipases Total

lodand  Pentand  HE0E i Construction hvestment ~ BEAREE  fed assels
buldngs ~ machingry 6. ETERER  hpogess  Swbtotd  Popetes  #fE8AZ BFEE
thREF  HERER  GARRE  HpHEREE  ARIE N RENE  REDHER g
§1000 §000 §1000 §000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 $1000
fr 1 S 1 r 1 r fr 1

Cost or valuation; BB AE:
At January 2013 AoE-ZE-F-F 794,281 612,036 2,886 109,906 67,615 1,606,724 10,731 39,013 1,696,468
Exchange adjustments EiE PANPA] 18,049 581 3484 94 43,784 2,582 1,156 47,522
Additons g 2,661 57 6,605 39,129 1378 56,360 - - 56,360
Disposas e - - (345) (2,669) - (3,014) - (3,014
Surplus on revaluation g 107,153 - - - 107,153 - 107,453
Reclassfication B 49,190 (49,190) - - - - - - -
Adstments o 032 (15 - - - (i) - 19 (190)
Tanstered fromandand. RS EE
buldngs tomestment  ERENE
propertes (184,73 - - - <) 16 - e
Transfered fom BREREIR
construction in progress 40,554 3,380 - - (7593 - - -
At 31 December 2013 ARk
+ZAZT-H 828,513 601,139 0721 149,850 - 1,609,229 177,442 3,195 1,624,866
Representing; [
Cost ke 828,513 601,139 0,121 149,850 - 1,609,229 - 3,195 1647424
Valuation - 2013 [fE-25-= - - - - - - 177,442 - 177,442
828,513 601,139 0,721 149,850 - 1,609,229 177,442 3,195 1,624,866
Accumulated depreciation - Z5rE R
and amortisation;
A1 January 2013 AoE-ZE-f-F 84,063 33,99 12974 8,11 - 184,209 - 1,212 185,421
Exchange acjustments EiiE 674 1,503 24 1629 - 4400 - 60 4,160
Charge for he year KEETE 27% 26,450 412 16,179 - 70,080 - 1,184 1,264
Witien backondisposal ~~ HEBAR - - (331) 2364) - (2699) - - (2693)
Eimington on reveation [543 (20603 - - - - (20,609) - - (20609)
At 31 December 2013 HoE-ck
e e . L. .. DO .0
Net book value: RAAE:

At 31 Decerber 2013 Nk
t2A=1-8 14,640 539,191 12,078 81,229 - 1,874,138 177442 35,739 1,587,319
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 B EBEEE)
(a) The Group (continued) (@) A&£@ (&)

Motor Interest in

Veficles, Ieasghold land

Leasenold electronic eld for own

mprovements,  equipment and (e Lnder

fumiture other Operating

and fixtures—~fixed assels leases Totl

lodand  Pentand  HE0E i Construction hvestment ~ BESEEE  fred assels
buldngs ~ machingry 6. ETRER  hpogess  Swbtotd  Popetes  #fEAZ HTEE
tHRET  HERME  GHRRE  EMHEREE  ARIE N REWE  REDbER g
§1000 $000 §1000 §1000 §1000 $000 §1000 §000 §1000
fr 1 fr fr r 1 ﬁ 1 r

Cost or valuation; AEEEE:
A1 January 2012 HoE-2E-F-H 200676 318036 17520 89,3% 358,0% 978,723 10509 31,800 1021032
Exchange adjustments EiZE 7603 1376 173 1209 74 16,995 20 Qo 17,604
Additions g 484,799 160 5200 15,928 115,218 621,395 - 6,780 626,181
Disposes e
- trough disposal of -ERLENRAT
subsidias note §) i) (1,0%) - - 01) - 5113 - - (119

- otes -1p - - M () - i) - - )
Reclassficaton EEpL 49 31 (56,181) - 6,820 - - - - -
Ausimens E W) - - T - - )
Transared fom ERRIRIE

construction in progress 51,38 34,887 - - [406,272) - - - -

At 31 December 2012 R-g5--f
t2f=1-A 794,261 612,036 22,886 109906 67,615 1,606,724 10731 39,013 1,606,468

Representing; R%:
Cost L 704 281 612,03 288 109906 b6 160674 - 0Oy 1IN
Valuaton - 2012 [tE--5-- - - - - - - 10,731 - 10,731

794,281 612,036 22,866 109,906 67610 1606724 10731 0018 1,656,468

Accumulated depreciation - Z5rfE RS

and amortisation;
At January 2012 n-E3-2%-5-A 78720 7806 10,175 41511 - 133,212 - m 13343
Exchange acjustments Eiaz A 44 113 803 - 1307 - 1 1414
Chage o e year REEFE 10372 25146 2788 13620 - R - o 5408
Wittenbackondisposal i ERER
- through disposal of -FRLENENT

subsidaries (note 8(d) (HE80) (267 - - (1,331) - (1,59 - - (1,599
~afhes -2 - - (/Y - (13 - - 132
At 31 December 2012 noE-cf

e T L ... DO ... 3

Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2012 AE-ck
+2f=1-A 7110218 578 041 9912 06,729 67,615 1422515 10731 37,801 147,047
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 BIEEEE)
(b) The Company (b) &~ F
Office Leasehold Furniture Motor Total
equipment  improvements  and fixtures vehicles fixed assets
WAZRE WEWERE GARKE "E BEEEELS
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T Tr T T
Cost: KA :
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%—-H—H 3,112 2,409 467 2,223 8,211
Additions e 2,620 - - - 2,620
Disposals hE (83) - - - (83)
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=F
+ZA=1—H 5,649 2,409 467 2,223 10,748
Accumulated ZitrE
depreciation;
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—-F—H 1,031 2,409 261 1,763 5,464
Charge for the year KEEHE 734 46 102 882
Written back on disposal HERBRR (82) - - - (82)
At 31 December 2013 W_E—=F
+ZA=1—H 1,683 2,409 307 1,865 6,264
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—-=%F
+ZA=1—H 3,966 - 160 358 4,484
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-F—H 1,465 2,409 459 2,223 6,556
Additions ®E 1,874 - 8 - 1,882
Disposals HE (227) - - - (227)
At 31 December 2012 i
+ZA=1—H 3,112 2,409 467 2,223 8,211
Accumulated ZEHE:
depreciation;
At 1 January 2012 “2-—%#-F-H 1,095 2,399 214 1,659 5,327
Charge for the year $¢F & 188 10 47 104 349
Written back on disposal HEREM (212) - - - (212)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F
+-A=+-H 1,031 2,409 261 1,763 5,464
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+-A=1+—H 2,081 - 206 460 2,747
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

13 BIEBE#)
(c) WEZAAEE

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the balance sheet
date on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as

follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

(1)

AT~

DA ERIBERF
TRINTSAEEREEBZERE
HEABZYMERIRE  BEYE
BRABBMBERSEYNFIZR /2
AEFEIMREZ=ERIAERE
Rl e nAREFEMBRIMRNTS
SRBATEERMAT AR A8
ERENBEEREMERE :

- BREE:ERF REE
IR ERMEREEXAR
ERBM IS 2 RICHBRE)

BEZRAE

- B_LHE:ERF_REE
(BIRBETT B E —ARE Z AT A
BEREFIZ28E  WRTERT
ARG CERZEIR)FEZ
RAfE - THEBRGE 2 8UEE
RAERETSEEZ R

- FB=RMEE: ERTUBEREE
LEBRBBEZANE

Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at
2013 31 December 2013 categorised into
w-g—=& TMIEAIR-T-—=F+_A=t-HZAAEHE
+=-A=1t—-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R F—k -l EF=R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
The Group KEE
Recurring fair value BEUNAREHE
measurement
Investment properties: REME:
- Commercial - other parts ~ —E¥ R EEMHE
of the PRC 177,442 - - 177,442
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

13 BIEEE (&)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the balance sheet date in which
they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were
revalued as at 31 December 2013. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, Shenzhen Zhong Heng Xin Assets
Appraisal Co., Ltd., who have among their staff
members of China Appraisal Society with recent
experience in the location and category of property
being valued. The management has discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting
date.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(c) MEZDIAREFE(E)

(i)

(1)

Valuation techniques

(EXEE

D ERRIER G ()
REBEE-ZT—=F+=-A=+—H
EFEA BE—ARE_HR2HEIL
EAEMEY  TETRNEESLE
= AEEZBREREREA
ZHBEEEEBRAAERERT
ZHEHER o

AEEREREMECER T —=
F+-_A=t—BETEM - A&
HBEAEMTRINTHREEEE
HEERRAET  ERETART
BEEMGHEEE  YHLME
(CRZE TSR E 3 VilR P iRk
B EREATFHEFERSAH
HBETHER  SEEEHERAE
el i fh ERE LA ES

BE=RA BT EZEH

Unobservable input
TRAIERGE 2 8UR

Commercial investment
properties — other parts
of the PRC
FAREYER — PR EME

Market comparison approach

M5 L BOE

Premium (discount) on
quality of the buildings
FRBTFEE 2 REB (=

Adjustment on timing of
comparable transactions

FATE LR P R L 2 R
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

The fair value of investment properties located
in other parts of the PRC is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on
a price per square metre basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the
Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales
and the timing on the comparable transactions.
Higher premium for higher quality buildings and a
favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable
transactions will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
B\j % %& ié I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

13 BIEEE (&)

(c) MEZRIABEE(E)
(i) BEFE=RAAE;EZEH(E)

NRFEEMbRE CRENE LA
AREDEAMBSHEEEE - HE
SEARLEBYEZETF T AER
ERGHEZIBEE ALK
BETFEE ST B TR (EiT
HIHER BT ) A KA H LR
RHEZHEFELHAE - HETFTEHE
BENRBURE®R S R i A H &R
HZEHREBEHAMNARE  BE
EYHEMSZIAAERS °

FRLRE=ZRAREFELEH
HEN T

$’000
Tt
Commercial investment properties fFEREEYE - PREMHE
— other parts of the PRC
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—HF—H 10,731
Exchange adjustments PE i3, 28 2,582
Transferred from land and buildings to AT RIEFEREREYSE
investment properties 164,129
At 31 December 2013 R_ZE—=F+-_HAH=+—H 177,442

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain
properties previously occupied by the Group as
owner-occupied property were transferred to
investment properties and a revaluation surplus
was credited to property revaluation reserve to
account for the difference between the carrying
amounts and the fair values of the properties at the
date of change in use.

REBEEZFT—=F+=-A=+—8H
LtFEE BETRABAEELRZ
MEBRAME EREREME
TERMEEHHEETAZEGR
% UARBBEMERAREEH
HEEEEAABZENERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

:‘: A}
E\j % $& % Mﬂ‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (r BAFERRIN - FrA BB E)

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 BIEEEE)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued) (c) MEZAAREBEFTEE)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) BEE=RAAEFEZEF(E)
(continued)

Exchange adjustments of investment properties
are recognised in other comprehensive income in
exchange reserve.

No valuation gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 as
there has been no change in the fair values of the
investment properties since previous valuations.

REMEZELAERELFBT
ZEAME ERERER -

REBEE—FE—=F+=-A=+—8H
IEFE - WENE SR EREAG
BEREEE  RRAAREMEZ
AREAE—IREEARLEEE) -

(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is (d) MEREEFE2ZIFAOT :
as follows:
The Group
REHE
2013 2012
—F—= —TF
$'000 $'000
Tz T
In the PRC B
Hong Kong: EH
— medium-term leases —FHEE 49,640 51,677
Other parts of the PRC: R E iR
— medium-term leases —FhHHE 905,181 707,073
954,821 758,750
Representing: &
Land and buildings T RIEF 741,640 710,218
Investment properties KEYE 177,442 10,731
919,082 720,949
Interest in leasehold land held for BELEHEERHEER
own use under operating leases ZHE R 35,739 37,801
954,821 758,750
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Notes to the Financial Statements

_}: »
Ej j% %I?i ié Ig'fj‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

13 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13 BIEBEEE)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
The Group leases out properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
three to ten years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property
are disclosed as investment property.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable
as follows:

(e) RELLHERH ZETEE

AEBREBELLHEHEYE - AEAE
E-RNFRP=Z=1+F LrEREE
B ERABGRSEEN®F - bt
HEATBRIAHEE -

PIERBEEHEREAVRTARED
EEBZMEROBER/REYME -

AEEREBEMNAIEEOELEHELEAR
RUHREHEEREENT

The Group
REE

2013 2012
—z-=f| —3-=

$000 $°000

T T

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFH
After 5 years AFIE

7,894 -
21,909 -
19,983 -

49,786 -
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 B EE
The Group AEH

Alternative  Environmental  Environmental
Tollbridge ~ energy project  energy project  water project

operating operating operating operating
right rights rights right
KERER MERERE  RREFEE  RRKBER Total
Ee Eo EeE B @5
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
T r R S T
Cost: KA :
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=F—F—H - 615,629 - 21,131 636,760
Exchange adjustments [E R A% - 19,628 4,477 600 24,705
Additions BE - 150,804 327,749 - 478,553
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F
+-A=+-H - 786,061 332,226 21,731 1,140,018
Accumulated it
amortisation:
At 1 January 2013 WZE-=%—-F—H - 22,384 - 812 23,196
Exchange adjustments 5 % - 900 - 36 936
Charge for the year TEREH - 18,609 - 824 19,433
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F
+ZA=1—H - 41,893 - 1,672 43,565
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F

TZA=+-H - 744,168 332,226 20,059 1,096,453
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B\j‘ % %Ii % Mj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14 B BEE (&)
The Group (continued) rEE(E)

Alternative  Environmental  Environmental
Toll bridge  energy project energy project — water project

operating operating operating operating
right rights rights right
WERR MEREE  RREFEE  BRRKBES Total
EEE ERE BEE Bl @
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
T T Tr T T
Cost: KAME
At 1 January 2012 RZE-——F—-F—H 783,054 526,417 - - 1,309,471
Exchange adjustments [EHREE (5,602) 6,780 - 243 1,421
Additions #BE - 82,432 - 20,888 103,320
Disposal through disposal of  FBHENBAF
subsidiaries (note 8(d)) & (MEEs(d) (777,452) - - - (777,452)
At 31 December 2012 WZE—=F
+ZR=1—H - 615,629 - 21,131 636,760
Accumulated Rt
amortisation:
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-F-H 234,916 4,825 - - 239,741
Exchange adjustments [ 5 3% (1,681) 255 - 9 (1,417)
Charge for the year AEREH 10,798 17,304 - 803 28,905
Written back on disposal BRHENBAA
through disposal of HEREE
subsidiaries (note 8(d) (PzE8(0) (244,033) - - - (244,033)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F
e TEAETR n R 82 25,196
Net book value: REFE :
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F
+-A=1t—H - 593,245 - 20,319 613,564
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Direct REFHETABBBERRZ [EERAR
costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated income RERMIA -

statement.
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E\j‘ % %ﬁ % Mﬂ‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (r BAFERRIN - FrA BB E)

15 GOODWILL 15 &
The Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——%F
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January R—H—H 20,793 46,133
Disposal through disposal of subsidiaries HREENB AR HE
(note 8(d)) (P zE8(d)) - (25,340)
At 31 December WNt+—A=+—8” 20,793 20,793
Impairment tests for cash-generating units BEEECRESLEEENZ2EEAR
containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating f%%ﬁ%ﬁ%@@ﬂﬁ*ﬁ%?ﬂ%%%%ﬁ%
units (“CGU”) identified according to business segment as MR EEEN
follows:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= T
$'000 $'000
T T
Environmental energy project construction  IB{REEIRIE B @it &
and operation B 11,255 11,255
Environmental water project construction RIRKFEEE &GN
and operation EE 9,538 9,538
20,793 20,793
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B\j j% %& ié I}fj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

15

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five year
period. Discount rates of 10% to 12% (2012: 10% to
12%) have been used for the value-in-use calculations.
Management determined the budgets based on service
agreements governing the relevant operations. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

No impairment is considered necessary at 31 December

RE(E)

BEHEBCRELEEENZRBARAE)

BeAEEEMN 2 ] WEHEREEREBET
oA ERARRBERED R EZ AFTE
FEE R REMt c BRTEFEREREZ
BEEEBI0%E12%(ZFE——_F : 10% =
12%) - B ERIEEE A XS 2 RE %
O ETEBEE - MEAZBNRE AR
B R D 2B E BB 2 BR B ATARIR K o

RZE— =R -_"T——F+-_A=+—
2013 and 2012. B BEEREAFESE -
16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 B A AR
The Company
PAN/NG]!
2013 2012
—E—=4F —E—CF
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Unlisted shares/capital contributions, JELETRD S HEEE
at cost BN AME 603,944 488,326
Amounts due from subsidiaries [N EYNCIE S 7,698,650 7,274,995
8,302,594 7,763,321
Less: Impairment losses B FEIEEE (1,435,572) (1,445,472)
6,867,022 6,317,849

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and not expected to be recovered within one year.

g FENHBARREREER  RER
BEMIrER—FREE -
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16 1B R RiEm= (&)
uTEWﬁﬁﬁﬁl%ﬁ~§FﬁE%%W
BYECHWBATER - BBAETHN -

%%hﬁﬂﬁ%@ho

16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary
unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

HERRERLD
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group’s held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the held by
and operation up capital interest Company  a subsidiary
Name of company AL/ AR AL BETR N3 g mALNE  AmKEAE  Principal activity
NGER REZE BRBAEH BRhER 8 #E  FEEK
Everbright Alternative Energy PRC $125,800,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Dangshan) Co., Ltd.* (note (c)) H 125,800,0007C operation and
KRIER(BL)BRAR maintenance of
(Fii3E(c) biomass power
generation plant
Rt BiE - EER
BERBENER
Everbright Biomass Energy PRC $127,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Hanshan) Ltd.* (note (c)) H 127,000,0007C operation and
FREMEER (B BB AR maintenance of
(Fi3E(c) biomass power
generation plant
Jat B EER
BERBENER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB137,520,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Changzhou) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) L AR #137,520,0007T operation and
FARBRER(EM)BRAR maintenance of
(FT=E()) waste-to-energy
power plant
it i BER
HEREUREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD29,300,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Jiangyin) Ltd.* (note ( )) HE 29,300,000% 7T operation and

KRERRER(IR)E
(Hr&E())

maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plants

wat R EER
HERBNREEH
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B\j % %Ii % Mj‘ %EE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

16 B AR (&)

2

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRER LD
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group’s held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the held by
and operation up capital interest Company  a subsidiary
Name of company RS/ R AL BETR N3 g mALNE  @fE2RE  Principal activity
NGER REZE BRRAEH BiRER #h e FEEK
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB305,460,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Jinan) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) H AR 305,460,0007C operation and
FARBRREROER)BR AR maintenance of
(P EE(d) waste-to-energy
power plant
Rt BE - EER
BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB350,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Nanjing) Ltd.* (note (d)) H AR350,000,0007C operation and
FABRREER(AR)EBRAR maintenance of
(Fi3E()) waste-to-energy
power plant
Bt s EER
BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB186,667,000 80% - 80%  Design, construction,
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) F ARH186,667,0007C operation and
FABRRER(ER)ER AR maintenance of
(7)) waste-to-energy
power plant
Bt gE EER
BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $135,300,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Pizhou) Ltd.* (note (d)) F 135,300,0007C operation and

KRRRER (B BRA A
(P &E())

maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plant

Bt B BER
HERBNRESH
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 P B8 A= ()

2

Proportion of ownership interest

HERRERLD
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group’s held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the held by
and operation up capital interest Company  a subsidiary
Name of company BRI/ s AL BETR N3 g mALNAE  mKB2AF  Principal activity
NGER REZE BRBAEH BiRER A HE IBERK
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $174,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Sanya) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) th 174,000,0007C operation and
KRRFRER(ZR)ERAR" maintenance of
(M7E () waste-to-energy
power plant
Rt B EER
HERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC $95,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) s 95,000,0007T operation and
FARBRER (B )ERAR maintenance of
(M7E () waste-to-energy
power plant
Rt B EER
HERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC USD15,840,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Sugjian) Ltd.* (note (d)) H 15,840,000% 1T operation and
FABRRER(BE)ERAR maintenance of
(M7E () waste-to-energy
power plant
it i EER
BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB568,000,000 Note (a) - Note (a)  Design, construction,
(Suzhou) Ltd. (“EB Energy EP AR %568,000,0007C Hi7E(a) Wi operation and

(Suzhou)’)* (note (d)

FARRRER (BN )BRAF
([ ReeR(EM) 1)
(F#E())

maintenance of
waste-to-energy
power plants

wat o RE - EER
HERBNREER
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 BB A4

et (42)

2

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRER LD
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group’s held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the held by
and operation up capital interest Company  a subsidiary
Name of company RS/ R AL BETR N3 g mALNE  @fE2RE  Principal activity
NGER REZE BRBRAEH BiRER #h e FEEK
Everbright Environmental Energy PRC RMB186,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(Zhenijiang) Co., Ltd.* (note (d)) H AR %186,000,0007C operation and
HRRRER (BT ERAR” maintenance of
(BEE() waste-to-energy
power plant
Rt B EER
BERBNREER
Everbright Environmental Equipment PRC RMB65,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing of
Manufacturing (Changzhou) FE  AR%65,000,0007T environmental
Limited* protection equipment
KRRERBEEEM) HERRRE
BARAF
Everbright Environmental Protection PRC USD46,000,000 100% 100% - Provision of construction
(China) Limited* + 46,000,000% T management services
HRRR(FE)BRAF" and investment
holding
RETRERRER
Everbright Environmental Protection PRC RMB8,773,600 100% - 100%  Conduct of
Technological Development H ARHE8,773,6007 environmental
(Beijing) Limited* protection technology
HRRREEER(LR) research projects
BRAF ETRRBMRAEIRE
Everbright Photovoltaic Energy PRC RMB122,090,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction
(Zhenjiang) Limited* F AR #122,000,0007C and operation of

ARG (BT ERAR"

photovoltaic energy
plant

Bt pEREE
HREER
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16 B A RIER &)

2

16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERER LD
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group’s held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the held by
and operation up capital interest Company  a subsidiary
Name of company PR/ AR AL BEIK AEEZ MARR  AHKBAFE  Principal activity
NGER REZE BRBRAER BRER #E e FEEK
Everbright Water (Dezhou) Limited* PRC USD12,280,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(note (e)) b 12,280,000% 7T operation and
KRR (M) BRAF" maintenance of
(Fi3E(e)) waste-water treatment
plant
Rt B EER
HERESKEER
Everbright Water (Jiangyin) Limited" PRC RMB180,000,000 70% - 70%  Design, construction,
(notes (c) and (e)) H AK#180,000,0007 operation and
FARKBOIR)ERAA! maintenance of
(F&E(c) K (e)) waste-water treatment
plants
Rt B EER
HERESKEER
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited* PRC USD35,430,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(note (e)) F 35,430,000 T operation and
*AKBOBER)BERD A maintenance of
(Fi3E(e)) waste-water treatment
plants
it i BER
GERETIERR
Everbright Water (Jinan Licheng) PRC RMB148,530,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
Limited* (note (e)) RE  AR%148,530,0007C operation and

HARKECEBER) ERAR"
(M5E(e))

maintenance of
waste-water treatment
plants and reusable
water treatment plant
wat o RE - BER
BERESKEEH
RAKEARIER
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16 B AR (&)

2

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRER LD
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group’s held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the held by
and operation up capital interest Company  a subsidiary
Name of company RS/ R AL BETR N3 g mALNE  @fE2RE  Principal activity
NGER REZE BRRAEH BiRER #h e FEEK
Everbright Water (Xinyi) Limited* PRC $174,590,000 100% - 100%  Design and construction
KARRBEO)BR AR H 174,590,0007C of waste-water
treatment plant
and surface water
treatment plant
Rt REETKEIER
SR KB
Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited* PRC USD31,158,000 100% - 100%  Design, construction,
(note (e)) H 31,158,000% T operation and
*AKBOSE)VBERAA maintenance of
(Pi3E(e) waste-water treatment
plants and reusable
water treatment plant
Bt s EER
BERTTKEER
RAKE AR IER
Qingdao EB-VW Waste Water PRC USD15,257,000 Note (b) - Note (b)  Construction, operation
Treatment Co., Ltd. i 15,257,000 7T M3 (o) BiI3E (o) and maintenance of
(“Qingdao EB-VW")* (note (e)) waste-water treatment
BEERESKERERAA plants
(IESHE(FitE) Bl BERBEBRE
KRR
On Land Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each 100% - 100%  Property investment

BRERAF

*  Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment

enterprise.

#  Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign
co-operation joint ventures.

& oksREEITRD

MERE

Y REVEDAEEMAIERERE -

o REBEPBEAEEMARIIGIESERE -
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign
joint venture partner of EB Energy (Suzhou), is committed to
contribute the full amount of EB Energy (Suzhou)’s registered
capital. Net profit, after payment of an agreed sum of
RMB880,000 annually to the PRC joint venture partner of EB
Energy (Suzhou), is fully attributable to Everbright Environmental
Energy (Suzhou) Holdings Limited.

EB-VW HK Holding Company Limited (“EB-VW”), an 60% owned
subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint venture partner
of Qingdao EB-VW, is committed to contribute 60% of Qingdao
EB-VW'’s registered capital. The remaining 40% registered capital
is contributed by the PRC joint venture partner. EB-VW is fully
entitled to the net profit of Qingdao EB-VW for the first 14 years
of the joint venture period. From the 15th year of the joint venture
period onwards, the net profit of Qingdao EB-VW is to be shared
by EB-VW and the PRC joint venture partner on a 98:2 basis.

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the local government authorities in the PRC
(the “grantors”). Pursuant to the service concession arrangements,
the Group was granted rights to construct, operate and maintain
environmental water and alternative energy projects in the PRC
for a period of 30 years. The service fees are based on the extent
of services rendered and are subject to the approvals from the
relevant local government authorities. During the operating period,
the Group will be responsible to maintain the environmental water
and alternative energy projects in good condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of the
terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the environmental water and alternative
energy projects are recognised as intangible assets.

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct,
operate and maintain waste-to-energy power plants in the PRC
for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has the obligation to
maintain the waste-to-energy power plants in good condition.
The grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry of the
concession periods, the waste-to-energy power plants and related
facilities will be transferred to the local government authorities.

16 [~ 4 et (&)
B -

(@)

AARZ 2 EMBRRFRARERGERM)INGE
ERHE - ARRRER FRMN)ZERBR A R
T AT KBEIR(BM) 2HEMER - L KEE
RERMN) 2 F BN (EFF XN HERBARKE
880,0007T T S K aEIR (BRI ) h 75 & B R H1R)
1 2 5 K RIR R EER (BN IR B R ARIFA ©

KA REF60%E R < B A RRE SN
BEBHARBILIKRBEBZERAERDA (K
RESLHE D) EEEAT B E60%EMER - &)
T40% K mh A ERHEE - XABILERE
EHETREAU2BEEEEARFRMN - M
HETRFERLHE  FEXRFANE B
RNELIER BT & EBHIR82 2 LIS -

NG B N R R e B E S R ([P AL
I IRFG AT B L T - RIBRIGISFEZ 1
2 AEEERBETREE  EEREER
RKERFERER - BR=1%F - RBERE
REZ RIS E - WARHREE BT I
BAAEE - REEHRA - AEEFETHITR
RIKTS K FRREIRIR B M RAFAOR

RIS E LR W EBLRIE - BRTPARK
SEOERNGHRGTEERNERZBERLTRLE
B R -

RRKGERFEREBEZEERERDET

AR BB R R R T AR LRI AT L X
oo RERBRHFLERLE - AREARH
BRat  2E - ELEREENFEER - /B
THRE=L+F c AREH A ESEFIREER
BRI o BT AER - RARMREME -
SER A SFRIRERETE - FEACEH
[EmiE - SRR E R MR RIS R B R AT
HRAMA o
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16 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

(continued)

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct or operate
the waste-to-energy power plants and in the event of a material
breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of
the Group to terminate the agreements include failure to receive
payments for solid waste treatment service from the grantors and
in the event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the waste-to-energy power plants is recognised as
“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work” in the
financial statements.

The subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group has to design, construct
and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste-water treatment
plants in the PRC for a period of 25 to 30 years. The Group has
the obligation to maintain the waste-water treatment plants in
good condition. The grantors guarantee the Group will receive
minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements.
Upon expiry of the concession periods, the waste-water
treatment plants and the related facilities will be transferred to the
local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the
agreements include failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste-water treatment plants and in the event of
a material breach of the terms of the agreements. The standard
rights of the Group to terminate the agreements include failure
to receive payments for waste-water treatment service from the
grantors and in the event of a material breach of the terms of the
agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing or upgrading the waste-water treatment plants is
recognised as “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” in the financial statements.

16 [/ A R)#Ess (&)
sk (4)

(d)

(#&)

RIS E LSRR WRBLRIE - BT ATT
EIREREFE L HE BB AREREE
EFELNPRERAL B AGREERER -
AEEATERERMNE BB BEREE © R
ERET ARGEEEYEERSEE - ARiHE

2 i 3R 3% B RR T B2 (R E AR TS P15 2 AR A IR
SEMBHRRPERS [BREFPAHTREFNEA
MR o

AEEM B QR EE T AR LRI IR EER
BE o RIBRBRRIEERRTY  AREANTH
Rt BER/SHE  EEREBRSKER
B RB-TRAE=1F - ARBEEEEERS
IKEEIERH RN » BT AER - stERZH
MmE @ NEER A SFRMREREFR © F5
AR HARE AR+ 057K BE IR R N AR B AR B ¢ B B
BB AHEMRE -

RIS EE R W BMBLREE - BT ATT
EREREF R I HAEBERABE  ARERERE
o BUETGEE SRR - AR BERGTEE
RER - NEEATEREER Lz 2180
B RERRTABUSSKREEREE - UKk
RN EERNER

FEE R & 5K R iR I E RIS 15 2
HRRRERBRRPERR [BREEPEHT

EIRIAMEE ]
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17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

17 B S N A

B

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—_g—= —_=F—=
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Share of net assets Pl & E 55 254,380 -

The following list contains the particulars of associates,
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
market price is not available:

TRIREERRZER - FTEBE QT
BRIFLTEART - BXETISHRE :

Proportion of ownership interest

A R L
Group’s held by
Form of Place of effective the held by
business establishment interest Company a subsidiary  Principal
Name of associate structure and operation REBZ BARAA BB AR  activity
e NG EE FHEBA KL REE MR B ER BB BE XEEK
Qingdao Veolia Water Established PRC 21% - 21%  Operation of
Operating Company [pava 2] waste-water
Limited (“Qingdao treatment plants
Veolia”) (note 1)
FEBLKGEE 5K IR
BRAF (f7ET)
=11 3))
Nanjing Jiangnan Established PRC 51% - 51%  Design, construction,
Veinous Industrial 3 4va A operation and

Park Development
Company Limited
(“Nanjing Jiangnan”)

A ROL R R IR EE X
BERARAT
(TEmIE D

Notel: Qingdao EB-VW, a subsidiary of the Group, subcontracted
to Qingdao Veolia the provision of the operation and
maintenance services in respect of the waste-water
treatment plants in Qingdao.

Note 2: Nanjing Jiangnan is established with local government body
in Nanjing city, the PRC, which enables the Group to further
develop environmental protection projects in Nanjing city.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

BT

P EE2

maintenance of
environmental
protection projects
(note 2)

REt B EY
RBBRERR
B A (MFE2)

AEEZHBAREE LHIEEEM)S
KEEMZEZREECRERBINHT
BBRLTE -

R 0T R B AN AR B B AR B R T E IR
FHEXRRY - HEAEESAER
AT ERRRERAR -

FTE Liti e AR EREREAELEA Y
BwRAR
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17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
made capital contribution of RMB200,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately $254,380,000) for the establishment of
Nanjing Jiangnan. The Group has significant influence,
but not control or joint control, over Nanjing Jiangnan’s
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions, pursuant to the Articles of
Association of Nanjing Jiangnan. Accordingly, Nanjing
Jiangnan is classified as an associate of the Group.

Summarised financial information of the material
associates, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

17 Ban

AligE(4)

RBE-_T—=F+-_A=+—81Lt#F
o AEBEEE AREE200,000,0007T (4
B 1K 49254,380,000 ) S R/ © 1R
BERImZARER  AEEAJERY

488 (ﬁﬁ —91'5

2 SRR ) R UL R 2 B B

 BREZERTEHVBELEZEREK - B
JH: Fﬁ,?\/lﬁ%&"*ﬁﬁ$ﬁlzﬁgﬂ

EJ o

UTREEEBRERTZHBERME -

HEese

AARRERELAR - YW Rk

B PR R PrEk iR E Bk

Nanjing Jiangnan Qingdao Veolia
MRLmE EEBIE
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE—F | ZF % | 2% =% | ZFZF
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
Gross amounts of the Bt& AR TH&E 2

associates’ FER-CE
Current assets MBEE 345,367 - 16,172 10,7183
Non-current assets EMBEE - - 749 821
Current liabilities mENAE - - (18,748) (15,726)
Equity R 345,367 - (1,827) (4,192)
Revenue g - - 81,433 47,042
Profit/(loss) for the year (note) E£RZF,(EE)

(PfIE) - - 2,559 (1,857)
Other comprehensive income  H b 2 &z - - (194) (46)
Total comprehensive income 2 W 254258 - - 2,365 (1,903)
Reconciled to the B3 A £ B A B 2 N A

Group’s interests in w2 SR

the associates
Gross amounts of net assets/ B4 ARIEE,(BF)

(liabilities) of the associate FE 2 MEER 345,367 - (1,827) (4,192)
Group’s effective interest REBBERER 51% - 21% 21%
Group’s share of net assets  ARNE& B (RS N T2

of the associate (note) BEFEMTE) 254,380 - - -
Carrying amount in e B mk

consolidated financial FreiRE A

statements 254,380 - - -

Note: As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group’s share of
accumulated loss of Qingdao Veolia exceeds the Group’s
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued.

fi

R-F——FR-F-=F+-A=1—
B BRAEEMGEESRLEZ BE
BRBANEEMAGERELE AR EE
AEBZREERET  WERABERE—
FHIEE -
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18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18 HhB K& E
The Group The Company
AEH PiN/NG)
2013 2012 2013 2012
—_=F—= —E2—= —=E—= —F—=
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tz Tz Tz T+
Available-for-sale FERAFZS
equity securities:
Listed in Hong Kong BEAL™
(note 30(f)(i)) (B E30(R)(i)) 8,205 9,263 - -
Listed in other parts of AR B b 3 (% T
the PRC (note 30(f)(i)) (B E30(F)(i)) 164,606 183,530 - -
172,811 192,793 - -
Unlisted in other parts of R E M EIE LT
the PRC (note 30(f)(i)) (B EE30(R()) 3,899 3,899 3,899 3,899
176,710 196,692 3,899 3,899
Fair value of individually ERE FEFERA
impaired available-for-sale B4 2 ARE
equity securities - 9,263 - -
As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s listed R-_T——F+-A=+—H  #ERNEKEH

available-for-sale equity securities were individually
determined to be impaired on the basis of a significant
decline in their fair value below cost and adverse changes
in the market in which these investees operated which
indicated that the cost of the Group’s investments in
them may not be recovered. Impairment losses on
these investments were recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(I)(i) (see
note 5).

ETHELTRABFDABAR TKER
RERAE  MEEBREKEQRZLEEM
BRI AKERNEERRE
NAEZRERALFFAREWRE - Fit AL E
BELERAESFRELCHEE - AAFE
REBHE1() ()T EBR N B R RERULFIR

BHBRNES

BzRBEBR(AKES) -
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19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

19 FEWER X -

HhKKIAE ~ rE K

AND PREPAYMENTS Tt FRIB
The Group
REE
2013 2012
—T—=%5F —ET——F
$'000 $'000
Tz Tz
Debtors JE W BR K 400,274 532,410
Loan receivable R E X 51,156 49,744
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HhERFIE - 124 K&
SEEN DO 3,948,905 3,228,215
4,400,335 3,810,369
Less: Non-current portion B FEBNEAER (D
- other receivables and deposits — HAh WG IA &
i (3,023,616) (2,553,625)
— loan receivable — I ER - (49,744)
(3,023,616)|  (2,603,369)
Current portion BEAER (5 1,376,719 1,207,000

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” are debtors with the following ageing

[EWR - HAh BKFIR ~ % RIEM R
R BREEER  ERNGEERZKEKRD

analysis as of the balance sheet date: BN
The Group
REHE
2013 2012
—T—= —T—_F
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Current BIHA 269,642 187,164
Within 1 month past due BHEITZ N —1{E A 21,770 73,360
More than 1 month but wEEBE—EAR
within 3 months past due TER=EA 40,925 61,843
More than 3 months but wEEB = E AR
within 6 months past due NERNEA 13,208 93,709
More than 6 months but within B HA BB E A B
12 months past due NER+Z@A 9,466 116,334
More than 12 months past due wEEABB T @A 45,263 -
Amounts past due BHS R 130,632 345,246
400,274 532,410




Annual Report 2013 —Z—=%4%# 215

Notes to the Financial Statements
B\j % %E( %% MJ‘ %i (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB FBASN » TS RIABREE)

19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 EUWERR - EMEWFIE - ek

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The ageing analysis of debtors based on the date of
invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) as of the
balance sheet date is as follows:

BN IR E)
EREAS(REERBH(WRE))
B BREFNEER ZRESTOT

The Group
REE
2013 2012
—T—=F —T—CF
$'000 $'000
FIT T
Within 1 month TR —1EdA 205,510 187,164
More than 1 month but within 2 months BE—EAETZAREA 59,474 73,360
More than 2 months but within 4 months B E A BT %R {E A 52,339 61,843
More than 4 months but within 7 months BBNEAENZREA 28,222 93,709
More than 7 months but within 13 months BBtEAEIER

+=1A 9,466 116,334
More than 13 months BA+=1EA 45,263 -
400,274 532,410

Debtors of $164,961,000 have been subsequently settled
after 31 December 2013.

Debtors are due within 30 to 90 days (2012: 30 days) from
the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 30(a).

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” of the Group are debtors of $400,274,000
(2012: $532,410,000) of which $53,153,000 (2012:
$29,599,000) and $10,979,000 (2012: $10,551,000) are
due from a non-controlling shareholder and a related
company respectively. Debtors represent revenue from
environmental energy project, environmental water project
and alternative energy project operation services revenue.
There was no recent history of default in respect of the
Group’s debtors. Since most of the debtors are local
government authorities in the PRC and based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of the past due balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
No impairment loss was recognised by the Group at
31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

FEUBR 164,961,000 CER —E—=F+—
A=+—H%UkME -

RWERABEAHEF =TEN1TH
—T-—F =t+H)RIH - AREEE
R 2 3 — B B M ENEES0(a) °

ANEEZ [JEWER HMEWRZIE « %
N IE T FIE | B FE R U BR 70 400,274,000
T(ZF— 4% :532,410,0007T) *
53,153,0007T( =& ——4 : 29,599,0007T)
10,979,000t (— & — —4 : 10,551,000
TC) 5 Bl 75 FE W FE 122 A% S 3R R IE J% R i B B
NAFIB - FWRFKREIRREFIER « 1R
RKFEBE RFEERIER 2 EE RS -
REEZ EWRREIII EEZELLH - AR
RBHREFEAE AP R E HMEATERE - BB
BEKR  BEERAHARBER KL G
fELFEIERE RAEEEZTELRBEEX
Bt A BERDEE B 2HUE - &K
SEVERZSEHFTETMNERR - K=
E—=F+-A=+—8  A&EFNEER
FRFEEEBE(ZE——F : &) o
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19 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

“Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments”
include balances totalling $3,329,357,000 (2012:
$2,784,034,000) which bear interest at rates ranging
from 5.94% to 7.83% (2012: 5.94% to 7.83%) per
annum and represent the considerations paid for the
acquisition of waste-water treatment plants under TOT
arrangements, among which $208,120,000 (2012:
$194,094,000) and $513,433,000 (2012: $491,517,000)
are due from a non-controlling shareholder and a related
company respectively. The amounts are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by revenue to be generated
during the operating periods of the TOT arrangements.
No impairment loss was recognised by the Group at
31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

The loan receivable is unsecured, interest-bearing at
11% per annum, due from an unrelated party and due for
repayment in 2014.

All of the current portion of the above balances are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

20 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS

FOR CONTRACT WORK

19 EURBRFX -

HA IR ~ S K
208 ()

[FEUWERTR - HMEWFRIE « H& RFBRARK
IEJ@?E:./\3329357000n(_f—_
F : 2,784,084,0007T) 2 &k - HIRF R
R594% £ 7.83%(—ZF——F : 5.94% %
7.83%)FTEFI 8 - EATOTZ B N UEE 5K
BERZEMRE - £FH208,120,0007t(=
T — 4 : 194,094,0007T ) K 513,433,000
TT(=Z— =4 : 491,517,0007C) 9 %IJi%FE
W FE 4% A% A% 3R FR A K fE U R B N B BRIE o
ﬁ%ﬁmlﬁrﬁﬂiiuﬁﬂﬁm jt%HLxTOTzszFT
ZRREBHKEYN RZE—=ZF+_A
=t+t—B AEENERERTMFEEESE
(Z2—ZF &) -

ERE R A EEIR - RFEBSE N % EF

B REEMBAL AR T —MWFRH
BE -

s &R 2 P A BNER B8 0 TR H T 1 — F A Uk
ClekfER AR -

20 BIREFP AN IIZRIARE

The Group
REE
2013 2012
—T—=%F —_=E—=
$°000 $°000
Tz Tz
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEEASLHKANE
profits less anticipated losses EHEREN - R TR EA
=] 12,579,019 9,387,755
Less: Progress billings o EE A (2,602,407) (1,854,405)
Net contract work BHITIEFE 9,976,612 7,533,350
Representing: (A3
Gross amounts due from customers for EREEA&4 TIEHIE
contract work 48z
- Non-current —JEBNER 9,035,315 6,889,550
— Current — BNEA 941,297 643,800
9,976,612 7,533,350
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20 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS

FOR CONTRACT WORK (continued)

Included in “Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work” are amounts of $212,609,000 (2012:
$227,471,000) and $201,168,000 (2012: $213,243,000)
which are due from a non-controlling shareholder and a
related company respectively.

“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work”
represent revenue from construction under BOT and
Build-Transfer (“BT”) arrangements or upgrade services
under TOT arrangements and bear interest at rates
ranging from 5.94% to 7.83% (2012: 5.94% to 7.83%)
per annum. Among the total of $9,976,612,000 (2012:
$7,533,350,000), $7,231,485,000 (2012: $5,920,961,000)
relates to BOT and TOT arrangements with operation
commenced. The amounts for BOT and TOT arrangements
are not yet due for payment and will be settled by revenue
to be generated during the operating periods of the
arrangements. The amount for BT arrangements will be
settled according to respective repayment schedules as
stated in the agreements.

21 INVENTORIES

(@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet
comprise:

20 BRINEPARN I EFIRLRTE (&)

21

([EREFAHNIRRBHEE IR - 55l
B 15 JE UK 3E 2 AR AR R 5K 1 212,609,000 7T
—EF— 4 : 227,471,000 ) & fE Uk 78
% A 7 5B 201,168,000 T ( = F — = 4F :
213,243,0007T) °

[EREFAXHNTEFIBEETE]TINBOT R
BE-EZ(IBT)) R T 22 ERS W
FETOTLRH T2 BUE TR - HIZRF B
KE594%ET.83% (=T ——4F : 594% %
7.83%) 5t EF B o £ 4 %89,976,612,000
T (=ZF — =4 :7,533,350,0007C ) F -
H /1 7,231,485,000 T ( = F — = F .
5,920,961,0007T ) BT E & AB & 2 BOT K&
TOTZHE - BEBOTRTOTLEE T 2 5NHE
RENEAS A W ABOT RTOTL BE 2 3B &
IR o BTREE T 2 KIEHRIEE RFT
EEEsk b= S RS XN

T8
() HEBEERBRMTIFEESRE

The Group
REHE

2013 2012
—F—=F —E—F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Raw materials and operating supplies R LK & 2 fh 43,468 41,219
Spare parts T Ep 32,056 24,098
75,524 65,317
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21 INVENTORIES (continued)

(b) The analysis of amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

21 8 (&)

DT

(b)) EERSFAXAFABBRRZIFEESHE

The Group
REH
2013 2012
—E—=4F —ET—C—F
$'000 $'000
T T
Carrying amount of inventories consumed CEMBFE 7 E@EE 105,274 120,548

22 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The total minimum lease payments receivable under

22 BYETHE IR

REREBERKNFEREERAENE

finance lease, and their present values are as follows: WEWMT :
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—T—=F —ZF—
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Within 1 year —FR 1,804 1,754
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFH 7,216 7,017
After 5 years HEFE 30,665 31,574
Total gross investment BT EmEs 39,685 40,345
Unearned finance income REBFBERA (17,695) (18,498)
Present value of future payments receivable 7k 3 fE K18 ~ IR {E 21,990 21,847
Amounts due within one year included under st AREBEEZ —F K

current assets B EARIE (505) (463)
21,485 21,384
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22 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22 BEMHE WA (E)
The present value of future payments receivable is as RV KRIBZIFBELT -
follows:
The Group
rEHE
2013 2012
—E—=4F —E—=
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Within 1 year ] 505 | .......A88
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFNXN 2,343 2,149
After 5 years AFi% 19,142 19,235
e 21,485 | 21,384
21,990 21,847
23 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 23 BEEFRITIER
The amounts are pledged to secure certain bank loans of ZERHEDEER - ERAKEETRITE
the Group. K2R o

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24 B NHTEEY

The Group The Company
rEE PAN/NE]

2013 2012 2013 2012
TR | T —F | B =F | ZT——F
$000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
Deposits with banks RITER 2,506,297 337,283 | 2,100,054 223,322
Cash at bank and in hand RITHBRIRS 1,919,437 | 1,469,585 252,392 129,420
4,425,734 | 1,806,868 | 2,352,446 352,742
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 24 e MRS FEY (&)

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” at the balance REERA B MR EEWIBE TR
sheet date are the following amounts denominated in a 15 - HARBE R 2 B AN EHEET
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to & :

which they relate:

The Group The Company
NEE PA/NC]
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE=F | ZE—ZF |ZT—=F | ZT—=F

USD '000 | USD ’000 | USD '000 | USD '000
FET FET TET FET

United States Dollars 7T 43,191 27,190 8,690 241
Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” are the following [ReMBAZEY | BE T HIF R M
deposits placed with a related party bank: TERITZFR

The Group The Company
rEE ZA/NC]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F |=F-—_F |ZF—Z=F =T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt

Deposits with related party bank 17 #A BE:E A+
RIT2TER 393,921 503,328 8,406 1,033
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25 BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were repayable as

25 iR

TER

RZEBE—=F+A=+—H RITERZ

follows: BRENT
The Group The Company
AEE PAN/NE]
2013 2012 2013 2012
EZF | IECF |ZT—Z=F | ZE—C

$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt Tt
Within 1 year or on demand —FRNIIREK 1,779,867 | 1,635,386 113,250 344,600
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —F&ERERX 2,051,202 | 1,069,321 | 1,063,175 140,000
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZEBERERN 2,365,243 | 2,385,850 90,500 506,250
After 5 years AFIE 724,809 913,794 - -
5,141,254 | 4,368,965 | 1,153,675 646,250
6,921,121 | 6,004,351 | 1,266,925 990,850

At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were secured as

N-ZE—=F+-A=+—08 - 178X

follows: ZHEAIBF RO ¢
The Group The Company
REE ViN/NE]
2013 2012 2013 2012
= |2 —=ZF |ZT—=F |ZT—=F
$’000 $’000 $°000 $°000
Tz Tz Tz T
Bank loans RITERK

— secured — B 4,320,879 | 3,708,310 155,000 47,500
— unsecured — 4 2,600,242 | 2,296,041 | 1,111,925 943,350
6,921,121 | 6,004,351 | 1,266,925 990,850
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25 BANK LOANS (continued)

Certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by
certain revenue and receivables in connection with
the Group’s service concession arrangements, bank
deposits, mortgages on fixed assets and shares of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Such banking facilities,
amounting to $6,958,916,000 (2012: $5,524,262,000),
were utilised to the extent of $4,320,879,000 (2012:
$3,708,310,000) at 31 December 2013. Among the
secured banking facilities, $3,635,941,000 (2012:
$3,392,901,000) are guaranteed by the Company and
were utilised to the extent of $2,047,642,000 (2012:
$1,920,837,000) at 31 December 2013.

Certain banking facilities of the Company are secured by
the land and building of a subsidiary.

At 31 December 2013, the unsecured banking facilities,
amounting to $4,769,812,000 (2012: $4,367,740,000),
were utilised to the extent of $2,600,242,000 (2012:
$2,296,041,000). Among the unsecured banking facilities
of the Group, $180,156,000 (2012: $278,648,000) are
guaranteed by the Company and were utilised to the extent
of $160,156,000 (2012: $258,648,000) at 31 December
2013. All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings
are carried at amortised costs. None of the non-current
interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled
within one year.

Banking facilities of $6,449,045,000 (2012: $5,285,817,000)
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group’s financial ratios. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. At 31 December 2013, such
facilities were utilised to the extent of $4,067,293,000
(2012: $3,542,001,000). The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
30(b). As at 31 December 2013, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2012:
Nil).

25 RITER(E)

REBESRTRITHE AREB R FETL
ERZHETZE T WE REWFIE -« BT
TR BEEERBRASEET S TH
BRAARIZKRMHEERR RZT—=F+=
A=+—H  L£i6,958,916,000L (==&
— — £ :5524262,0007C) ZRITRE
B ) A 4,320,879,000 7t ( = T — = 4
3,708,310,000 7t ) ° Lt A & # R 17 &t
& - HA3,635941,000( =& — —4F :
3,392,901,0007T) B AR GMERER - KZF
—=F+=-B=1+—HE#H2,047,642,000
T(=Z——% :1,920,837,0007T) °

AARETRIMEN —KHBA AN+t
BABFEHELA -

R_Z—Z=F+-A=+—8  E&FET
B 2 & %8 454,769,812,0007C( — T ——4F :
4,367,740,000 7t ) * B B A 2,600,242,000
TT(ZZF— 4 : 2,296,041,0007T) ° Eil7A
SEEEAERTHE - HP 180,156,000
—Z— 4 : 278,648,000 ) AN A AIfEHE
B R-E—=F+=-A=+—B E8E
160,156,0007C ( —Z — — 4 : 258,648,000
TT) o A FERNEAG BB E T IRE SHK A A
B - REAFTAIERN Gt BB B TER—F
RIEE -

R 17 81 4 6,449,045,0007L (=& — — 4 :
5,285,817,0007t ) BEff &6 &5 T BB A&
BB E s RZE - WASEERBEAR
#CRAERDMIBMEEREEREERE - R
—_T—ZF+_-_A=Z+—H B@EmE
B2 &) F 4,067,293,000 0 (=& — = F :
3,542,001,0007T) - N E 2 E HER G H
LA BTN EEASEERRDES
[B By 2 3 — BRI MTEE30(0) e KT
—=F+=ZA=+—H AEEVEERE
BIRREME s B (ZE——F 1 &) -
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25 BANK LOANS (continued) 25 IRITER(E)
Included in “Bank loans” are the following amounts [RITERIBETIRIE - HUEEERE 2
denominated in a currency other than the functional e B AN EBEHE -
currency of the entity to which they relate:
The Group The Company
AEH PiN/NC]
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E——F |ZE——-F |ZE—=F | ZE——F
USD 000 | USD 000 | USD '000 | USD ’000
FET SFETIE FET FEx

United States Dollars EV 193,315 157,258 - -
Included in “Bank loans” are the following loans from a [RITEF BB TY@EATRITER
related party bank:

The Group The Company
REE PiN/NG]
2013 2012 2013 2012
=== === === ===
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt

Loans from a related party bank A TIRITER 174,826 193,877 - -

Included in loans from a related party bank are bank AEATRITEBECERBRERITER
loans of $110,881,000 (2012: $131,697,000) which 110,881,000 0 (=& — = : 131,697,000
are unsecured, bear interest at rates announced by the L) HAEERE - R R ARBITAM
People’s Bank of China and will be settled by instalment ZERFE  UHR T —\FAIH H#
until 2018. Remaining loans from a related party bank of B REBABMATRITZHRTZSEERS
$63,945,000 (2012: $62,180,000) are unsecured, interest- 63,945,000 7T ( =& — = 4 : 62,180,000
bearing at 6% per annum and will be fully repaid within one TL)  EAREEIR  REBEERETE - WA
year. R—FRNEHEE -
26 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 IR - EMENRIE R
ACCRUED EXPENSES JEETE A
The Group
REHE
2013 2012
—T—=F —E——F
$’000 $’000
Tz T+
Creditors, other payables and accrued FERTBRSR « EfhELS
expenses NI EETER 1,733,757 1,190,736
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26 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” are creditors with the following ageing analysis
as of the balance sheet date:

26 AR - RN IR K

BEtER#E)

[FERER - HMENZKIBERESER]F
BIERENER  HRGEER ZRER ST
I

The Group
REE

2013 2012
—F—= —E-——F
$’000 $°000
Tt Tt
Due within 1 month or on demand — @ A NB iz E Kk 70,396 78,611
Due after 1 month but within 3 months —Z =@ B REH 27,686 12,212
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =& XEARNEIE 23,701 15,697
Due after 6 months 7~ E A 1% B Hf 843,817 686,687
965,600 793,207

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses” of the Group is an amount of $25,355,000
(2012: $14,161,000) which is payable to an associate. The
balance is due within one month and represents service fee
for operation of waste-water treatment plants.

Apart from the above, creditors totalling $912,941,000
(2012: $774,155,000) represent construction payables
for the Group’s BT, BOT and certain BOO arrangements,
among which $1,279,000 (2012: $10,241,000) is due to a
non-controlling shareholder. The construction payables are
not yet due for payment. Included in “Other payables and
accrued expenses” of the Group as at 31 December 2013
is an amount of $6,395,000 (2012: $6,218,000) which is
payable to a non-controlling shareholder. The amount due
to non-controlling shareholder is unsecured, interest free
and expected to be settled within one year.

REB 2 [EMNER - HttENRIER
EErERAIFR  BE—ZFEENT K=
A& Z FRIE 25,355,000 ( —F— —4F :
14,161,0007T ) ° s #& A — & A A2 A -
HAEBESKEERZREE -

B EXEritESN - BH A 912,941,000
—EF— 4% :774,155,0007T ) Z & BR
o HAEAREEBT - BOTKHBHBOOE
BT 2EETRERMNKIE - H$1,279,000
TT(=Z— =4 : 10,241,0007T) BER T IE
PERRIR SR 2 5RTH o EE TR RIEE AR E
B\t RZTE—=F+=ZA=+—H " ' &K
@y [HibENRBREFERIFR - 8218
JIE 1~ FE 2 A% J& 3R 30 186,395,000 L (=T — =
F 1 6,218,0007T) ° FENS T IEIERR AR 2 5K
HAEER 28 WHEHAR—FREE -
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26 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 FEfTERIK - HMENRIE K
ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued) JEE+ B (&)
Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued [ENEZ  BEENZRBERESER |82
expenses” are the following amounts denominated in a FIHRIE - HABBEERE ZINee G AN
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to B -

which they relate:

The Group The Company
~EE PAN/NEC]
2013 2012 2013 2012
R | ZEZF |ZT—Z=F | ZE—=F

EUR 000 | EUR 000 | EUR 000 | EUR '000
TRz TR TRz TRz

Euros [h 78 - 87 - 87
27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 27 EEBEBERFIRNATEH
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet (a) EEEBRFITANAPHES :
represents:
The Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tz
Provision for PRC income tax for the year 74 € B FT18 51 i 149,707 144,528
Provisional tax paid EATEHT (126,653) (112,467)
23,054 32,061
Represented by: REK
Tax recoverable AT U Bl £ TE (35,359) (26,118)
Tax payable JEH I8 58,413 58,179
23,054 32,061
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 27T EERBERFITHMEN(#)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EEAEEFHEEERAE :
The Group AEE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities ERFEaBEERABRERCELEHIE(E
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the E)/BEBHRFRNESHNT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Temporary
differences
on assets
recognised
under
HK(IFRIC 12)
BE(ER Fair value
(BIREr 7% adjustment
HERE on available- Undistributed
ZE®)2E) for-sale  profits of
$12%:77 Revaluation  securities  subsidiaries
ZBE ofproperties HEEHZ  WEBAF Total
ZERER MEER RREHAE KDREF Fok)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
Tr Tr T Tr Tr
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—F—H 340,898 3,878 (3,274 117,928 459,430
Exchange adjustments ERTIECE:S 5,218 - (6) 1,625 6,837
Charged to reserve TR BRI - - 2,528 - 2,528
Charged to profit or loss RERERPNR 127,684 - - 52,367 180,051
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR
(note 8(d) (MizE8(d) (2,093) - - (14,822)  (16,915)
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+-A
=+-H 471,707 3,878 (752) 157,098 631,931
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=%—F—H 471,707 3,878 (752) 157,098 631,931
Exchange adjustments 0 3t 5% 16,472 344 (68) 5,554 22,302
Charged/(credited) to reserve {#E&ET NG,/
(Gt AGEE) - 16,641 (3,264) - 13,377
Charged to profit or loss HEEERPR 223,402 - - 76,657 300,059
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+_A

=t+—H8 711,581 20,863 (4,084) 239,309 967,669
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

27 AEB ARG 2

(b) EMBEERBEERER : (&)

(continued)
The Group (continued) REM(E)
2013 2012
== —T——F
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Net deferred tax assets recognised in REGEEEEBBERERY
the consolidated balance sheet EET IR E R (10,966) (27,508)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in ~ RGAEERBEBERER Y
the consolidated balance sheet RERIABE S 978,635 659,439
967,669 631,931
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) RERELEKRIBEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out BB T2 GHABER - AEE R

in note 1(t), the Group and the Company have not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of $68,349,000 (2012: $52,217,000) and
$60,896,000 (2012: $44,764,000) respectively as
it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do
not expire under the current tax legislation.

28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options at nominal
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options were exercisable six months (or a later date as
determined by the directors of the Company) after the date
on which the options were granted for a period up to ten
years or 25 May 2013, whichever was earlier. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

AATWES BIFE BTl E B R
IE i TE & E 68,349,000 L (= F — =
F : 52,217,0007T) £ 60,896,0007T (=
T— —1F 1 44,764,0007T) © RRAEHR
B AER kA EEE T AR gL
BERABRNMSZBEERAER -
RIBBTRBGA - LR ENEES
X AERBREAR -

28 LARUD Xt 2 IR 5

RARRE —EERESS - EXN=2F
FRAZTBERM - KU - ARRESE
EEITNERFAESEES (BERNEEE
MKBERARIZES)EMNAREZHAXRER
BARRAIRMD 2 Bk - BREERLEBH
BANBER(KARREFTRAEZLREBDE)
BEREETFEHEEREHFRZETFX
EZT—=FRAA-THBLEUREES
)  GIRERER THEFEARE KA
NaElERRZER -
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed during the years are as follows,
whereby all options were settled by physical

delivery of shares:

28 LABUD X 2 IR 5 (48)

(a) TXRINFRAERTEZBREZR
HIRR R R - Bt - FTAEBREN
ROBUXBARNEERY :

Number of Contractual
Instruments Vesting conditions life of options
MiE#H RN BIREZ & WFH
Options granted to directors:
RTYTEFZHERE -
— on 29 September 2003 10,000,000 One year from 9.7 years
ZEE=FAAZTNA the date of grant 9.7%F
B B AR —F
— on 3 August 2006 6,000,000 One year from 6.8 years
—ZTRF/\A=A the date of grant 6.84F
R B AR —F
— on 3 August 2006 8,000,000 Two years from 6.8 years
—ZTRF/\A=R the date of grant 6.84F
B B AR R E
Options granted to employees:
RTREE 2R -
— on 3 August 2006 1,700,000 One year from 6.8 years
—ZTRF/\A=R the date of grant 6.84F
R B AR —F
— on 3 August 2006 2,550,000 Two years from 6.8 years
—ZTRF/\A=R the date of grant 6.84F
B B AR R E
Total share options
B rEAE 28,250,000
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 IR Xt 2 IR 5 (#4)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BBREZHAE RMEFIGTEEMNT :

prices of share options are as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number of price  Number of
hniEFg options ¥ options
TEE  ERESE T8 MERESA
Outstanding at the FYIEARITEE
beginning of the year $0.705;t 15,300,000 $0.6547T 28,250,000
Exercised during FREITE
the year $0.7055t (15,300,000) $0.5937¢ (12,950,000)

Outstanding at the end £ 4% 15 R 1T{E
of the year -

- $0.705;t 15,300,000

Exercisable at the end & 4% 8] F7{&
of the year -

- $0.7057t 15,300,000

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for shares options exercised during the year
was $5.70 (2012: $3.90).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had
an exercise price of $0.296 or $0.85 and a weighted
average remaining contracted life of 0.4 year. There
was no option outstanding at 31 December 2013.

FRNETEERERITEBH Z NETF
HRR(E A5.7070(ZF——4F :3.907T) °

R-E——F+_-_A=+—BERTE
2 FERHE 2 176 (E/R0.296703K0.857T
Nt T & AF BRI R0.45F - I
—T—ZF+-_fA=+—H8 ETEHX
1182 B PR HE -
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

28 U 2R AR 5 (&)

(c) BREZAAEBRRR

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The

AEBUAREBEREMES ZRE A
REREEBEBRBEZIANENE - BE
BEREZAEFAAER AR -F8
H | EERAE  BREZENF
HIRMRA 2 —HEHABUR -

contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model.

Fair value of share options and BREZ ARBERBR

assumptions

Fair value at measurement date REtEBBZARE $0.297C
Share price I (& $0.857T
Exercise price 1B $0.857T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted TEERRIE (DA [ 5 — &7 R A |

average volatility used in the modelling under B B S X\ R F A0 Nt

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model) EH T E 52.13%
Option life (expressed as weighted average life PEREFEA(A A% —&FFR AR

used in the modelling under Black-Scholes B T B T N ER I B0 Nt

Option Pricing Model) SEHEERETE) 3 yearsf
Expected dividends TEHARR B 2.28%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund &R FI = (BIRIMNEE S ZHE)

Notes) 4.30%

TEHR IR TOAR IR SRR 5t B (AR i
ZINETFHRBFEMTFE) - BRARM
BEREERTKIE 2 Gt E B FHH
- BHREDNRBEEREEE ° T
RATBERXZ2EHAIHAAE GG
BRERTE -

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility based on public
available information. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

L8 1 7 B8 04 Y 75 £ £ AR A 1 1
ST et o

There were no service conditions or market conditions
associated with the share options granted.
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

29 IR - R M ALE
(a) REIRD LB

AEBERERE

=& B D ) R F R
ZHERENGERGEEHR - ARAF
EERBORFNRFRZEDHBER

statement of changes in equity. Details of changes FIER
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company b NN
Capital
Share Share  Special redemption  Capital  Retained
capital  premium  reseve  reserve  reserve profits Total
Bx  BROEE KHRE AAECEE AARE RERM |
$'000 $'000 $:000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i v T i i T Ao
Balance at 1 January 2012 RZF-ZE-R-HzEH 367546 2,160,080 - 70 5329 563,140 3,096,165
Changes in equity for 2012: “T-CE7REED.
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AFE 2 EMALE - - - - - 466,016 466,015
Dividends approved in respect of EREZERRS
the previous year (note 29(0)() (P &= 29(b) ) - - - - - (91892 (91,89
Issue of ordinary shares (note 29(c)(i) BATERR (MrEE20(0)i) 35,000 1,202,100 - - - - 1,237,100
Shares issued under share option scheme BB Rigs 2% 2k 0
(note 29(c)i) (P 3E29(c)i) 1205 8418 - - 209 - T.684
Dividend declared in respect of BERAFERS
the current year (note 29(o)(i) (Fir&E29(b))) - - - - - (120834 (120,834)
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZB-Z£+-A=1-H
bk 403,841 8,370,598 - 70 3,300 816,429 4,594,238

231



232

China Everbright International Limited B ¥ KB AR AR

Notes to the Financial Statements
E\j‘ % %& % qu‘ %AEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ff ZAFERRSN - FrE BB E)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(a) Movements in components of equity (continued)

29 B - i MRS ()
(a) RHESRD2RE (&)

The Company (continued) KQT (&)
Capital
Share Share  Special redemption  Capital  Retained
capital  premium  reseve  reserve  reserve profits Total
Bx  BhEE HHREE ZARORE AARE RERM fag
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZT-=F-F-HzER 403841 3,370,598 - 70 3300 816429 4,504,238
Changes in equity for 2013: “E-CEEREY).
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ RAEE2EMALE - - - - - (169000  (16,900)
Dividends approved in respect of EHELERRE
the previous year (note 29(o)(ii) (Fit&E29(b) i) - - - - - (121,611) (121,619)
Issue of ordinary shares (note 29(c)(i) TR (FrEE20(0)i) 43,000 3,573,816 - - - - 3,616,816
Shares issued under share option scheme  1REERiEst&1%/7 7R 17
(note 29(c)if) (Fit=E29(c) i) 1530 12,559 - - (3,300 - 10789
Dividend declared in respect of BERREFERS
the current year (note 29(b)() (BrzE2000)) - - - - - (141,880) (141,880)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZE-=5+ZF=1-FH
g 448,311 6,956,973 - 70 - 536,088 7,941,452
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends

29 AR -

EAENEENE D)

(b) BRE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the year

() RN TFER

AIRER 2 KB E

(i)

2013 2012
—T—=F —T—_F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid of B2 &k & {2 #Hi
3.5 cents per ordinary share (2012: % B AR 3.5l
3.0 cents per ordinary share) —E -
H&%ﬁﬂxs ofilr) 141,880 120,834
Final dividend proposed after the (\\,%%t HEZEZEDIKLZ
balance sheet date of 5.0 cents per  FEIfR B IR T E@AL
ordinary share (2012: 3.0 cents per 5. Oﬂﬂ(_’: —
ordinary share) B EBA 224,186 121,152
366,066 241,986
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet REFBEREZE? K2 REBARKREN
date has not been recognised as a liability at the REZKEEERBBEE -

balance sheet date.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

(i)

B E—EYEBFE - IRFAL

Company attributable to the previous financial JEW ST T AR GIREZ FENTHEE
year, approved and paid during the year
2013 2012
—=E—= —_F—=
$’000 $’000
Tt Tt
Final dividend in respect of the BRE—EFBREE -
previous financial year, approved WA AL S A~
and paid during the year, of 3.0 R B AR A
cents per ordinary share R3O ZFE—=%F :
(2012: 2.5 cents per ordinary share) G L @A%2.511) 121,611 91,892

In respect of dividends attributable to the year
ended 31 December 2012, the difference between
the final dividend proposed and the amount
approved and paid during the year represents the
additional dividends to the ordinary shareholders
upon the exercise of share options before the
closing date of the register of members.

RERE_FT——_F+-_A=t+—~H
LFEZBEEME » ERIRNZR
HA A B B A o HE B N ST 2 REAAR
EXHEHBRERE  FHEE/BER
BFEAAREERERODBFER
FREATEBRENKAEBRK
R YAMEE RIS -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Share capital

29 BK - REtR MR E (#)

(c) BB
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () EEREETRA
2013 2012
No.of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
i &5 i & H
’000 $’000 ‘000 $’000
+ Tz T Tz
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of EFRRmEE.10TLZ
$0.10 each T imA 5,000,000 500,000 | 5,000,000 500,000
Ordinary shares, TRk
issued and fully paid: EEITREHHE
At 1 January »w—HA—H 4,038,412 403,841 | 3,675,462 367,546
Issue of ordinary shares #717E& BI% 430,000 43,000 350,000 35,000
Shares issued under RIE AR 2
share option scheme BT D 15,300 1,530 12,950 1,295
At 31 December W+—_A=+—H 4,483,712 448,371 | 4,038,412 403,841

(i)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Issue of ordinary shares

On 7 September 2012, 350,000,000 new ordinary
shares were allotted and issued to Guildford
Limited, the immediate parent of the Company,
at a subscription price of $3.58 per share.
Net proceeds from such issue amounted to
$1,237,100,000 (after offsetting direct expenses
of $15,900,000), out of which $35,000,000 and
$1,202,100,000 were recorded in share capital
and share premium respectively.

On 20 December 2013, 430,000,000 new
ordinary shares were allotted and issued to
Guildford Limited, the immediate parent of the
Company, at a subscription price of $8.52 per
share. Net proceeds from such issue amounted to
$3,616,816,000 (after offsetting direct expenses
of $46,784,000), out of which $43,000,000 and
$3,573,816,000 were recorded in share capital
and share premium respectively.

(i)

LEBHE AL ERRTEEIE
RS LRKATAE LT HER
BOEE—BREME - AL
HBEENE  MEEAREEM
ZHEF -

BT HEAR

R-E——FNLA+H  KAFME
HE#E2 AGuildford Limitedfid 2
% 2% 77 350,000,000 A& #7 X 8@ A% -
REBATNRI.587T o BT L%
P FT18 R IE ) F 58 &1,237,100,0007C
(D E 2 15,900,0007T) » H
#35,000,0007T .1,202,100,0007C
E D BIABRBA &5 EE o

B=-—+H K
# & 2 7 Guildford
Limited B 2 & # 17 430,000,000
LBk REEASRSS2
JC ° BT LD TS ROEFEE A
3,616,816,000 T (B K $H B & XX
46,784,000t ) © H 143,000,000
7T }%.3,573,816,000 T E 4 5l A BR A%
AR5 wmE -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2013, options
were exercised to subscribe for 15,300,000
ordinary shares (2012: 12,950,000 ordinary
shares) in the Company at a consideration
of $10,789,000 (2012: $7,684,000) of which
$1,530,000 (2012: $1,295,000) was credited to
share capital and the balance of $9,259,000 (2012:
$6,389,000) was credited to the share premium
account. $3,300,000 (2012: $2,029,000) has been
transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with policy set
out in note 1(s)(ii). The Company’s share option
scheme was expired on 26 May 2013 and there
were no options outstanding on 31 December
2013.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(i)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account
and the capital redemption reserve is governed by
sections 48B and 49H respectively of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

1(s)(i).

Special reserve

On 5 January 2004, the Company announced
its intention to put forward a proposal for the
reduction of the Company’s share premium
account by the sum of $2,372,172,824 (i.e.
accumulated losses of the Company as at 30
September 2003) and the application of the same
amount of credit arising from such reduction
towards the elimination of the accumulated losses
of the Company. The reduction of share premium
account, approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 2 February
2004, was confirmed by an order made by the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”) on 2 March 2004
and became effective upon registration of the said
order by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on the same date.

29 AR -

EAENEENE D)
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)

To safeguard the interests of the Company’s
creditors, the Company undertakes to the Court
to create a special reserve upon the reduction
of share premium account on the terms set out
below:

(1) that for so long as there shall remain
outstanding any debt of or claim against the
Company which, if the date on which the
reduction of the share premium account of
the Company (the “Effective Date”) were the
commencement of the winding-up of the
Company, would be admissible to proof in
such winding-up and the person entitled to the
benefit thereof shall not have consented to the
said reduction of share premium account or
agreed otherwise, the Company shall credit to
a special reserve in the books of the Company
(the “Special Reserve”):

— any amount arising by reason of a release
of any provision taken into account in
establishing the accumulated losses of
the Company shown in the balance sheet
of the management accounts of the
Company for the nine months ended 30
September 2003; or

— any amount received by the Company
as profit by way of distribution from a
corporation which was a subsidiary or an
associated company of the Company at
the Effective Date (a “subsidiary” or an
“associated company” respectively) which
is made by such subsidiary or associated
company out of profits available for
distribution prior to the Effective Date
or any dividend paid to the Company in
respect of any liquidation of a subsidiary or
an associated company commencing prior
to the Effective Date; and

29 B - i MRS ()
(d) REHERBEN(E)

(iiy) #5751 ()
RTREARBEEAZEZ &
R A EDEB 1 AR - R HDR A

i B AR A

e

SRR — BRI - 1RAR

(1) R A R B HIBAR 0 )it 18 R 2 2K

ER(EMBEH]) (FZARAK
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BB RIRA D i B AR SRR - AR
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BzRhlEm(MSRIRELD T
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PR RET 18 2 (B 6 P
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)

(2)

the Special Reserve:

— shall not be treated as realised profits of
the Company; and

— shall, for so long as the Company shall
remain a limited company, be treated as
an undistributable reserve of the Company
for the purposes of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the People’s Republic of China) or any
statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof.

Provided always that:

(1)

the Special Reserve may be applied for the
same purposes as a share premium account
may lawfully be applied;

the amount standing to the credit of the
Special Reserve may be reduced by an amount
equal to any increase, after the Effective Date,
in the share premium account of the Company
which results from an issue of shares (other
than for the purposes of any redemption or
purchase by the Company of its own shares)
for cash or other consideration or by way of
the capitalisation of distributable profits or
reserves, and the Company shall be at liberty
to transfer the amount so reduced to the
general reserves of the Company and the same
shall become available for distribution;

the amount credited to the Special Reserve in
accordance with the foregoing provisions of
this undertaking shall not at any time exceed
$1,762,999,500 (the “Limit”);

29 AR -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Special reserve (continued)
Provided always that: (continued)

(4) the Limit may be reduced by the amount of any
increase, after the Effective Date, in the paid-
up share capital or share premium account
of the Company which results from an issue
of shares (other than for the purposes of any
redemption or purchase by the Company of
its own shares) for cash or other consideration
or by way of the capitalisation of distributable
profits or reserves;

(5) the Limit may be reduced upon the liquidation,
disposal or other realisation, after the Effective
Date, of a subsidiary, an associated company
or any of the financial or fixed assets of the
Company by the amount of the provision
made in relation to such subsidiary, associated
company or financial or fixed assets as at 30
September 2003 less such amount (if any) as
credited to the Special Reserve as a result of
such liquidation, disposal or realisation; and

(6) in the event that the amount standing to the
credit of the Special Reserve at any time
exceeds the Limit after any reduction of the
Limit pursuant to provisos (4) and/or (5) above,
the Company shall be at liberty to transfer
the amount of any such excess to the general
reserves of the Company and the same shall
become available for distribution.

The Special Reserve of $112,016,000 credited in
2004 was reduced to Nil during the year ended 31
December 2006 due to an increase in the share
premium account of the Company which resulted
from an issue of shares in 2006.

RN E (#)

(d) REHERBEN(E)
(iiy) #5751 ()

K ()

(4) EEMBHIR  EBTRO(E
AR BRE B i B A & M) &R
SMBBER S HE MR ERE R
BAMEA] 73k & ) 3 e A 1 51 2R
AR B Z B0 B A S B A 3 (B Pl
1N BAl BAER A B RAREE

(6) MAKRBMER B8 HEX
AEAMTXERMB AR - B
RAERANREHEFS B HEEE
ER - R-TT=FNLA=1H
SEREMB AR - BRI
BREEEEMERE I ERBEHE
LB - hENBIRER
FTEEZ R EERSE (M
B)z8  ATRERDERR
BiR

(6) fEiR % X5 (4) &3k (5) & HI
ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ&%ﬂﬁﬁZﬁ%i
BEBEMARE  AAFABEHMH
BREBHZHEEARRZ — R
B MEBTSEAIERIIKZA -

REBEEZTEF+_A=1+—8
IEFE  RZZTZNFARZEFR
f;%ﬁﬂz 016 000TTREZTT * RA
BARRARNRZZEENFEEITRMG A
ﬁ%ﬁ%E%EMWﬁ



Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FFf

Notes to the Financial Statements

__l: A}
Ej % %F( % I}fﬂ‘ ﬁEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (r BAFERRIN - FrA BB E)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Special reserve (continued)

After the Effective Date, shares were issued during
the current year and prior years through placing
and exercise of share options. Pursuant to the
proviso (4) above, the Limit was reduced by the
amount of any increase in the paid-up share capital
or share premium account of the Company which
results from an issue of shares for cash or other
consideration. At 31 December 2013, the Limit
was reduced to Nil and no further amount will be
credited to the Special Reserve.

Gooadwill arising on consolidation

The goodwill arising on consolidation has been
set up and dealt with in accordance with the
transitional arrangements under HKFRS 3 (August
2004), goodwill which had previously been taken
directly to reserves (i.e. goodwill which arose
before 1 January 2001) will not be recognised
in profit or loss on disposal or impairment of
the acquired business, or under any other
circumstances.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(x).

Property revaluation reserve

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain
properties previously occupied by the Group as
owner-occupied property were transferred to
investment properties and a revaluation surplus of
$107,153,000 (2012: Nil) was credited to property
revaluation reserve to account for the difference
between the carrying amounts and the fair values
of the properties at the date of change in use,
determined using market comparison approach by
independent firms of surveyors.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group is
not distributable as at 31 December 2013.
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vii) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in notes 1(g) and (I).

(viii) Reserve fund

Statutory reserve — wholly foreign-owned enterprises
Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which are
wholly foreign-owned enterprises, follow the
accounting principles and relevant financial
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly
foreign-owned enterprises (“PRC GAAP — WFOE”),
in the preparation of its accounting records and
financial statements. Pursuant to the accounting
regulations for business enterprises (1t & &t
FE[81 € (2000)25%%]), the subsidiaries are required
to appropriate 10% of the profit arrived at in
accordance with PRC GAAP — WFOE for each year
to a statutory reserve. The profit arrived at must
be used initially to set off against any accumulated
losses. The appropriations to statutory reserve,
after offsetting against any accumulated losses,
must be made before the distribution of dividends
to equity owners. The appropriation is required
until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. This statutory reserve is not
distributable in the form of cash dividends, but may
be used to set off losses or be converted into paid-
in capital.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(e) Distributability of reserves

(f)

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of section 79B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, was $536,038,000 (2012:
$816,429,000). After the balance sheet date the
directors proposed a final dividend of 5.0 cents per
ordinary share (2012: 3.0 cents per ordinary share),
amounting to $224,186,000 (2012: $121,152,000)
(note 29(b)(i)). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis and considers the cost of capital
and the associated risks. Based on recommendations
of the board of directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, new shares issues
or new debt financing. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the
equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there were adequate working capital to service its
debt obligation. The Group’s gearing ratio, being the
Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, as at 31
December 2013 was 41% (2012: 48%).

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios as disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from

its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Debts are usually due within 30 to 90 days from
the date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivables in respect
of revenue from environmental energy, environmental
water and alternative energy project operation services
which are settled on a monthly basis. In addition, the
Group has gross amounts due from customers for
contract work and other receivables in respect of the
BT, BOT and TOT arrangements.

At the balance sheet date, “Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments” (excluding loan receivable)
and “Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” of the Group amounted to $4,349,179,000
(2012: $3,760,625,000) and $9,976,612,000 (2012:
$7,533,350,000) respectively, of which $1,022,831,000
(2012: $2,359,708,000) and $5,956,981,000 (2012:
$4,309,205,000) were due from the largest customer
and five largest customers in aggregate of the Group.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet. Since the parties to BT, BOT and TOT
arrangements are local government authorities in the
PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low.
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—ZT— 4 : 4,309,205,0007T) 7 Bl &
ZKE@?ﬁ%ﬁK%&ﬂkgﬁé%ﬂ

cfZERRBZERECREERER
EP&%IEEM%&EZEEE@%W o AR
BT - BOT&TOTTZHFTZETZ’]?W%EP I
EMBNRE  SASERRBEER
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company to its subsidiaries, the Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group
or the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of the financial guarantees at
the balance sheet date is disclosed in note 34. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from “Debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments” as well as
“Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work” are set out in notes 19 and 20 respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.

30 BEEEEN TR IARAEME)

(a)

(b)

EERR(ZE)

BT ARAABETHEQRIED 2%
BRI AEBTERBENESERE
B ARNRAZEERB ZER - R
HEH AEERUEEHBERIAEZ
FEERREREHNNES - A5H
[FEMARFR - HAEWGRIE « =& RIEN
FIE IR [EREF G X T2 IBR5E T
HEERBZE—TSEERE - HAlH
RMEE19X%20 °

REBESER
AEEETNBYEERERESTRAR
CEBRIE BERASAEKZEHRKRE
EREFURNEMRSFR - EW
fEEBHBRERESRE  NAEEGQF
EEQMETAEE - AEEZHE
EEHERARBESABERERAYE
ERm2BITRN  BEREEAFER
MRS BRI ZVHEENE RSN
WAKREERE  UWENEHRRBR
HESFR -

TRINFAEERARAREER ZIE
METAVBABEZRBANOBMRE
Mo WARTHRMBRRESRE(RIERE
WNEH(NBEE)REBEEERBITLZ
MEFEZHE) RAKRERARRAE
EERFEZRFAH/EEMIIL -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

30 AR EENNEMIARNAEME)

(continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELRAKM(Z)
The Group REE
2013 2012
Ik 2
Total Morethan ~ More than Total Morethan ~ More than
contractual Within 1 yearhut 2 years contractual Wihin 1 yearbut 2 years
undiscounted 1 year or witin butwithin undiscounted 1 yearor within-— butwithin
Carying  cashfow ondemand  2years  Syeas  Morethan | Camying  cashfow  ondemand 2years  Syeas  Morethan
amont ATAREE RS FRE  RERE  byes | amont FHREE  ERR FRE  BERE  Syems
FEE ReRgE  &BL WA EFM IER | BEE Ren#E 0 REX WEM 1ER 1%k
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T i i S Tz Tz i i i i i T
Bank loans FhER 6921121 7833421 2076310 2288531 2680025 788,565 | 6004351 6952159 1047368 1201494 2747782 985,580
Creditors, other A% Ef
payables and ERAER
aconedexpenses  EHER 1,733,757 1,733,757 1,733,757 - - - [ 1190736 1190736 1,190,736 - - -
8654878 9567178 3810067 2288531 2680025 788555 | 7195087 8142895 3138080 1201494 2747732 985580
The Company VNN
2013 212
5k EE
Total Morgthan ~ More then Total Morethan ~ More than
contractual Within Tyear  2years contractual Within Tyear  2years
undiscounted ~~ Tyearor  butwithin -~ but within undscounted ~ fyearor  butwithin  butwithin
Camying ~ cashfow  on demand 2 years Syears | Camying  cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years
anot FTERER  ERME ERR WERE | womt THRER ERE ERE WEKE
FEE ZeREE  RBL WEM REM | EEE ReREE  BEX RERm  BFR
$000 $000 $000 §000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i fr i i i i i i 1 1
Bank loans 1266925 1,331,099 143549 1,094,703 92847 | 990850 1054353 3738 15692 9523596
Other payables and accrued expenses EMERIERETER 35,692 35,692 35,692 - - 20024 20024 20,024 - -
1302617 1366791 179241 1,094,703 90847 | 1010874 1014377 393859 156922 5235%6
Financial quarantees issued:  B/rtZBBER
Maximum amount guaranteed (note 34) BRERSE (s - 2779 2,207,798 - - - 2179485 2179485 - -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits,
loan receivable and bank loans. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings
(being interest-bearing financial liabilities less loan
receivable, bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) at the balance sheet date.

30 BEEEEN TR IARAEME)

(c) FIERE

AEBEHZAERRE  FZ@ETEE
ZHRENBREEEY  RITER - B
ERRIBITER - IZHFRKLETEF
ZRHECERSAEED R AIRE R
EFXREREAABNERR - NEH
YEMBELBOTAE T ERYE D XA
R AEBZFI R RNAETEEER -
R T ()

(i) FIEBER
TR AEEREARARREEB
ZEEFRAGRMBEERERE
WER RITERRBRERAESE
BY)) 2 FIZBER -

The Group KEE
2013 2012
—E-=f —E-—F
Effective Effective

interest rate $'000 interest rate $000
ERA% T ERA% T

Net fixed rate deposits/  EEE/EYFIEZE

receivable:
Bank loans RITER 4.70% - 6.00% 388,786 - -
Less: Loan receivable W BWER 11% (51,156) 1% (49,744)
Deposits with bank BAFH 1.95% - 4.25% (1,345,404) | 0.38% - 4.25% (943,352)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELEED 0.30% - 3.71% (2,506,297) | 0.38% - 2.85% (337,283)
(3,514,071) (1,330,379)
Net variable rate TEEEIE
borrowings:

Bank loans RITEH 1.44% - 7.21% 6,532,335 | 0.99% - 7.40% 6,004,351
Less: Pledged bank deposits W BEARTER 0.35% - 1.27% (43,468) | 0.39% - 1.27% (46,289)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHEESEY 0.01% -1.27% (1,919,437) | 0.01% - 1.27% (1,469,585)
4,569,430 4,488,477
Total net borrowings BEETE 1,055,359 3,158,098
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 0 AR EELEMTAEARBEGE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) RNERB(E)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) () FIEBL (&)
The Company <N 7]
2013 2012
—F-=F% 3
Effective Effective
interest rate $'000 interest rate $'000
ERAx Tr ER A= i
Fixed rate deposits: AR
Deposits with bank BITER 1.95% - 4.10% (1,300,000) | 1.54% - 2.04% (680,000)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESEEY 0.30% - 1.74% (2,100,054) | 0.50% - 1.50% (223,322)
(3,400,054) (903,322)
Net variable rate FEEERE
borrowings
Bank loans BIER 2.06% - 2.80% 1,266,925 | 0.99% - 2.89% 990,850
Less: Cash and cash equivalents i : & LR 2 ZEY 0.01% - 0.39% (252,392) | 0.01% - 1.27% (129,420)
1,014,533 861,430
Total net deposits BERFE (2,385,521) (41,892)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of one percent
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit before taxation by approximately
$10,554,000 (2012: $31,581,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before
taxation that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the balance sheet date. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the balance sheet date, the impact on the
Group’s profit before taxation is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

(i) BHEEE ST
R-E—=%F+-A=+—8 " #
REBEE - WFRBELHA T
FH—E7 \Eﬁ mATE £ ER
ERETE  AEBZBRATAT
%@ﬁy/%mmuwmpmﬁ
—ZF—_% :31,581,0007T) °

LRGREDNIE L AEE ZRB
AIE M AT REE £ 2 BN 2 8) - IRk
EoMBRENZEHNEEECE
A YERAREMSEASEAMN

FAEYREEREAEBEHEBEA R
BENXARZEBMTA - #REHEA

SEREEBMITEE 2 IZEA =
?ﬁEI/E\-FﬁEEZEEiU\L%IJ:%‘:
B EHAEBRBAABT 25
RERMEEEGHMEE 2HEX
WM AEMET - B MIR_-F
—ZF 22 R ELEHETT o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(d) Currency risk

(e)

Majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. Presently, there is no hedging policy
with respect of the foreign exchange exposure. The
Group’s transactional currencies are Chinese Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars as substantially all the turnover
are within Hong Kong and other parts in the PRC. With
the natural hedging of the revenue and costs being
denominated in Chinese Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars, the Group’s transactional foreign exchange
exposure was insignificant.

With respect to borrowings and creditors denominated
in United States dollars (USD), the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations is insignificant as Hong
Kong dollars is pegged to USD.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-
sale equity securities (see note 18). The Group’s listed
investments are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Shanghai Stock Exchange.
The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long
term strategic purposes. The management monitors
regularly the performance of the investments against
expectation, together with an assessment of their
relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.

30 AR EEN TR T

ARnE#E)

(d) MEE =Bz

(e)

REBARBORXHEAEEER 2B
EXtE Bl AEEYXEGHIE
Rz H R - AEREZRXH5EE R
ARER B  RERELALMBELERE

BYXREFERPEAEMMEE - ERIK
ARBRAAANRE R EEEE - MEE

EEREMIER  MAEBRERS LT
2 2 EH RBREM o

ERUERTAHEZEEREMNER - A
RBTEETHE  WEXRKPH2TE
HH o

RSB A B

AEEAZBRARE (REBBFERA
EH - HRAMFI8) ZRABRESE

c REEZ EMBREHEETBHER
SBRRBR EBBSFR LT -
AEBZFEMBREDRRYIRE B K
mEBR  EERETHERSTERECLE
PREFAHIRE - UFABERESSE
BAKEZ REIREGE
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(e) Equity price risk (continued)

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% (2012: 5%) in that relevant stock
market index (for listed investments) or the price/
earning ratios of comparable listed companies (for
unquoted investments) as applicable, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
B\j % %& %% I}fj‘ %i (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BB BSN » i S BIABIEE)

30 BEEEER TR IARNAEME)

(e) RAERER(Z)

RZZF—=F+=-A=+—H " BEX&E
Ef{hET - nEERMIEESGERR ik
B)RAHER ETARZTAERGER
RIELETRE) (BREER) LA/ T
10%(—ZF——4%F : 5%)  MABEMT
ERAERHEFIE  AEEZIGEERZ
H 30 e mmT:

The Group REE
2013 2012
—T—=F —T_F
Effect on other Effect on other
components components
of equity of equity
i 2 i 2
HipHH 2 HipHH 2
2 &
$'000 $'000
T T
Change in the relevant AR A E R R
equity price risk variable: RERZZ &1 :

Increase A 10% 15,202 5% 7,540
Decrease Tk 10% (15,202) 5% (7,540)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock market index or other relevant
risk variables had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to equity price risk at the balance sheet date.
It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant stock
market index or the relevant risk variables, that none
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments would
be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock market index or other relevant risk
variables, and that all other variables remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

FRFREDNELARE 2 RE R
ZHMEO A RRELE ZARKES o UK
JE 07 R R B Th 45 B sk A AR B L B T
TRARZEPINEERDKEL - A D
AREFTEASEMBAELANEER
FEASEEGRAERRRZEHBT
B o TREAKEBRAREZR
RESRIEEMERERT 2 EE R R
TERRZEFENELHEEMES
25 AKREZHERETERSIEM
P Th 5 sk H A AE B Rl B N R = N R
MR RE HIRFER - URAAEMT
ERERSERIE - BESIME_F—=
F2 i 2 HRELELETT o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the balance sheet date on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

30 BEEEEN TR IARAEME)

(f) DRMESR

(i)

=
BANEAECHEEERRE
DA ERERR
TRINTAGERGEE B ZEE
EEFEBZEMIARAE A@
CRITAREATBMBEREER
F13 [ DA EFE IR EZ =18
NABERBRR - RAEFEMR
B2 RAN T2 RATEERMAA
BB ABREENERIRZEEME
E 5

- E-RMGHE: ERE-REE
(BIRFTERBHEREEXRE
FERBMS 2 RIEHBERE) 5T

BZRRE

- FRMEE: ERE _HRBUE
(BIRBETT & 56 — AR TE Z AT A
BERFIZ28E  WRTERT
ABRBIAZERRR)FEZ
DRE - THBRGSI 28EE
RERENSEE 2 8iE

— F=RMGE: ERTHUBRKFE
ZEREEBAEZAAE
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

30 BEEEER TR IARNAEME)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued) (f) AREFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () AT EFTEZHEEEREE
value (continued) (&)
Fair value Fair value
at 31 at 3t
December December
2013 Fair value measurements as at 2012 Fair value measurements s at
s 31 December 2013 categorised into # 31 December 2012 categorised info
—poce TBBRCESEfCATEA |-z DUERACET-—FoAT-R
1-p 2BhBiE 4-p 2BhiE
St levll  Llevl2  Llevdl3 | =t-B  level!  Level2  Leveld
2B R R B=R | O £h £ £=4
$000 $000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T T T
The Group KEE
Recurring fair value ~ BEHHALE
measurements B
Assets: gE:
Available-for-sale equity BERRES:
securities:
- Listed -t 172811 172,811 - - 192793 192,793 - -
- Unlisted ~kti 3,899 - 3899 -] 389 - 88% -

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2013, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the balance sheet
date in which they occur.

REBE-ZE——FR=-ZT—=F+=A
T+ HLEFERN F—RRE_H2
M EFEAER  NETAEES AR
EHE=R - AEBZBRRREB
EZHBEERER DR ERBERANZ
Faﬁmii}% °
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

30 AR EENEMIARAEME)

(f) DAEFEE)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BALEHEZHEEERBRE
value (continued) (4)
Fair value Fair value
a3t at 31
December December
2013 Fair valug measurements as at 2012 Fair value measurements as at
3 31 December 2013 categorised nto s 31 December 2012 categorised into
-g——f MRAR-F-=Et-A=t-Be|-z—-¢ TABAR-Z-—Ft-A=1-AZ
+-f DfEitE +-f DrfiE
=t-0  Levelt level2  Lewld | =T—H  Lewlt Level2  Level3
IR & BZR O B=H | 0 B8 38 =R
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
n io0 Tr fr T io0 T fr
The Company AR7
Recurring fair value ~ MEHHALE
measurements it
Asses: 2!
Avallable-for-sale equity BERIES
securities:
- Unlisted i 3,899 - 3,899 - 3,899 - 3,899 -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of available-for-sale equity securities
in Level 2 represent an investment in a property
investment company, with its investment properties
(being significant part of the total assets) stated
at fair value. The fair value of such investment
is determined based on net asset value of the
investee which is approximately the fair value.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
debtors, bank deposits, current portion of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments and
creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short
term maturity of these financial instruments. The
carrying amounts of non-current portion of other
receivables and deposits, gross amounts due
from customers for contract work and bank loans
approximate their fair values.

As set out in note 16, the Company had amounts
due from/to subsidiaries which are interest-
free, it is not considered practicable to estimate
the fair values of the amounts because the cost
of obtaining discount and borrowing rates for
comparable borrowings would be excessive.

30 MBEREEEN TR IARNAEME)

(f)

DMREFEE)
() BAAEGEZHBEERRE

(i)

(%)
E_RAREFEMREA 2 AERM
LS
F_RIHERAEFRZARERE
R—FEPERERRZRE - %A
AZBREMEX(ERBREEEKRE
MIBAAREIER BEREZRA
ARERBHERERR CEEFEE
T EREEFEEAAEMEE -

IR EIEZ B TR AR E
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Th® - EtERHIE e M
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

BN
%5 o

(@) The Group entered into the following related party

31 BEMALTZEARS
BTUHEHBRREMBOANERZZI R
AREEYEEHA LRI TIER

(@) NEEE KB ALRTIILT T3

transactions with a related party bank: B ALTRS :
2013 2012
—_EF—= —Eg—=
$'000 $'000
Tz Tt
Dividend income from listed securities EmREHRERA 3,539 7,911
Interest expense B H 11,803 11,350

(b) The Group entered into the following related party

(o) AEEE—REEQRFIL T NI EEEE

transactions with an associate: ARG :
2013 2012
—ET—=5F ===
$°000 $°000
Tz T
Service expense for operation of BREELSKEERZ

waste-water treatment plants RS R

(note 31(f) (MEE31(H) 57,549 53,303

(c) The Group entered into the following related party

(c) AEEEEIEEBARIRATL 7 T 51 B s

transactions with a non-controlling shareholder of the ATRS :
Group:
2013 2012
—F—= —E——
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Revenue from environmental water project RIR/KEER
operation services B R 89,300 70,343
Finance income B TSI 27,710 27,800
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 BHEBIA T2 EAR 5 (&)

(continued)
(d) The Group entered into the following related party (d) NEBEEEER QAR EIFEBRBRRZ
transactions with a related company and subsidiaries BB ARG T THEBMALRS :

of non-controlling shareholders of the Group:

2013 2012
—T—= —ET—C—F
$’000 $’000
Tz Tz
Revenue from environmental water project IR{R/K#TE B & 2 k1%
operation services e 47,900 33,566
Revenue from environmental water project IB{R/K7&IE B iR
construction services s - 20,888
Finance income BTN 53,468 52,837
Technical service expense F TR i% & 1,325 1,326
(e) The Group paid key management personnel () REEEZNFEEEEAB ZHEAR
compensation, including amounts paid to the e EE I ARARESZ B (R
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 9 and certain OB REXNETHRRFHEEZK
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, H(RMFFE10FHEE)MAT :
as follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —F—=
$'000 $'000
Tz Tt
Salaries and other short-term employee ¥4 R EM4GHIES
benefits =l 65,874 53,259
Retirement scheme contributions RORETEI R 1,906 1,210
67,780 54,469
Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see MeBEt A TBIRA]A(RHE

note 6(b)). 6(b)) °
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 HEHEBIA T2 EAR 5 (&)

(continued)

(f) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group entered into certain continuing connected
transactions. The Company’s independent non-
executive directors have reviewed these transactions.
Details of which are disclosed under the paragraph
“Continuing connected transactions” in the report of
the directors.

) RBE-ZT-—=F+-_A=1t—BL*F
B AREFYTETHERERS -
RRARZBUIFFATESTCEHNERER
5  ERXGHBEEESTERST [HE
BRERS | —# N RE -

32 COMMITMENTS 32 EiE
(@) RZB—=F+-A=+—8 " tARE
I RERREEBAERREANY
PR AE 51,122,456,000C(ZE——
£ 470,034,0007T) °

(@) At 31 December 2013, the Group had outstanding
purchase commitments in connection with the Group’s
construction contracts not provided for in the financial
statements of $1,122,456,000 (2012: $470,034,000).

(b) At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

(o) RZZT—Z=ZF+=_A=+—H " BET
ARENEEHEERREBENNRIER

== o K o
payable as follows: S RemmT
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
=E===s —F—=

$’000 $’000
T Tt
Within 1 year —F N 1,076 777
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFAN 119 82
1,195 859

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to five years. None of these leases
includes contingent rentals.

AEERBEKEHEERZEDE - F
BEE— RO AE—ZEZ0F  BX T

BRIEEE -
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33 PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of assets pledged are set out in note 25. The
aggregate net book value of assets and equity interests in
subsidiaries pledged amounted to $10,695,111,000 as at
31 December 2013 (2012: $7,684,579,000).

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued
financial guarantees to eight wholly-owned subsidiaries
and a non-wholly owned subsidiary. The directors do not
consider it is probable that a claim will be made against
the Company under the guarantees. The maximum
liability of the Company at the balance sheet date under
the guarantees issued is the facility drawn down by the
subsidiaries of $2,207,798,000 (2012: $2,179,485,000).

Due to the related party nature of the instruments, the
directors considered it is not practicable to estimate the
fair values of the financial guarantees and therefore they
have not been recognised in the Company’s financial
statements.

35 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Guildford Limited and China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited, which are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong respectively. Neither
of them produces financial statements available for public
use.

33

34

35

BEEEH

EEREEFBIRMEF2D - RZFT—=
F+-A=+—H BERBEELNBAR
fix # 2 BR B F{E 4 %8 /2 10,695,111,000 7T
—T——4F :7,684,579,0007T) °

B BE

2% HEEER

HEHEH ARRAABNARZEMNBARR
—RI2EMBARIELHMBER -ESE
RAE EE%W%%%ATﬁT%H@iL
FERAARRFELBEE - REEH - AAQ
TLERBELMBERTZ xmﬁ%z%ﬁ
M B AR ERELZ B & 2,207,798,000 7T
—T— 4% :2,179,485,0007T) °

HRERITABREBALHEE  HEZRR
TEEFARMBERZIAAE - HAER
ARR 2 A BHRRPEREBER

BEEEREIZERALT

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H EFREA
AEBZEEBRARREEERA LTSS
7%Gui|dford Limited X R B X REBHR A

CBESRRKBHBRES RE S M
;ﬂu c FEWEMBRAIMARATIAZE
TEHREK o
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a few amendments and a new
standard which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

36 EAMEREEZE_ZT—=F1+_A4

=t —HEFERRERZET

TR Rz AR &

RUHEHBHRETIZAE  BESHALAE
EAMEBIEER R —EHHMER - ZF BT K
FEBRNEE - T—=F+_-_A=+—HIt
FEMAER  HWEUBRRISTERAZS
1BET R 2R - Al e AN B A RIS E] &
AR

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BIATH#R &
Fita 2 gt AR

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial {&&&&t4E

assets and financial liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of
derivatives and continuation of hedge

accounting

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

|) 325k 2 1ER] —
[N EELYFR ]

(BB ER)FEI5R 2 BT —
[PTHETAZEEREFEE
JEZ UL

(BABUBEHREER)FH —
[2@TA]

1 January 2014
—E—MmF—HA—H

1 January 2014
—ET-mFE—H—H

Not yet established
by the HKICPA
ER G AGIIARMETE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standard
is expected to be in the period of initial application but is
not yet in a position to state whether these amendments
and new standard would have a significant impact on
the Group’s or the Company’s results of operations and
financial position.

AEBREFEZEFERT LN ENEE EE
REFEMEeEL R E - EB AT RERTER
BIEFT R B @R HARBEHARF 2 &
BEENMYBARBRERNENZE -

257



258

China Everbright International Limited B ¥ KB AR AR

Five Year Summary
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At 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“T—=F | T —2—%F —T-TF —ZTTNE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
T T Fr T T
Assets and liabilities BENEE
Fixed assets ETEE 1,587,319 1,471,047 887,597 413,877 168,011
Intangible assets BIEE 1,096,453 613,564 1,069,730 638,728 553,828
Goodwil e 20,793 20,793 46,133 46,133 46,133
Interest in associates BN B 254,380 - - - 588
Other financial assets HEiEE 176,710 196,692 184,284 244,949 21,385
Other receivables H b B
and deposits Rigg 3,023,616 2,603,369 2,181,165 2,399,734 1,736,218
Gross amounts due from EUWEFAHTIRE
customers for contract work TIEMEE 9,035,315 6,889,550 5,963,047 4,629,124 3,174,793
Finance lease receivables MEMERNFE 21,485 21,384 21,608 - -
Deferred tax assets ELHREEE 10,966 27,508 12,836 14,080 22522
Net current assets REEEIE 4,671,973 1,854,906 973,731 868,932 1,755,970
19,899,010 | 13,698,813 11,340,131 9,255,557 7,479,448
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (6,119,889) | (5,028,404)  (4,678,567)  (3,506,908) (2,549,682
NET ASSETS BE$H 13,779,121 8,670,409 6,661,564 5,748,649 4,929,766
Share capital R 448,371 403,841 367,546 365,246 363,932
Reserves BE 12,925,893 7,945,918 5,822,478 4,972,806 4,208,900
Total equity attributable to equity 772 7R EE &L
shareholders of the Company ~ #z48%8 13,374,264 8,349,759 6,190,024 5,338,052 4,572,832
Non-controlling interests EERER 404,857 320,650 471,540 410,597 356,934
TOTAL EQUITY e Eapb 13,779,121 8,670,409 6,661,564 5,748,649 4,929,766
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For the year ended 31 December
HETZA=t-HILEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—2-=f —2-CF —2——F —Z-TF —ETNE
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T T T
Results E3
Continuing operations BRECEEH
Turnover e 5,319,866 3,409,938 3,486,697 2,781,438 1,652,259
Profit from operations BERF 2,127,232 1,483,202 1,260,280 922,298 595,685
Finance costs BBER (315,579) (312,640) (240,778) (167,322) (155,099)
Share of (loss)/profit of FTihEE AR
associates (B518),/ &7 - - - (688) 588
Profit before taxation BRE Al B A 1,811,653 1,170,562 1,019,502 754,388 441,174
Income tax FiaH (447,455) (266,554) (254,713) (165,010) (82,591)
Profit from continuing operations LB B 1,364,198 904,008 764,789 589,378 358,583
Discontinued operation BIEREEHK
Profit from discontinued operation  #& &2 #5457 B A
(net of tax) (BR#%) - 250,096 80,475 63,787 49,894
Profit for the year AEERA 1,364,198 1,154,104 845,264 653,165 408,477
Attributable to: JEM 1R -
Equity shareholders of the KARRE
Company 1,324,667 1,123,269 801,441 616,433 371,898
Non-controlling interests R 39,531 30,835 43,823 36,732 36,579
Profit for the year KEEAF 1,364,198 1,154,104 845,264 653,165 408,477
Basic earnings per share REKRF 32.60 centsfl | 29.65centsfll  21.86 centsfll  16.92 centsfll  11.39 centsfll

EFBBERA - Greenway R EWMB AT 2546
MEXE2F|BRIEREER (AEBREES
T——&+—- A=+—HI-FE H EGreenway
MEKBAR) -

The consolidated operation results of Greenway and its
subsidiaries, which was disposed of by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2012, are presented as discontinued
operation in the financial statements.
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Major Properties held by the Group
ALE P RA 2 LR

Location

Ho b

Existing use
WS

Term of lease

HEFH

Percentage
of interest

FribEzm A oL

Units 2703 and 2704, 27th Floor
Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

BEBERBE T
BB
Tt EE =R ETENE

25th Floor to 28th Floor

Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza
No. 1003 Shennan Avenue
Futian District, Shenzhen
FmERE

R A 100358

B AR ESAR25EE28E

Units 3 and 4, 11th Floor
Qingsong South Lane
Dalian Development Zone
the PRC

R ERE R SREE
T—B=RMET

Room 1301-1309

Central Business Building

No. 88 Fuhua Road One

Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC
PEERARITRERR
BE-—BNA\T/\HHOEBERE

—=2-E-=FTNE

24th Floor

Tower of Education

Science & Technology Building
Zhuzilin, Futian District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
the PRC

BB R AR

2 H R T AR
HERMBRE-_+HE

Block JO7, Zhongguancun Science Park
No. 156 Wenqgquan Town

Haidian District

Beijing, the PRC

PR BT R

Jm SRR — N

B IR R IR EJO7 5%

Commercial

EES

Commercial

CES

Residential
*=

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

EES

Medium

&

Medium

5

Medium

5

Medium

&

Medium

5

Medium

5

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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